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i ' Page 69 , : : " Page 70
1 Would you lock at page 399 of Exhibit 2, and 1 remote claimed expertise in this area, that anybody who
2 lines ten to 11, and, in connection with a question, you 2 was & stztistician or knew anything sbout statistics
3 gave the answer: ™1 think the repert doesn't attemptr to 3 would nell you that that was a woefully inadequate
4 make any stetisticm] analysis,.™ end of guote. 4 population to draw from."
s Dié you give that answer and was it accurate 5 Did you ¢ive that answer and was 1t accurate
€ at the time? 3 at the time?
7 A. I gave that answer, That's kind of & goofy 7 - Yas, and yes. And, remember =-=- The ceason T
8 answear, g8 rememiered this is because you sald -- you gquoted this
s a. Was it accurate at the tima? 9. to me just & little while ago, before we == earlier on
10 A. I think -- I was being truthful. 10 in my depositiom, so --
1 Q. That's all T want to know. 11 [+ Yas,
12 A. 1 wag bBeing truthful at the time. 12 Would you agree with me, notwithstanding the
a3 Q. Would you agree with me that the 19 complaints 13 l.'mmber of complaints that =~ Well -- Well, let me
14 trat yon losked mt was s woefully inadequate popmlation 14 withdraw the gquestion. This is not your testimony,
15 to draw from? 15 here, but I'm asking you a 1little different question.
16 A, That sounds like something I would have gaid. 1B Would you agres with me thag 13 complaints out
17 o. Let's look at it ¢ I'm Dot misqueting you or 17 of & total of the number of leoars that you loocked at or
1e nischaracterizing it. 138 that -- I'm sorxy -- that were made by Rousehold in the
19 If you looX at page 398 of Exhihit 2, snd you 19 time period that you reviewsd was 2 woefully inadeguate
20 were ssked the followlng question, line 22: .20 statistical sample?
21 "Dy you have any opinion whether n sample of 21 MR. BAKER: Objection as to form.
22 1% complaints out of a population of thousands and 22 A. If you're -- If you're trying to say that
23 thousands of complaints would be statistically 23 it == that it --
24 significant?” 24 Q. [BY MR, SLOANE:] I'm mot =-- Let me -~ L&t me
23 Angwer: “I would say, without hawing any 25 interrupt. you,

Page 71 Page 72

1 I'm not trying to say anything. I'm asking 1 statistical analysisz, yes, I think -~ as I said, hare,
2 you a guestion, and that's all you have to do, i answar 2 anybody who doesg stats would say, "Well, you can't use
3 the question to the best of your knowledge. 3 19 out of 2 glant population to say this is
4 You want to read it back? I didn't mean to n- statistically representative of something,” kut I don'*t
5 interrupt you, but -- 5 think I ever did say that, se, 1 wonld say yes to you,
6 You seem to suggest that T was trying to put -3 snd I apparently said yes back then, sc -- Yeah. Yas.
7 words in your mouth., I'm mot. I just want to know your 7 Q. Okey.
B answer. 8 In the work that you did in conpection with
8 {Record read as follows: £ this report, did you meke any effort to determine the
10 Q. "Would you mgree with me that 18 10 nuwher of complaints in reference to the total amount of
11 caomplaints out of & total of the munber 11 loars in any particular year?
12 ef loans that you looked 2t or that were 12 A. T knew the number of complaints in each year
13 made Ly Household in the time period 13. apd I knew the number of loahs in each year, 1 don't
14 that you reviewed was & wosfully 14 think I needed to make any -- and I knew that, so, I'm
15 inadegquate statistical sample?”) 15 not sure I needed to make an attempt to do it.
16 MR, BAKER: Same cbjection, 16 MR, SLOANE: Reask the question -~ Let me have
17 A. I'm not sure how you're using statistical 17 the question reread and maybe you've answered it or
18 sample. And I notice that I used it -~ I think iB maybe you've not. . Let's see,
13 praviously -- or they asked me the guestion about it, 19 A Ckay.
20 but -- And 8 - 20 [Record read az follows:
21 Q. {BY MR. SLOANE:!) Why don't you answer it in 21 Q. "In the work that you did in
22 your own words, 22 connecticn with this report, did yon
23 R, Okay. 23 meke any effort te determine the number
24 Q. Maybe we can get there easier. 24 of complaints in reference to the toral
25 A. All right. In a classic senss of doing 25 anount of loans in any particular

Pages 69 to 72
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1 yeari") 1 [Record read as follows:

2 A T did do that. I™m pet sore it wes any 2 0. "pid you understand the concept in

3 effort, but I -- I did do that. . 3 the work you did of & denominator and

L] Q. {BY MR, SLOANE:) And what did you conclude in 4 determinipg a derominator in trying to

5 the report in that regard? 5 establish a company-wide -- whethsr

14 A, i —-= 1 don't remember. L] comething was & company practice or

7 [+ Okay. Well, let me harken back -- Withdrawn, ki company-wide pracrice?™)

8 Do you understand -- Did yon understand the [} MR. BRKER: Sape objection.

g concept, in the work you did, of & denominator and ] A, Could -- Conld you rephrase that for me?

10 deternining 3 depominatsr in trying to establish 2 10 Q. (BY MR. SLOAKE:) Sure,

Il company-wide -~ whether something was = company practice 11 AL T don't mean to be obstinate, here. I'n

12 or compeny-wide practice? 1z just ==

13 MR. BAKER: Objection as to fornm. 13 Q. No, you're not belng obstinpate, at all. That

14 A. I know what a denominstor is. I don't know 11 question == That's exactly what T asked you te do before

LS there's any formuletor that says az specifis denminal:.or 15 we started.

16 has to be derived im order to come up with & i6 In -~ In connection with your work, did you

17 company-wide practice, 17 make any #ffort to guantify how many complaintsy —-

18 And, again, you hagven't shown ms, yet, where I 1e whether the number of complaints, in zny particular

19 used the term company-wide practice. You've only shown 19 practice —-- practice that you ldentified was

20 me where 1 was responding to somebody thet was psing 2D statistically sigrificant in terma of the overall

21 thet term with me. S$o, I'm not sure I would have dealt 21 leans ~- number of loans that were made by Household in

22 with that, 22 any perticular time period?

23 [+ (BY MR. SLOANE:) Okay. 23 A, Yas and no,

24 Let me have the gquestionr, again, and I'T1] ask 24 Q. Okay.

25 you if —- if you can’ answer my questien. 23 A, Qr no ~~ No and yes. I could try to explain a
Page 75 Page 76

1 little bitx. 1 And¢, I don't koow, if ~= if T can give you
4 Q. Sure. Please do, 4 & ~- just the gff~the-top-cf-my-head strange analogy. I
3 A, Agedn, there's is —- thare is nothing about 3 could walk down this street out front, here, a thousand

4 this report that we -~ 4 times, in frost of that Tully's Coffee shop and, one

5 Q. That’s Crasas Exhibit 3. 5 day, I ¢ould decide to go in and shoot somebody and take

6 A. —-- that we would argme ia p statistical [ money out of the till. That's one out of a thousand

T analysis. 3o, Yyou're using that term with me. ¥ don't ? t.imea, but I think that scmebody weuld consider that to

B know Lif I ever cleimed, in this report, that it was a 8 be semething that would need to be daalt with,

8 statistical anelysis, but my guess is I wouldn't hava. 4 And that's what we're -~ In this report, when
i S0, in a -- if we were to hire a 10 we're dealing with 19 cemplaints, that's -- that's what
11 staztistician — which wauldn't be me -~ if we were to 11 ve're saying, is these 19 complaints were egregious pets
12 hire a statistiecien to do soms nnalysié, they would == 12 againkt consumers. ARG we never tried to srgque that
13 they would probably come back with some numbers that 13 they make up a buge percentage of —- of the total loans
14 show that the number of complaints I was looking at in 14 in the company. What we say ig we find these practices
15 this report were very, very, very, very small in 15 within these cemplaints —- we find them to be egregious,
16 relation to the population of complaints, but we 16 We communicate with -- with many of tha states acrosg
17 den't -- the regulstory world, we don't live in a 17 the country., We find that they have similar complaints
18 vecuum. We measure things llke are the complaihts with 18 in their files, that their examination findings are
19 this company greater then with & pser company and are 139 similar to the things that we’re finding in our
20 they increasing at a greatez rete, are they more 20 examination. And, therefora, we feel comfortable in
21 + egregious tham other types of complaints, these types of 21 saying thet, when we lock at the company, we == we do
22 things, 22 not like the practices we're seeing bere. That's what
23 In that sense, they may not be a ¢lassic 23 that report does.

24 statlsticel indicater for us, but they are, 24 . Now, you mentioned communications with other
25 nevertheless, importsnt in us forming our decisions, 25 examiners.
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1 controlled by Household, contained within a certain 1 371. You can read ss much as you want. I'm foctsed on
2 environment or pigture that tkey had -~ had painted, and 2 lines ten to 13, And the guestion was asked: “In other
3 1 know that —— that to the extent thal an agency oot 3 words, your report is just dealipg with problems and
4 being & person can lose sort of patience with that 4 negative issues, not the positive side of the business?™
g process, wWe had remched a point where we hed ~- where we 5 Answer: “Absoclutely.™
6 had losr patience with it. We were no longer interested 6 Did you give that testimcny at Lhet time and
7 in == in having the dialogua that they kept insisting T was it accurate?
g that they wanted to have, E A Yes.
g a. (BY MR. SLOANE:] Would yvou look at page 246 9 Q. Yas to both?
19 of Exhikit 2, lines 15 te 25, in A, Yes to both,
11 Queation: "So, as of tha time that you sent 11 Q. Okay.
12 out this expanded report, you had made your findings and 12 Off the record.
13 opinions and you were not interested in revisiting them, 13 (A giscussion was held off the record.}
14 were youl® 14 Q. {(BY MR. SLOANE:) Is it accurate to say that,
15 There's ap objection, 15 of the 15 teports —— 15 complaints and loens listed in
16 The Witness: “Persconally, no, I wasn't too 15 your report, there wasn't a cingle instance, in
1 interested in that because I had done my job and was 17 conpection with those loans, in which you took
1B ready to nmove to the next stage. 2as far as what the iz Household'e word over that of the borrower &s to what
19 director was interested, I would have to leave that to 19 had occurred?
20 him to apsWer.,”™ 20 A, Boy, hum. I don't recall, but that -- It
21 Did you glve that testimony and was it 21 would be uncommon for me toc take a hundred percent of
22 agcurate at the time? 22 whet the borrowers' said znd nothing of what Fousehold
23 A. Yes and yes. z3 seid, but, generally, as -- &5 the complaints supported
24 [+5 Lot me direct your attemtion to Exhibit 2, 24 the wviplstions or hayms we were noting, I believed the
25 page 371, Tt actually starts -- Let's StaArt atr page 25 consumers more than I believed Household in those
Page 87 Page 88
1 conplaints., 1 short=-cixenir this and see 1, again, this is samething
2 Q. And if you hsd credited, in any respect, 2 that yoo testified to and you believe was sccurate.
3 Household's word over the word of the borrowers, that 3 Tt esntinues on iline == on page 352 of
4 would be in the report; isn't that right? 4 Exhidit 2.
5 A. Mot necessarily, no. 5 The Witness: "No, naybe from your” -- dash,
3 Q. Wall, wonld you look ar page 391, line 21 of 6 éash ~=- “I understand you have a different perspective
7 Exhibit 2. 7 than from my perspective" —-
:] A. Line numbar? 8 And here's the part I wanted tc ask yon sbout:
a Q. Line pumber 21. 3 "I don't know how -that's —— 1t woulda't have been
10 A. Thank yeun. 10 relevant to me. This is not a report about good things
11 [+ 391. I'm going to go from 391, 21, to 392, 2. 11 Househeld &id or the things that Household and us were
1z The question was asked: "Cep you recsll any instance in 1z in agreement om. It's the things™ -- dash, dash --
13 discussing the 19 loans that are at issue ip this report 13 "it's about the harmful things Household did and the
14 that's Exhibit € where you tock Household's word over 14 things® that were -- "that we Were in disagreement on.”
15 the word of the borrower as to what facts occurred?™ 15 ‘Did you give that testimony and was it
15 Answer: "I don't rémenber. I alse have to 16 accurate at the time?
17 let the report spesk for itself., 1L I di¢ do that, it's 17 R, Yes and yes.
18 probably in there.* 18 2. Would you look at page 333, lives two to 13.
18 Did you give that testimeny and was it 19 The question was asked: "And are you telling me that,
20 accurate? 20 with raspect to those 15 ¢omplaints end that analysis,
21 A, 1 gave the testimony. There's two huge 21 you would have excluded any of the informztion that was
22 qunalifiers in there: I don't remember and probably. 2z favorable to lHousehold just as you did in the mors
23 But, t& the best of my sbility, I was giving a truthful 23 general discussion about Household?"
29 answer at that time. 24. There's an sbjection.
25 Q. Okay. &nd let me continue oz a little bit to 25 The witness ssys, "Yeak, likely. Unless it

Pages 85 to 88
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1 was relevant to the argument of the point I was trying 1 fairest overall appraiaal of all of Housshold's
2 to make, there would be no point to put it in." 2 practices as to all of its borrowers in the state of
2 Question: "What was the arqument of the point 3 Washington?
1 you were trying to make?” 4 k. Yes.
5 Answezr: "That these consumers were harmed.” 5 Q. That was not the purpose of this report?
[ Did you give that testimony and was it 6 A. That was not the purpose of ths repert.
7 accurate at the time? 7 Q. Okay. D::.d you think, in connection with the
g A Yax and yes. 8 work yon did for Homsehold, that it wes relevant for you
9 MR. SLOMNE: Okay. I'w teld we have about ] to know abont what Housahold's actual pelicies were
10 five minutes left on the tape, so, why don't we change 10 about how it communicate -- communicated information to
11 it now, and I guess it would be a good idea to take a 11 1ts customers, question mark?
12 short bresk just because of that, if that's all righbt. 1z MR. BAKER; Objection. Vague. Objection as
13 A, Sure. 13 to form, .
14 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are now going off the 14 MR. SLOANE: Could I have the question Tersad?
15 yeesrd in the continuing deposition of Charles Cross. 15 He may be right, but it's probably wrong.
16 This is the end of tape one. The time is now 11:06 a.m. 16 [Record resd ss follows:
17 [Off the rscord at 11;06 a.m.} 17 . "Did you think, in connection with
1B {Back o©n the record at 11:23 a.m.) 18 the work you did for Hoosehold, that it
19 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are now back on the 18 was relsvant for you to know about what
20 record in the continving deposition of Charles Cross. 20 Honsehold's actoal pc.‘li-cies were about
21 Thirs i5 the beginning of tape twe, The time is now 21 how it commmicate -- communicated
22 11:23 a.m. 22 information to its customers, guestion
23 Q. (BY MR. SLOANE:) Mr, {ross, let me ask you 23 mark:")
24 thiz gueetion: Iz it correct to say that the purpose of 243 MR. SLORNE: 1It's okay.
25 your report, which is Exhibit 3, was not to come to the 25 R, I would say ves, I think it's relewant. How
Page 91 Page 92
1 Felevant, {t nmight be another question, but you didn't 1 understanding, by that individuzl, be, in your view, a
2 azk that, so -- z company practice?
3 Q. {BY MR. SLOANE:) And is it slsc fair to say 3 A, Very well could be, yes.
4 that -- that in connection with your work, that it was 4 Q. O¥ay. Now, in conhection with the
5 net a significent part ¢f your examination to review any 5 investigative work that you did of Household and — You
6 of the Bousehold pelieies or training manuals or [ didn't operate under any presumption that borrowers had
T bulletins aboul practices that it should or should oot T a respongibility to review the terms of any documents
8 engage in? ] they signed; is that correct?
] A. I ~- I don't helieve so, in the writii:g of L] A, T think that is ipgorrece, if I —— if I
10 this report. I beliewe, subsgquent to this report, 10 ' understand your questionm,
11 wa -~ using that term loosely ~~ spent more time in that 11 Q. Well, for the purposes of your regelatory
1z ares. 1z jurisdiction, yeu dsn't operate under any preswmption
13 Q. Ckay. At the time that you did this rspore 13 that borrowers have s responsibllity to review the terms
14 and irvestigation, was 1t your view that a company 14 of the documents they signs is that #air?
15 shculd be held responsible for thas acts of a2 single 15 A, There's s == There's a -- somewhat of &
16 individoal employea? 16 complex answer to that.
17 A, Yes. 17 1 did pot have jurisdietion over borrowsrs or
ig Q. And would, as ¥om -- as you -- If you want to 18 borrowers' actions. We -- In the agency's normal course
18 expand on that, go abead. I don't want to interropt 19 of reviewing, investigating, resolving complaints, there
20 you. 20 was a lot of discuasion about the level to which
21 B. Depends -- The acts beiny done within the 21 borrowers had a respongibility to go to -~ Eo == to
22 company. They're not responsible fer the guy owning a 22 determine if the transaction was appropriste for them,
23 bome and, you know, kicking the dog or something. 23 and g0 forth. So, there was a lot of -- a lot of
24 Q. Yeah, T understand. 24 agency, a lot of division, a lot cf pnit discussion
25 Eod wenld thet -- those acts, in youx 5 about that. and 41l of that would bave -- Everything —-
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1 Q. (BY MR, SLORNE:} Mr. Cress, T den’'t have 1 Q. And did you author porticns or all of this
2 any =~ apy questions -- fuxther guestions for ysu at 2 ﬁestimony’a‘
3 this time. Thank you. 3 A, let me -- Let me read it,
4 A, You're welcome, L] (A discussion was held off the record.}
s MA. BAXER: Let's markx this next in order. & MR. BRXER: First page is a ¢over letter.
& It's number seven, 6 A, It's a cover letter, You don't have that.
7 MS. MARTIN: 6, 7 MR. SLOANE: Ok, just have the testimony,
8 MR. BRXER: Sorry, 6. :] (A discussion was held off the recors,.)
3 MR, SLOANZ: It's a bad start, k1 MS. MARTIN: Is the testlmony actually through
1o MR. BAKER: Trying to trick me. 10 page four?,
11 {Cross Exhibit 6 was marked for 11 MR, BAKER: Yeah, page four and then there are
12 identification.) 1z some attachments.
13 (A discusalon was held off the record,) i3 MS. MARTIN: ©Oh, attachments. OQOkay. 1 was
14 EXAMTINATION 24 confuged, Thank you.
15 BY MR. BAKER: 15 A, Could I give you more tham & simple yes or no?
16 @. Ckay. Mr. Crogs, if you could turn to the 16 0. (PY MR. BAKER:) Sure,
17 page to == second page of this document. 17 A. Okay. Much cof the content of this I would
1B And, earlier today, you were testifying about 1B have provided te Johr -- when 1'm reading this now, and
13 some testimony that Mr. Bley had given, the Federal 19 I realized that, whem youn talked to me on the phone
20 Regarva Board, I beljeve, in 2000. You recall that 20 previeusly, I didn't bave a copy of this in front of me.
21 tastimony? a1 Cleexly, the attachment that == that, I think, went
22 A. Yes. 22 along with it ==
235 Q. Okay. And iz the second page on —-- is that a 23 Q. Um-hum.
24 copy of tha testimony that Mr. Bley gave? 24 A, ~- is my euthorship, and much of the content
25 A, It appears to be. 25 of this would have Been information I provided to Johm.
Page 107 Page 108
1 I'm reading this, oow, and this -- the paragraphs, hare, 1 the same." Do you see that?
2 are more in John's voice than my wvaice, 2 A, Yes.
3 Q. If I could direct your attention to page twe. 3 Q. Do you eoncur with that?
4 A. 0t -- L] A, Yes,
5 Q. I'm sorry, psge number two of the testimony. 3 MR, §LOANE; Does he conecur with it today?
b A. Got it. € Q. {BY MR. BAKER:] Did you always concur with
7 Q. You see, in the third paragrsph, there's a that?
E 8 reference, "I have attached as Exhibit % a memorandum B A, Yes. Mispiong &¢ chenge a Little bit over
3 suthored by the department's chief mortgage 9 time, but I -- I think, generally, it's a pretty
10 investigator, Mr. Chuck Cress, which describes the 0 accurate statement.
11 deceptive practices we have shserved in Washingtes"? 11 0. Okay.,
12 A, Yes. 12 Was the term predstory lending used within the
13 Q. Okay. And that's the memo that you wars i3 departmant dering the time period that Mr. Sloane was
14 referring to as the attachment that yoo had authored? 14 asking about, 1999 to 20027
15 A. Right. That's the th;.cker part of this 15 A. Yes.
16 document, actually. 18 Q. Okay. Did yon nave any discussisns with
17 Q. Ckay. 17 Mr.-Bley about predatory landing dering that time
19 If I could direck your attention to the next 18 pericdl
1% paragraph that says, "It is important to note that 1% X, Sure.
20 predatory lending is nmot a new problem. State 20 Again, I aidn't very cften brief John because
21 regulators have been dealing with this very same issue 21 T dids't report divectly to him. My boss reported to
22 under 2 different name for years,” period. ‘“What was 22 him. And, actvaslly, during part of this time, my baoss’
23 onge celled mortgage fraud is now called predetery 23 boss reported-to him. But ~- But my relationship with
24 iending,* period, "Under either name, our migsion to 24 Jehr goes ~- goes way back, and, so, we would discuss
23 investigats violations and enforce the law has remained 25 predatory lending.
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1 5o -- And, alse, we were heglhning to i iCross Exhibit B8 was marked for
2 understand more and more about predatory lendirg 2 identification.}
3 prncti'ces. We had the FAMCO case Under our bhelt, now. 3 MS. MARTIN: This is Exhibit 8; is that right?
4 We understood more sbout what was going on, and the 4 Q. [BY MR. BAKER:) 13 this a gopy of your
& deception that could actually oc.cu: with ¢onsumers, 5 signatore on the bottom of page two?
€ where, a lot of times, consumers didn't even really have -1 A, That's my signature.
7 a clue what happened, what went on. 7 Q. Okay. And, before signing this, did you
8 S0, we're having thess conversations and it B review it to make sure it wes correct?
% was determined that -~ that it made sense to do an ] A Yes, I -- Yeak, T defipitely would have
ic investigation or an exam -- expanded examination report 10 reviawed it and made sure it wes correct.
11 to -- and feocus on the complaint side of the world as it | 11 Q. Okay.
12 related to Household and try to ~= Try To understand 1z And this -— This particular document that'as
13 what was really going on with the practice of the 13 referred to in paragraph thnree is a topy, apparently,
14 company, see if what we were heoaring from the complainte 14 that was 8 -- of the expanded report that was obtainaed
is made sense or what -- what the routine exams was telling 156 from the Bellingham Herald website, but the same
16 ue made sense, Thet's -+ That's how it got started. 16 conclusions that are referenced in paragraph thres,
17 Q. Okay. 17 here, mpply also to Cross Exhibit 3? Same experience?
13 Well, I'm going to ask you some more questions 18 A Yes, yes,
19 about that after lunch, but let me just follow up a few 15 Q. Oksy. 1t's the sama report, ip other words?
20 more questions. a0 A It's the sams raport.
21 Did you glve a declaration in the Luna case 21 And this == I think I =~ ag I remember, I
2z with respect to this particular DFI report? 22 bappily did this because it provided me gome cover. I
23 Lat'e mark this next in order. 23 think I was being accuaed of having released this report
24 A, I see one there, so, I'm golng t¢ say yes. 24 that Honsehold wartad to Brotedt it and I didn't, o ==
25 o. That's -~ That*s & good guess. 25 Q. Mr. Sloane was asking you a number of
Page 115 Page 11%&
1 questions about the deposition testimony that you gave 1 very current at that peint in time, too. I have to say
2 that's reflected in Cross Exhibit 1 and Cross Exhibit 2, 2 thay, ae well,
3 and I just want to follew up on some of those questions. 3 . Q. Okay.
L] ‘Re was asking yov about specific snippets of 4 How, let's mark a couple more befeore,
5 testimony. Ts it true that, to the best of yonr S hopefully, we breakx for lunch.
€ knowledge == 1 should say -- Let me start again, & Let's mark this next number.
1 To the best of your knowledge, did yn;.v give 7 {Cross Exhibit 9 was marked for
] truthful and accurate testimony in response toe the 8 identification.}
] questions thet were posed to you in those two 9 {A discmssion was held off the record.)
g depositions? 10 M5, MARTIR: Your copy is == 1g there, yeah.
11 A. Yeg, 11 Q. {BY MR, BAKER:) This is just the question I'm
12 Q. Ckay. Since then, have you learmed anything 12 going to ssk yow 2gain. Tgaoring the handwriting en
13 that wonld have led you to believe that the testimony 13 this, earlier yeu weze testifying -- testifying about o
14 you gave wae not accurate? 11 March 4th, 2002 report exuminnt.‘ia;: based on what was —-—
15 A, Without reading all that testimony, that is -- | 15 based for calemdar year 2001. To the best of your
16 that is herd to say. - 16 kpowledgs, is this a copy of ~- of that report, plus the
17 There -- I'd like te think - probably not 17 ¢over letter from Mr. Brorgart?
18 true, hut I"d like to think I'm a 1little bit smarter, a 1e A, It sure looks like it.
1% little -~ know 2 little bit more today than I knew back 139 Q. Okay. And, at this point in time, March of
20 then, But T would say that everything that I sald at 20 2004, would Mr. Burgert have bean reporting to yom?
21 that time was truthful. Whether, noi, you would ask me 21 Sorry, 2002,
22 some -- you know, 3ome piece out of there that maybe T 22 A. ©Oh.
23 weuld know more about today or net ~~ I can't say for 23 MR, SLOANE: You need it?
24 sure. But that was ~=- was &u accurate, truthful 24 A. I == Fumm, I -- Yes, I think so. Ed was my
z5 testimony at the time {t was taken. 2And the facts were 25 boss at one time, bot then he got demoted. 1 =-= I
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1 And you'ze discussing congerns r;asultinq from borrower 1 {Cross Exhibit 16 was marked for
2 confusion over biweekly and bimonthly programs. Yoo see 2 identificatien.)
3 that in sort of the second full paragraph there? 3 (A discussion was held off the record.}
4 h, Yaah. 4 MR, SLOANE: 15 thils sbout a specific customer
5 I+ N Are you familiar witk the term effectivn.rate ] that was referenced in the report, Cam?
[ or equivalent rate as used with respect to a hlweekly 6 MR, BAKER: I believe they are in this report,
7 payment program? ki actually ——
8 A. Yag. B THE REPORTER: I'm soxry?
-] Q. And did you identify a pattern of deceptive ] MR. BAKER: I believe they are. T believe
10 practices at Household that used those terms? 10 they are.
11 h. I — I believe 5o, yes. 11 MR. SLORNE: On that basis, go shead,
1z Q. Qkay. 12 Q. (BY MR. BAKER:) And, Mr, Cross, you see this
13 And gould you explain to —-- to me what that 13 is & lattsr to you from Household?
14 process was or wWhat the deceptive practice wes? i4 Al Yes.
15 MR. SLGAWE: Object te the Fform of the is Q. Ckzy. And it relates to a specific complaint
16 question. Yeu said a patterm at Household. 18 from the =-=- the Jehastons. Do you see that?
17 MK, BAKER: I did. 17 A _. Yes.
1B A I was afreid you were golng to ask me that, is o. Okay. And you would have reviewed this and
19 because, a4s ! ranmenber, this is & fairly complex area of | 19 considered this in evaluating the complaint -~ the
20 the exam. But I will try to the best of my 20 merits of the claim; is that right?
21 recellection. 21 A, In relation to this -- yesh, Julian and Terry
22 Q. [(BY MR. BAKER:] Actually, you know what, 22 Johanston complaint, yes.
23 maybe I*'1l just see if I can help you out, here. You -- 23 Q. And is it fair to say it wax pert of your
24 Let's see. 24 regular businesg practices, during the time pericd we're
25 Here, let's mark this next in order. Z5 talking about, 16 evaluate complajnts received from
. Page 135 Page 136
1 borrowers? 1 A.S A 1ift1= bit. He -- Schoeider, here, is
2 MR, SLOANE: Object to the question. Way 2 referring to the equivalent rate. I think we talked a
3 beyond the scope of the exam -— direct examination. 3 1ot about the effective rate -- I can't remembar, now,
4 A. I thipk the answer iy yes, 4 wWhether those terms are interchangeabls or had some
-3 [« N (BY MR. BRKER:) Okay. ] subtle puances that were differeut among them.
& A. It -- I supervised this area and I had people [ And, lp general -- And there were a couple of
7 nandling -« W& regsived about a thouwsand compleints a2 7 variatioes or maybs mors variations than the whole
a year, so, did I lock 2t every complaint? At one time, I e biuéekly or bimeathly program. In general, vwhat -- what
9 vas the only guy locking at complalnts, but you get inte 9 wa found wes that when borrowers had a biweekly or
10 this perlod of time and it took bigger cases like FAMCO b} hd.monthl_v_ payment plan, they would communicate to us |
11 and Household for me to become invelved in the 11 that -~ that their rate was nppzo-xi.mately half of what
12 complaints. iz we could ses on the hote wes showing as their pate, abnd,
13 Q. okay. 13 a3 we discussed this with them == and, them, alse would
14 A, But I approved every —— Every complaint 14 look at the material=s and the responses from the
15 finding that ever went out went out under my appraval, 1z company -- it became apparent to us that =- that this
16 but a lot of it was under sort of pelicy and procedure: ig whole —— there wag z sales pitch that went with getting
17 You do thise in this situation, ) 17 the biweakly program, snd that sales pirch was clearly
18 Q. Okay. Angd if I direct your ettention to the 18 lazding bor::c;wers to believe that their rate was half of
19 second page of this document. There's s paragtaph 19 what it really was.
20 starting, *Third*. If you could read that to yourself. 20 Now, there's -~ there's a whole ton of
21 h. Tm~hum, 21 discussion that pasued, that I'm sure went ¢n for months
22 I've read it. . 22 and months, asbout the meaning of effactive, meaning of
23 C. Okay. And doas that refresh your recollection 23 equivalant, who meant what by what.
24 as to what the =- the biweekly effective rate daceptive 24 In the end, our finding was that this is what
25 practice was? 25 borrowers carried away from -- from -- from the sales
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Page 137 Page 138
1 piteh. These guys were the profassionals selling this 1 .}\. Okay.
2 loan program amd -- im our -- In our reéulato:y world, 2 Q. Qkay.
3 under the concept by which we issued the company a 3 A. And then what -- You're looking at the last
L] license, they have an obligation not to mislead pecple, 4 sentence that begizs with department?
5 and we found that borrowers were entering the 5 Q. Yeah, Well, no, the second-to-last
& transaction believing that their rete was half of what 13 Bentence —-
7 it reelly was. 7 A, Got it,
-] - Okay. And did you detetmine that that was a 8 . 0. == that says, "However the department has
s deceptive practice? 8 identifiedr?
10 A, Abzelutely. 10 k. Yes, okay.
11 a, Oksy. In the report, here, It says == I'm 11 Q. Okay.
12 zeading from the —- looks like the sacond-to-last lins 12 A. Okay,
13 of this parsgrsph. It says, "The Jdepartment has"' 12 Q. And other practices -- sorry, "the practice to
14 identified the practice in other bLranches in Washington 14 other branches in Washington 2ud has even received
15 and has even received reports from regulators in ocher 1% reports from regulators in other states concerning the
16 states concezning the practice.” Do yon sees that? 18 practice.” Do yon s=e that?
17 A, What document are you on? 17 R I do, yes.
is Q. I'm sorry, I'm of your Exhibit 3, 18 Q. Okay. De you pecall hew many other states
19 A. Okay. Page 46, still. 19 reported this practice? And if I could diract you to
20 Q. Page 46. TYeah. The peragraph we're locking 20 page €9 of your deposition --
21 at, this kind of inset. 21 A. oOkay. :
22 A Tzat beging with -- 22 Q. == and your answer there.
23 Q. 1he Department. 23 A. I'm going Lo say, off the top of my head,
24 A. The prime -- &r -—- 24 probable Minnesota snd Georgia, but =« Oksy. I'm on
25 Q.  Yemh, borrowers have besn informed. 25 page B9,

Page 139 Page 140
1 Q. Page 83, and question From Mr. Parletta: 1 out, I think,
2 "Let's put back Tegether. T believe you said the 2 Q. Okey, So, you're net sure whan yoo -- when
3 effective or equivalent interest rates sales program wes 3 the tining of these 15 te 20 other states telling you
4 tound in several other states?™ (] when that occurred?
3 Anewer; "1 was told that." 5 A, Right.
6 Question from Mr. Parlette: "Okay." Do you 6 Q. It could have occurred before this repart or
T know how many other states* -- sorry, "Do you know hew T <otld have occurred sobseguent?
& many states?" 5 k. .Right.
] Cbjection frem Mr. Dunne. 9 0. Okay. But you're saying, to your knowledge,
10 Answex: "Neo, I don't koow how many, but I 10 this practice occurred between 15 and 20 other states?
11 koow that I was told that Ly at least 15 to 20 states.” 11 MR, SLOANWE: Objection te form of the
12 A. And I don't know how far back we have to go to 12 question.
13 get this into appropriate context, but, first, this was 13 Q. {EY MR, BAXER:} In addition to Washington?
14 contemporanecns in time with -- with the sveats, so, I 14 MR, SLOANEZ: That's not what he said, He said
15 &tand Dy what was said there, 15 he had besn told something. He dide't know whether it
16 ¥hat I'm wondering, now, if we went back and 16 occurred. How would he know?
17 looked at the earlier contexr, if the 15 end -- 15 ta 20 |17 Q. {BY MR. BAKER:} You can answer the guestion.
18 was not relevant to the multistats, then -- in other 18 A. I would say T was told. I did pot ~- I den't
138 werds, oot -~ the 1§ -- 15 to 20 may not have been. 19 know that I -- that I personally investigated materials
20 before this report was drafted, 20 from other states: although, it's guite possible that --
21 0. Okay. 21 We came toéather on several cccasions and discussed
22 A, Yet, the report was drafted, and -- and a lot 22 things and -- and looked at stuff, #o, but -~ but it is
23 of discussions ensued sfter the report was drafted, and 23 Most accurate to ssy that T was told that by 15 to 20
24 that's when the 15 to 20 may have sald, "Hey, us, too." 24 gtates.
25 But -~ T'd have to read a bunch of this t¢ figure that 25 Q. Okay. Earlier in this deposition, you
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Page 145 Page 146
1 years later, that New York was the only state that did 1 deceptive practices witk respect o prepayment penalties
2 not have that issue. And this sctuslly came to light 2 in all the states that you are representing.
3 during the cmse. And the reason was Mew York had a 3 ME, SLOANE: Objection., Mischaracterizes his
4 specific lew saying you could not have prepayment 1 testimony, but it’s way beyond the scope of the direct
5 penalties, so, New York came Into the c.ase saying, -3 axuminu-tion.
6 "Well, we don't see that in our state.” It's becapse 6. A. The group grew to about 40 states, I balieve,
? prepaymant penalties were completely disallowed, so ? with time, and, yes, we had -- T remember two physieal
8 theze's no reason to tIy to deceive somebody or 8 meetings we were all in the same room. The first
9 misrepresent that & prepayment penalty existad, ] meeting, I think there were about 25 states, and than
16 But all the other ststes, that was a very big 10 the next meeting yrew to mhout 40 states, snd we very
1] polnt that was discussed over and over and over. 11 much -- with the exceprion of Naw York, who wanted to
12 Q. And was there cohsensus within t.'he_ group thet 12 stay away from the prepayment penalty issue, because
13 B held was gaged in deceptive practices with 13 they didn't have prepayment psnalties in their state,
14 respect to their prepayment penalties? hY | every other state wes saying, "This is a major issue in
15 MR, SLOANE: Objaction to the form of 1.5 our state apd 1t's an issne we have To have resolutisn
16 question., What do you mean by the group? 16 of in this case.”
17 MR. BAKER: The group that you're talking 17 Q. IBY MR. BAKER:]} One of the other things that
18 about pow. 14 you talk about ip your report that we haven't touches
18 MR, SLOANE: I'm lost on what group. 13 ¥per has to do with the GFEs im the ~- guote, unguote ==
20 MR, BAXPR: He's talking -- 20 buydown or discount points. Do you recall cher?
21 0. {BY MR. BRKER:) You're talking about, if I 21 A. Yes..
22 understand, there's 2 group of you -- some¢ axe ettorneys | 22 [+ 3 bkay. Wbhat can you tell me about that
23 general, some are¢ -- you are regulators =« who are 23 particular practice?
24 talking about these practices, and I'm wondering if you 24 A, There were == There were twe == I believe
25 reached a consensua that Housthold 1s engaged inm 25 there were two deceptions that I cited revolving around

Page 147 Page 148
1 the discoont points, in this case. One was whether the 1 Q. Dkay. Was that also the subject of
2 discount peints were what I would call bona fide -- did 2 discossions within the -- you mind if I call it the AG
3 they actually have an effect of buying the rate down == 3 group? .
4 and the second was the disclosure on the Good Faith 4 A That's fine, Yes.
5 Estimate of a range of disesunt points, whichk typically 5 Q. Yeah, was it?
6 began at zerc and went up somewhere -- anywhere from L MR. SLOANE: Objection. Well, bevond the
7 mzybe six, seven thousand up te maybe, like, ten or 11 7 scope of my examination,
8 thousand. It was -- It would just be showing, in the :] Q. {BY MR, BAKER:) And was there 2 consensus
9 Good Faith Eetimate, zero to this larger pumber. 5 reached within that group that Household was engaged in
10 But, in the capes I reviewed, comsistently, 16 deceptive practices throughout those states?
11 the borrowers paid at the very top of that number., Yet, 11 MA. BLOANE: Objection,
12 the borrowers were telling us that the loan criginater 12 Q. {BY MR. BAKER:) With respect t& the discoont
13 &aid they would be at the bottom. They would get 13 points and the GFE disclosures?
14 essentially a -- 3 very low=cost or no-cost loan. Sp =- 14 MR, SLORNE: Cam, you keep spending time on
15 Deception -- To reverse those, deception, first, szound 15 this, It's well beyond the scope of my examinatien,
16 what wzs disclosed to the borrower, making the borrower 16 It's not even clese. What iy ~
17 believe that it could be as low as zere, and it 17 MR. BRKER: Peter, vom lcno\;d thst's the most
18 virtnally mever wes, in == in our investigetion, and 18 fidiculoas objection, Why don't you read the rule, the
1% then, once discount points were actually paid, they 19 Federal Rulas of Civil Procedure. And I'm entitled to
20 didn't seem to have any affect in moving the rate down 20 a2zk any question. There's no limitation on the scope of
21 eny, which would be your natural assumption, is that -- 21 an examination at the deposition. Not only that --
22 and based on some documentation produced by Househpld, 22 MR, SLOAME: Excuee wme, Fact discovery is
23 scme tables that showed that thera was an inverse 23 over. JIt's been over for menths., Has nothing to do
24 relationship between points and rate. Yon would assume 24 with-the Federal Rules @f == of --
25 that, bet that was mot what we found. 25 MR. BAKER: Civil Procedure,
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1 MR. SLOANE: -- Cilvil Procedure. Has to do 1 question. ‘
2 with the rules set forth by the magistrate jmdge in this 2 MR. SLOANE: He doesn't want tc be precise.
3 case. This iz not your fact depositiom. 3 ME. BAKER: T do,
4 MR, BRKER: We've poticed the deposition, 4 Q. {BY MR. BRKER:) I want tc make sure -- The
5 Q. {BY MR. BRFKER:) bBut, anyway, do you recall ' 5 question I want to know is: Was there a consengus
& the gquestion? 6 reached, within the AG group, that Bousehald was engaged
T MR. SLOBRNE: Ig that == Ig thet pursuyant --— 7 in deceptiwe practices with respect to the disclosures
B Just so I understand your peosition, your questiongs are E of -- on GFEs and the -- guote, unquobes == buydown
g agW baing asked pursuvant o your noticed depositien? 9 discount peints that you discussed?
10 ME. BAKER: They zould be or they could be i MR'. SLOANE: Same -- Sorry, same gbjection,
11 asked in response. 11 A. My rezellection is that it was 100 percent,
12 MR. SLOANE: I want z positiom en it. 12 80, Wk == Ye5, 8 CORSENnSUS.
13 MR, BAKER; I'm both. I'm taking both. 13 Q. (BY MR. BRKER:] Okay. How, in your
14 MR, SLORNE: You'rs ssying it's proper, A, 14 deposition, on page 132, which is Cross Exhibit 1,
15 and, B, it's within the acope of your notice; is= thet 15 there's a reference -- if you go to page, again, 132.
16 what you're saying? 15 A. I'll have to catch up with yon hare.
17 MR, HAKER: I'm saying both, 17 Q. That's okay.
1e MR, SLOARE: Okay. 18 A, 1'm sorry =-
18 MR, BAKER: And I den't want to Waste any more 13 Q. Fage 132.
20 time on this. 20 K. ' Got the wrong +~- Got the wrong exhibit, sorry.
21 MR. SLOAKNE: FErcuse me, I == ] made my point. 21 132. cCkay. What line?
2z I just want to kpow what youre was. 22 Q. S0, on page 132, if I conld direct your
23 A, I think my enswer's yes. 23 attention to the guestion and answer starting on lines
24 MR. BARER: Okay, 24 13. Aand there's a -- The spswer wes: “Household
25 A But you might wWwant to ba precise in the 25 anintaingd for, I don't know, two, two and a half years,
Page 151 Page 152
1 that they had & saie harbor under RESFA that allowed 1 MR. SLOANE: Would you give us the date of the
2 them to disclose the range of discount peints in the 2 document?
3 Good Faith Estimate im the fashion in which they Y MR, BAKER: It looks like it's -- it doesn't
L dizclosed thase points," pericd., You see that? 4 actually haeve a -- it's like July 5th, 200z.
5 A, Um-hum. 5 MR. SLOAWE: That's the date.
3 Q. And it says that this issue has kind of been [ Q. {BY MR. BAKER:) And I just want to know, is
7 goirng back and forth with them since lete 1999, 7 this a copy of the letter that you received back from
g A. Yes. ) 8§  HUDZ
3 Q. Okay. Who, at Household, was maimtaining 9 M5. MBRIIN: I need one,
10 that? Who told you that they had & safe harbor?t 10 A. Yes.
11 A, I dop't remember. I -- It would be == 11 M§. MARTIN: Sorry, thank you.
iz Q. Mr. Schnelder? \ 1z MR, BAKER: Okay. And this i1s Cross
13 A, Mr. Schnelder. iz Exhibit 117
14 We had a lot of correspondence revolving 19 [Cross Exhibit 11 was marked Ffor
15 around the complaints whezre I think we were raising this 15 identlfication.)
16 concern, but —— there -- there's a =- there wWas & woman 1g Q. (BY MR. BAXER:!} Did yov ever show this
17 with Household who was something like assistant genmeral 17 letter —~ Sorry, did you ever show this letter to
18 counsel, and I can't remember her name, now, and I think | 18 Household?
18 we had a lot of arquments with her zbout this topic, 19 A Yes.
20 Q. Oxay. 20 MR. SLOBNE: Objection, Bayond the scope.
23 And accerding to your -- It goes on. You said | 21 A, Yes, I did.
22 that you asked HUD for an opinion letter? 22 Q. (BY MR. BAXER:) And what was thelr response?
23 A. Yes, 2a A, It's one of my favorite points in history, I
24 Q. Okay. &and let me just show you a document, - 24 remembar handing this in -~ it was in our first -- first
25 (A digcussion wae held off the record.) 25 large meeting of -- of negotiataed settlements and we
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1 relationship ;.rith him ~=- great guy -- and he would visit 1 transpired.
z Mark at least once a month —-- you know, just monitering 2 Q. Did you believe that those complaints were
3 — "How's the company doing,” you know, “He're your 3 representative of other complaints that you hed received
4 licenses. We want t¢ make surs we still have a 4 from Housshold that aren’t referenced in this specific
5 ralationship with you.* And Mark was starting to become 5 Teport?
6 more and more direct with Tom in their meetings, saying, & A I dor't --
7 "You goys are” == "Your campany's kind of veering off 7 MR. SLOANE: Did you actually mean to ask the
8 the regulatory path, here,” and -~ and -- and this E gquestion that way?
9 wonld == I'm == I'm pretty sure, without knowing any g MR. BAKER: Yeah.
10 better. but we ¢ould trace this fax and we're back and 10 Q. (BY MR. BAKER:) 5o, whait I'm saying is —- Let
11 ultimately find out that it probably was an executive -- 11 me go back and we'll start again.
1z executive araa of -- of DFI, and this ie probably the 12 MR. SLOANE: Ko, you didn't.
13 fax machine ont of thelr area, to Tom, showing Tom 13 Q. ({BY MR, BAKER:) So, you got 19 complaints
14 support of what Mark was talking to him about" -- you . 12 that are diacu.ssed. in Exhibit 3, right?
15 Xnow, "We're having these problems. These complaints 15 A, Um=hum,
16 are arising,™ and so forth. But I'm speculating on i6 Q. Those weren*t all the complaints that you —-
17 that, 17 that DFI l.'md received from Househald, right?
18 Q. Now, in your -- the DFI report that we were bR :) h. Right.
19 talxing abont, Exhibit 3, it's a discussion of 19 -+ 1§ 14 Q. Okay.
20 ¢omplaints; is that right? 20 ‘MR, SLOANE: Objec¢t te the form of the
21 A, Yes. 21 questior. There's ~--
22 Q. Okey. How are those 1% chosen? 22 MR. BAKER: Oh, sorry.
23 A, Date, for one. The -- The elemants of the 23 MR. SLOANE: You Xeep using the phrase from
24 transaction, the appearance af possible viclations, the 24 Household., If you read yenr q‘u.estion & lirtle more
25 story that the consumers were telling us about wbat 25 carefully, you'd see that I wes trying to help you.
Page 167 Page 168
1 Q. [BEY MR. BAKER:} All right. ZXAboutn Bou.sehold, 1 Okjecrion from Mr. Dunne,
2 right? . 2 Answer; "They were representative of many of
3 a. (The witness nods hie head.} 3 the complaints we had recelved at earlier times aod were
4 a. Okay. Do you believe that the 19 complaints 4 very, vary similar to‘ccmplui_nts we raceived subsequent
5 that yon apalyzed in Exhibit 3 are representative of 5 to the date of the report,” period.
[ other complaints received about Rousehold? [ You see that?
7 MR. SLOANE: Aze you e8sking him did he believe 7 A, Yez, I do,
8 at the time or as sitting here today. because —- B Q. And is that accurate testimeny, to the hest of
a MR. BRKER: Did he believe at the time. I 9 your kmowledge?
10 A. I don't now. I == I == I don't know if they i0 A. I'm sure that was accurate testimony.
11 represented other complaints. I do knaw, st the time, 11 Q. Okay, Now, the report itself only deals with
12 snd to this dey, I belisve tLhat they represented other 12 complaints received with respect to ¢complaints from EFC
13 loans, but whether they represented other complaints —— 13 borrowera and not Beneficial borrowers: is that correct?
14 Q. {BY MR. BAKER:} Okay. 14 A There wers no Beneficial borrower complaints
15 A, =- I ¢an't answer. 15 in this report.
16 a. Let's -- Can I direct your attenticn te page 16 Q. All right. Did you ever come to an opinion
17 60 of your zeport -— sorty, of Exhibit i, which fg your 17 that there wera simllar patterns of deceptive practices
pt:} deposition. . . 18 taking place in the Beneficial offices?
19 Dizecting you to starting on 60, line 21, ) 19 A, We believed that.
20 through 61, line -~ page 61, line Ehrae, Question was! 20 Q. And when y'ou say we, 4o you mean DFI?
21 "Did you review other clients other then the 157" 21 A. DFI, yes.
22 Angwer: "Yes." 22 0.. ckay.
23 Question: "And did yon beliewe that those 139 23 k., And ~- Well, DFI and, eventually, other
24 complajnts wars representative or typical of the ones 24 pecple, and they evolved in the multistate.
25 yol received?” 25 Q. And what was the basis for your belief?
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1 A, For ope thing, the -- the -- the sales 1 M5, MARTIN: 14,
2 practices, the —— the way loans appeazed to be 2 MR. BAKER: 14.
3 originated, as I remember, were very similar betweer the 3 A I think I remember there maybe being some -—-
4 organizations. I believe that even some of the 4 some confosion about the dates in this decuoment. I ==
5 locations were the same locations, Beneticial apd BEFC 5 M3. MARTIN: There's no gquestion pending.
3 being in the same location at times, kind of maybe 8 A. Sorry. v
7 sharing employees. But we alse had complaints against 2 M5. MARTIN: Ok, it's ckay.
8 Beneficial. I think we had almost as many complaints 8 {Czross Exhibit 14 was marked for
9 against Beneficial as we did against Housebold, and we 5 identification.)
10 would hawe looked at thope complaints and, ultimately, 10 (A diggousgion was held off the record,)
11 thely -« I wmean, I remember needing to do a report on 11 Q. i{BY MR. BARER:] Okay. BAnd I'll just
12 Baneficial similar to what I did on Fousehold, It Just 12 represent, it does have a sticker on the bottom of this
13 never —- We —- Wa went off op this whole other tangent i3 pege one that ligts it as Exhibit A, the date:
14 and it didn't go there. 14 December 13th, Witness: Crose. You gee that? It's on
i5 Q. Did you start that report? 15 the first page.
15 A, Bey, 1 might have. I can't remmmber. I might 16 A. Yes. ’
17 hava. 17 Q. At the bottom.
ie Q. Okay. 18 50, the question I was going to ask you -- if
19 In your first depositican, an —- in 19 T could direct your artention to Bates number ending in
20 December 189, 2002, you provided, as an exhibit, & list 20 Ba.
21 of the then open complaints. Do yoR recall that? 21 A; I'm there.
22 A, Yeah. 22 7 Q. Okey. And there's mn eriginal file number
23 [«3 Okay. 23 2881. TI'm looking st the first —-
24 A. Yoah, 29 Al Yes.
25 MR, BAKER: Let’s mark this next in order. 25 Q. ~= 2B91l, then it has -- under Zxaminer, it has
Page 171 Page 172
1 listed Exeminer. What does that mean? 1 open complaint, it's been opensd for almost a year and
2 A It means that this file head been moved from 2 noet resclved?
3 processoy == esntry person ~— to an examiner to review. 3 A, Yes.
4 c. Are you familiar with s Danielle Mortenson? 4 Q. Okay.
5 p. Yes. 5 Let me 3ust mark one more document and then
6 Q. What was her rele at the DFI at this time? 6 we'll take & bresk, if you want == for =-
? A Ehe was that person who did the inpuf into r_he 7 MR. SLORNE: Almost done?
8 system for us. She was later replaced =- just sece a 8 MR. BAKER: I'm almost done, actunally.
9 name here ~- I think Wilma Nepsund replaced Danielle &t ] Mark this hext in order.
10 scme point im time. 10 MS. MARTIN: This will be 15,
11 Q. Okay. 8¢, she wWas sort of more the intake 11 MR, BAKER: 15.
12 person? iz {Cress Exhibit 15 was marked for
13 A. Yes. 13 ldentification.}
14 Q. Okay. And then coatinuing on this one chart, 14 . {BY MR, BAKER:} I'm going to ask you to
15 288}, there's » number of days column and it has 337 15 jgnore ﬂm first couple of pages of this document and go
16 days. 1§ to the second-to-last page, which 1s Bates number ending
17 A, Yen, 17 in 78. ’
ig Q. What does that refer to? 18 A, Okay. ‘
13 A The number of —— It shorld be the number of 12 Q. It references == JTt's in the agenda for a
20 days counted from the day the complaint was stamped as 20 meeting that was held between the State of Washington
21 received at DFI. 21 and Household officiels on May 23rd, 2002. Do you sea
22 Q. So, that's how long the complaint had been 22 that?
23 pending? 23 A Yes.
24 A, Yes'. 24 Q. And I believe, at this meeting, Rodin Alleock
25 [+ Okay. 2And, so, and that wmeans thet, as an 25 and Tom Detelich were there, _\a.nd I believe also yourself
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Page 177 : Page 178
1 0. We're here on -- We're here on -- on May 23rd, 1 {Off the recozrd at 2:28 p.m.)
2 2002, CThere's a discussion. Someone from your side 2 {back on the record at 2:41 p.m.}
3 mentions, "By the way, there's a myltistate interesz.™ 3 TEE VIDEQGRARPAER: We are now back an the
4 Was there any discussion between you and Household about 4 recoxd in the continuing depsagition of Charles Cross.
5 the next step to resclve the multistate interest in this 5 This 15 the beginning ¢f disk three. The time is now
[ isaus? 6 2:41 p.m.
7 A, I balieve ~- I belisve we --— 7 Q. [BY MR. BAKER:) GEarlier, you testified thet
8 HR. SLOANE: Objection. Same objection. i} you, My, Gzlietin, Mr. Polidoeri were reviewing documents
E Sorry, Chnek. a in the context of the AG settlement discussions -- 1
10 B, I believe wa hypothesized about that, but we, 10 beliave that's correct; is that right?
11 of course, could not make any statements for what other 11 A, Yes.
12 stptes would do. But I —- But we Ly =- we hypothesized 1z MR. SLOANE: Cbjection. Obdjection. Well,
13 sbout the potential outceme if -- if things bad teo go, 13 beyond the scope.
14 you kmew, te 2 mere adgressive lewvel. 14 A, Yes, and even more data than doc.mnenr_-s.
15 Q. {BY MR. BAXER:) Was there any discussion at 1% Q. {BY MR. BAKER:) Okay.
18 this meeting, to your knowledge, sbout a potestisl 16 A. ' The AGs began to spend a lot of time with
17 settlement between AGs and the multistate gremp and 17 documents., We spent a lot of time with data.
18 Household? hE:] N vid you ever parsonally review any complaints
19 A. 1 don't remember. 13 received frow consumers in other states about
20 Q. Okay. 20 Household's practices? ,
21 Why don't we take a short break. 21 MR, SLOANE: Objection. ¥ell beyond the
22 MR. SLORNE: Yeah, 22 scope,
23 THE VIDECGRAFHER: We are now going off .the 23 A, I don't remenber.
24 record in the continuing deposition of Charles Cross, 23 a. (BY MR, BAKER:) Ckay. Were the documents andg
25 This is the end of tape twe. Time is now 2:28 p.m. 25 materials you received with respect to Housshold's

Page 178 Page 180
1 practice in othar states consistent with what —— with 1 were at least committing oorselves, in intant and
2 the findings theat yoo made in Exhibit 37 2z theory, to try %0 ~- to try to stick with that, being in
E] MR, SLOANE: Same shbjection. 3 solidarity with other states ard bring a large
4 A. Much -- Muck of what the cther states fcund 4 resolution Ior the entire country.
5 #nd produced in our, you Xknow, exchange of materials, 5 Yo have to remexber, thera were only -—-
[3 and so forth, was conzistent with what we found in 5 There -- There weren't 50 states that were -- that were
7 Washington. 7 cerrying this thing. There were a» handful of states
] Q. {BY MR. BDAKER:} Okay. 8 carrying the 50 states -- and that's how the multistates
9 And, in terms of the AG, you're fuili:ar”.‘wich 1 work. You soxrt of take turns carrylng the load. So —-
10 the fact tlihut there wag actually & settlement between 1t Angd there were a lot of states that ended uwp in the
11 Household and the multistate group; is that right? 11 Bettlement and they just sort of signed on st the end
1z MR. SLOANE!: Same objection: Well beyond the iz and they just rode on cur coatteils zight on out through
13 scope, 13 the settlement, and said, "Whatever they say, we —-
14 A. Yes, 14 that's good for us."
15 2. {BY MR. BAKER:} Okay. When, to your 15 So, we had thisz -~ this alleglance to other
1§ koowledge, did thst sgreement come into frultion? 16 4tates holding that -- that together. Although,
17 MR. SLOANE: 5Same objection. HAlaso object to 17 Washington weg elwsys extremely aggressive, so was
ig the form of the question. 18 Mim:esc;tn, Hew York, some other states, extremely
19 A. On ry birthdsy, Cctober 2nd, 2002. 1% aggressive in saying -- threatening, et various points
20 [« 8 (BY MR. BRKER:] Okay. ﬂby didn’t DFI get to 20 in-time, to pull out 2nd actnally file charges, 5S¢, we
21 the peint of filing charges based on the spperent 21 always retained that right and zutherity to file
272 violations found in your DFI report that's Exhibit 37 22 charges, but we hed B commitment to the multistate. We
23 A. Two reascns. The -- Well, mavbe three 23 thought we had a good chance of getting as much for
24 LeRSONS ., 24 Washington zénsuners out of the mwitistate as we could
25 When we started down the mnltistate path, we 25 if wWe Went on aur own.
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1 I ' 50, there was incentive, S0, we could get 1 complianca? ‘
2 sowething for everybody ples us, equivalent to what we 2 R In the early days, I think we did. In the
3 probably could get if we went on our own. And then 3 very early days of complaints coming ip -- and if ]
4 there's the whole rescurce issue -- I mean, in reality, 4 could roll the clock back, I would -— but, in the early
5 it would have been five years of — of our agency's 5 dayx, the compepy's arguments had beep somewhaf
6 life, very ugly -- you know, this stuff would have gone [ convinecing for us, and I think that we ~- wa had a2
7 oo for —— for five years apnd it weuld have bean 8 hage T little bit of trouble coming té grips with what the
] resource drein e=nd thet's -- that's much of the reason 8 consumers were telling us, It dida't == It didn't make
9 why you settle. -] sence, early on, that this would be bippening, that ==
10 G. Okay. A lot of -- of -- Household produced s 10 that a -- such 8 big company, such a well-structured,
11 lot of documents +0 show that they were in compliance i1 well-organized, well-funded company, would be doing
12 with the various federsl and state lawg, incloding ioan 12 these things to consuwmers. It didn't -- didn't make a
13 docaments signed by borrowers. _ 13 lot of sense. But, over a pericd of time, we —-- we —-
14 MR, SLOANE: You talking abosut In connection 14 we changed our beliel om that.
15 with his report? 15 '50, ip the early days, there were documents
16 MR. RARXER: Ysah, 16 that were coming in. Company would -~ would send us the
17 MR. SLOANE: In other words -- 17 disclosures from their files, or whatever, and we'd look
18 MR. BAKFR: He considered that, 18 at themw and say, "Ah, well, consumes must have,™ you
15 Q. (BY MR. BAKER:) You cansidered that as part 19 know, “ignored them," or, "Maybe 2 consumer iesn't
20 of -- and -- &nd found that, despite that, that there e telling the full story,” or whatever, and we would -- we
21 was deceptive practices taking place; is that right? 21’ would largely discount the consumer and —- and slose oul
22 p. Yes. 22 the complaint.
23 Q. Okay. Why didn't you find =« Why atdn't you 23 We reached & tipping point where we just, for
24 rely upon the lomn documants that Household was 24 lack of a batter description, sort of stood around,
25 producing to determine that thare was, in faet, 25 looking at each other, sayix;g, you know, at some point,
Page 183 Page 184
1 you know, we're having trouble believing this any i time mnd your -~ your mind hax changed.
2 longey, thas answars we were getting. And, 85, there 2 And it was no different with this case, so --
3 bécame == Thera was 4 polpt in time == late 2001, darly 3 50, we reached a point where -- where the
4 2002 -- where we [ell we wers getbting a ot of 4 relationship seemed to be so disingenuons that —- it was
5 diginformation from the company, a lot of -~ He wera —- 5 almost like etuff was being fabriceted to convince us,
6 We were extremely unhappy with the response wa were 6 and we didn't believe it any longer.
7 getting from the company. We stepped truzting the 1 0. Did your experience with FAMCO have anything
8 respopsa. And we started more and mere believing what 8 to do with it? In other words where —— where the paper
[} wea saw from the consumers, what the ¢onsumers Were 9 files looked clean, baot, in fact, there ware deceptive
10 telling uve. 10 practices taking place?
11 Documentation is one part of & case; and 11 A FAMCO hed nothing te do with osur impression of
12 regulaters do have a tendency o sort of get blinders 12 Bousehold. Household was completely responsible for cur
13 on, saying, "#ell, it's in the file. ft must be truas. 13 impression of Household. FAMCO educated us to learn how
14 Hey, it came out of a computer. It's there. Somabody 14 to look beyond whar was being said and FAMGO —- The
15 must have gotten it.” But you hear enough stories about 16 aariier complaints T was talking about where we didn't
16 consumers saying, "1 never sew 1t." er, "Thait's not how 1€ maybe believe the consumers as much as we should hawve,
17 it was ezplained to me," and s Zozth, and you start to 17 thet was -- that was -- those complaints go back to the
18 change your mind over time. 18 early days of FAMCO, before we started to learn more
1% That's how all these predatory lending gases 18 about‘. how deception ecould take place, migrepresentation
20 ccn'ze' about. If you -- you Lake elmost any predatory 20 could take place, now pecple could be trained te lie
21 lending case, that I can think of, and yon go back to 21 with the truth, and all of thase —- these sales
22 the atart of time, the regulators wers not saying, you 22 practices that we hadn't -- I came out of the banking
23 know, consumers were harmed, here. It always kind of 23 world. That kind eof stuff didn't really take place in
24 startg off with not really beliaving that what peaple zd the banking world. Hand, so, I had to be educared,
25 ars seying 1s it, end then you == it grabs tractiom with 25 So, FAMCO sducated me, educated the
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Page 121

MR. HKLOECKER: To the extent you
understand you <an answer.
I den't knew.

(By Mr. Davis) That's fair enough. Do you know

what "not FFIEC OKY, means with respect to Private

i

Label?
My recollection is that it meant that they were not
FFIEC compliant for this product.

End the next phrase reads, "Estimated impact
5250MM, bazed on &0% of $460MM sccruing »>90 DED
loans reported by Blarzer", do you know what that
santence means?

My belief of what it means is that the cost was
estimated at 250 millicn to make this product FFIEC
compliant.

Ckay. The next product down it says Persconal
Unsecured. Do yau Kpow what that means?

It is again a specifiec business product of
Household.

And, again, it says, "Mot FFIEC OK". Do you know
what that means?

It would just mean that it's not FFIEC compliant,
Gkay. &nd then it says, "Combination -of recency
and centractual rules".

Do you know what that

references?

Page 123

informaticn referenced here from Heusehold?
I don't know what specific information we received.
Okay. Did you receive -- strike that. Did vells
Farge follow EFFIEC rules?

MR. KLOECKER: Object to the lack of
foundation. Te the extent you understand you can
ANSWer.

MS. BEST: Objection as well,
You're going teo have to define it.
(By Mr. Davis| Okay. Define what?z
Did we follew it.
Oh, okay. So I'd tike te focus yeur attentien back
on Ezhibit 24, which we're still on. And I'd like
te take vou to the first paragraph. And it says,
"Blazer delinguency and loss rates reflect a
finance company/subprime customer base and are
generally consistent with results in Wells Farge
Financial."

The first guestion I have is: Was Wells
Farge Financial subject to FFIEC regulations?
At this time? !
Correct.

MR. KLOECKER: Le&t me just throw in an

objection here. I think when ygu talk about wWells

Fargo, overall there's a let of different
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Page 122

Ha.

Do you know what the underlined 500 millien figure
refers to?

Not specifically.

Do you have a general understanding?

My belief is that it is an estimated cost to make
this pertfelic FEIEC compliant.

The last sentence in that cell reads, "Significant
range of risk deperding on exact composition of
pertfelic and adherence to reage pelicy." Do you
know what that means?

Yes.

And what does it mean?

It means that there can be significant variability
in this estimate.

I'd like to ask you to flip the page if I may teo
785. The heading reads Information Reguired Prior
to Executive Review., Gould you just scan that list
for a moment, please.

Okay.
okay. Do you know whether --. Did you have a role
in obtaining any of this information from
Househeld?

I don't know if specifically this information.

Do you knew whether Wells Fargo obtained any of the

Page 124

cperations and legal compliance is a --. I think
you're asking for a legal conclusion. To the

extent you understand the standards for particular
operations and can testify about that, you can
answer,
My belief is they were not operating under FFIEC
compliant standards at the time.
[By Mr., Davis) I'd like to focus vour attentien on
a nevw exhibit which i3 merked Exhibit 25, Bates
stamped WF 001531. And --. Well, coculd you just
take a moment te review the document, please.

Do you recognize this?
Ne.
If you focus on the bottom E-mail, the original
message, there's a Frem line and it says May, Todd

and there's some brackets, Is that your E-mail

address?
Yes.
Qkay. Does that mean that you sent this E-mail?

Most likely, yes.
Okay. Do you remember why you sent this E-mail?
Not specifically.

Ckay., The court reporter just handed you a
document marked Exhibit 26. I'd like you to just

set that te one side for a moment, please,
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your Honor.

I guess the one issue is this issue of reliance and
classwide reliance. And the —- tﬁey have one —-- they have an
opportunity tc rebut that presumption through the-
truth—on—the—mafket defense. And that's something that they
should put cn in this trial, and they intend to put on in this
trial. They sought some of the plaintiffs' discovery; and
your Honor's January 29, 2007, order made clear that they did
not need plaintiffs' discovery in order to rebut the
presumption reliance on the issue of the truth-on-the-market.
So that -- we envision that being litigated in this case. 3o
that's a reliance element that needs to be litigated on a
classwide basis.

With respect to the second phaée, we envision -- if
we're successful with a verdict, liability wverdict, a per
share damages calculation by this jury, we would envision
expert input into a formula on how you calculate damages for
the class members in this case. Whether you use LIFO, FIFO,
whether you have in-and-out traders, how you would calculate
the damages, that formula, that would go into a notice that
would go to class members that would then £fill out the claim
forms.

End then the.real issue is what do we do after that.
Do we have what they've wanted, thch is full-blown discovery

on all of the class members in order teo rebut that presumpticn
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motion for summary judgment, Judge, well, we don't think
that's relevant; we're not geing that route. We're sort of
doing this miasma kind of fraud, that if you fail to tell
people that you were a bad actor, that's the fraud.

S0 -- but whether or not fhat was appropriate, we
could discuss separately. But for purposes of Professor
Fischel, their loss causation expert, the guy that a jury
would leock to teo say here's the fraudulent statement -- on
this fraudulent statement, the stock -- the inflation went up
this way. When that statement was shown to be false, it came
down this way. He just worked on the down leqg for some
reascn. But he did say, your Honor, that he found no new
artificial inflation, no introduction of artificial inflation
into the price of Household stock from the very first day of
the class period, where he assumed that there was some already
in place -- and, as you know, your Honor, we have statute of
repose preoblems with that. From the very first day of the
class period for two-and-a-quarter years, until November 15,
2002 -~ no, I'm sorry, 2001, that same artificial inflation
that he was assuming came in the dcor at the start cf the
class period stayed exaétly in place, didn't gc up, didn't go
down, staved exactly as is. That could not be further in --
that could not be further from the real stock —-

THE COURT: If thelr expert fails to show that there

was inflation in price, you win. But right now that's not
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"Sclenter requires an extreme departure from the standards of
ordinary care."

THE COURT: Do you agree with that?

MR. BURKHOLZ: Not necessarily, I don't.

I'm just looking at the Ernst quecte that they cited
in their opposition to our scienter and it doesn't exactly say

that. It says, "The term 'scienter' refers tc a mental state

THE COURT: 1I'm sorry. A little louder, please.

MR. BURKHOLZ: Yes.

The term -- the case -- that they cite -- at least
the quote they cite from Ernst -- is, "The term 'scienter’
refers to a mental state embracing intent to deceive,
manipulate or defraud.".

MS. BEER: Ernst is -- this is at Page 193 of Ernst &
Ernst vs. Hochfelder, which is 425 U.S. 185: "In this
cpinion, the term 'scienter' refers to a mental state
erbracing intent to deceive, manipulate or defraud. In
certain areas cf the law, recklessness is considered to be a
form of intenticnal conduct for pu%poses of imposing liability
for some act."

So, it;s nof an_issue of not needing to prove intent.
It's a question.of how intent is pfoved.

And the Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit

answered that guestion in Higginbotham vs. Baxter
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Different from eagh other or in addition to?
MS. SMITH: 1In addition to.

THE COURT: Okay.

Which one has the additional cover?

MS. SMITH: 550 has the additional cover e-mails,

your Honor,

THE COURT: Is that 16 or 177

MR. DROSMAN: Your Honor, if you'd like, I can hand

you up Exhibit 550.

document

first --

THE COURT: You don't neea £o. You guys can do this.
I want to know if there’s ény difference between the
that I excluded, which is D17, and this document.

MR. DROSMAN: "Yes. The answer is "Yes."

THE COURT: What is the difference?

MR. DROSMAN: The difference is the first -- the

four pages of this document, Exhibit 550, were not

contained on the document that yeou excluded.

S50, to the extent that the remaining pages of Exhibit

550 are contained, we can take thosé off.

THE COURT: <OCkay. That will be the ruling.

MR. DROSMAN: This is —-- Exhibit 596, your Honor, 1is

-= the next one. -

1ight of

THE COURT: What's the cobjection?
MS. SMITH: The objection is, your Henor, that in

your ruling on the spoliation motion, this document
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which would be used likely with Dr. Litan if he testifies, the
underlying disclesures that are referenced here with the big
green check marks, I believe plaintiffs are aware, are
discussed at great length in Dr. Litan's report and in the
exhibits to his report.

MR. DOWD: With that representation, we'll evaluate
it and decuble check, if it's going to be used only with Litan
and the source to his report.

I think our.next -- we have the same concern with
Exhibits 541-01 through 04. I'm just not sure if these are
used with a particular witness or --

MS. COHN: These would also be used with Dr. Litan.

MR. DOWD: With that, we'll just save it for cross,
your Honor,.

MR. BURKHOLZ: Next objection we have is to 541 --
545-01 through 05. |

THE COURT: I'm sorry. These ére 5= ==

MR. BURKHCLZ: 545-01.

THE CCURT: 545. OQkay.

MR. BUﬁKHOLZ: Our basic objection is this is a
hypothetical that is not in Dr. Bajaj's report. He does have
a different hypothetical involving an oil well and discleosure
of news regarding fire that he describes twice in his report.
But this is something new that's come from the defendants.

MR. HALL: Your Honor, I understand Mr. Burkholz'
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point to be that the experts should be constrained essentially
to the words that are in their report.and not simply the
concepts that are in their report. BAnd we can agree to that.
And with the Court's permission, we'll reevaluate our
demonstratives in that context.

THE COURT: It sounded wonderful, but TI'm not sure
what it meant.

MR. HALL: Your Honor, the point being, in light of
your Honor's earlier instructions that the experts, under Rule
26, will be limited to what they actually say in their reports
construed narrowly instead of construsd broadly is my point.

THE COURT: Well, I don't know about that point. But
with respect to experts who have been hired to give opinions,
who have writteﬁ reports and have been deposed, the use of
previously undisclosed hypotheticals to make their points at
trial is -- unless there are some unusual circumstances -- not
geing to be aliowed.

MR. HALL: Yes, your Honor.

THE CbURT: Okay.

MR. HALL: We can withdraw this exhibit, your Honor.
I believe we can probably productively, in light of that
guidance, your Hencr, meet and confer with the plaintiffs and
eliminate several issues.

MR. BURKHOLZ: Okay.

THE COURT: Qkay.
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PROSPECTIVE JURCR EGAN: Correct.

MR. KAVALER: A bank?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR EGAN: Correct.

MR. KAVALER: Sir?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR GALVAN: No mortgage.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR VELIZ: I have a mortgage,
refinanced once for better rates. Don't know -- my wife
handled all that. She just said, "Pay the bill."

{(Laughter.)

MR. KAVALER: I know that speech. I've heard that
speech.

I noticed something interesting. All of you except
one said "banks." One of you sald "finance company.”

Do you all know the difference betwesen a bank and
finance company?

{Some preospective jurors nodded and some shook their

heads.)

MR. KAVALER: I see scme Yes'es and some No's.

We all kncow what a bank is. A bank takes deposits.
Tellers -- when I was a kid, banks had tellers. Now they have

machines. People deposit their money in a bank; and, then,
the bank lends their money to, for example, pecple buying
homes .

Does anyons know what a finance company 1s -- what

the difference is?
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161
{No response.}
MR. KAVALER: Sir, you're a banker.
PRCSPECTIVE JURCOR GALVAN: It's not a bank.
MR. KAVALER: 1It's not a bank. There you go.
A finance company doss not take deposits. Did you

realize will that? A finance company is a company that
borrows money in the market wholesale, if you will, and rents
it out to customers retail. And it makes its money on the
differential between the rate at which it borrows the money
and it sells the money -- rents 1t to the customers.

Is that clear to everybody?

(Prospective jurors nodding.)

MR. KAVALER: Okay.

Household was never a bank. Household International,

the big parent cempany, owned a couple of banks -- a small
portion of the business. Basically, the business Mr. Gilmer
ran was a finance company -- a consumer loan business.

Is everybody comfortable with that? Do you
understand the difference?

{Prospective jurors nodding.)

MR. KAVALER: Sc, when you think of bank as this case
unfolds, T want to you remember it's all ILine and good to
think of banks, but vyou're not thinking of Household.

Household is a different kind ¢f company governed by

different rules.



TAB 8



1¢

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

IN THE UNITED

253

STATES DISTRICT COURT

FPOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINCIS

EAST
LAWRENCE E. JAFFE PENSICN P
on behalf of itself and all
others similarly situated,
Plaintiff,

vs.

HOUSEHCLD INTERNATIONAL,
et al.,

Defendants.

TRANSCRIPT ©
BEFORE THE HONORABLE

APPEARANCES:

For the Plaintiff:

INC.,

ERN DIVISION

LAN,

02 C 5883

Illinois
2009

)
)
)
)
}
)
) No.
) .
)
) Chicago,
}  March 31,
) 9:00 a.m.
VOLUME 2
F PROCEEDINGS - TRIAL
RONALD A. GUZMAN, and a jury

COUGHLIN STOIA GELLER RUDMAN &

ROBBINS LLP

BY: MR. SPENCER A. BURKHOLZ
MR. MICHAEL J. DOWD
MR. DANIEL 5. DROSMAN
MS. MAUREEN E. MUELLER

655 West Broadway

Suite 1900

San Diego, Califernia 92101

(619} 231-1058

COUGHLIN "STOIA GELLER RUDMAN &
ROBBINS LLP

BY: MR. DAVID CAMERON BAKER
MR. LUKE Q0. BROOKS
MS. AZRA 7. MEHDI
100 Pine Street
Suite 2600
San Francisceo, Califernia 94111
(415) 288-4545



02:08:08

02:08:20

02:08:35

02:08:39

02:08:57

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Ghiglieri - direct
378

Q. Did you also graduate from Georgia State University Law
School?
A, I did.
¢. And that was in June of 19912
A. Yes.
Q. When did ycu attend the University of -- or the Georgia
State University Law School?
A. I attended it in Atlanta for four years at night.
Q. And why did you attend at night?
A. Because I wag working full-time. I had a senior position
at the Comptroller of the Currency, which is the OCC.
Q. Are you also licensed to practice law in Georgia?
Al I am.
Q. And you're licensed to practice law in Washington, D.C.,
as well?
A. Yes.
Q. And both those licenses are inactive currently; is that
right?
A. That's correct.
Q. Now, let's talk a little bit about your experience.

You've spent -- yocu spent -- 25 years as a state and
federal regulator in the banking industry; is that correct?
A, That's correct.
Q0. And you began your tenure as a Regulator at the 0CC; is

that right?
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379
A. Yes.
Q. What does the "0OCC" gtand for?
A. It's the "Comptroller of the Currency," which is the
regulator of national banks in the country.
Q. And you worked for the OCC from 1974 to 1992; is that
right?
A. Yes.
Q. From 1974 tc 1982, you worked as a National Bank Examiner
in Chicago, Illinois; is that right?
A. That's right.
Q. And tell me what you were responsikle for deing while you
were the National Bank Examiner in it Chicago?
A. Well, actually, I was based in Joliet, Illincis; and, as a
field examiner, I would go from bank to bank and examine their
books and records, making sure they were complying with the
law and checking on the quality of their assets, to make sure
they were sclvent.

And I did that for approximately seven years.
Q. Okay.
And what was your jurisdiction during that time?

What states were you responsible for?
A. I was based in Joliet and I examined banks in the
Chicagecland area and, also, the upper peninsula of Michigan;
and, then, they would call us in to do the big banks in

Detroit and Kalamazoo.
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Q. Okay.
Were you responsible for a team of examiners at that
point?
A. After I got commissioned as a National Bank Examiner, I
was.
Q. Now, did you determine compliance with national banking
laws in that position?
A. Yes.
Q. 2nd did you also teach courses atlthe OCC schools in the
areag in investment securities during thét time?
A. Yes. And, also, white collar crime.
Q. Now, let's fast forward to 1982.
You mentioned that your posgsition changed at that
time; is that right?
A. Yes.
Q. You were still with the OCC in 18827
A. Yes.
And I went to Washington.
Q. And, at that point, you became a Special Projects Examiner
in Washington, D.C., with the CCC?
A. Yes.
Q. And you worked in that position from 1982 to 1985; is that
correct?
A. Yes,

Q. What did you do as a Special Projects Examiner in
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Washington?

A. And, actually, it was 1982 to 19384.

As a Special Projects Examiner, I was responsible for
a certain area of the country and I supervised the failing
banks.

and, so, I would monitor them; and, when it was time
to close them, I would actually go out and close it on behalf
of the Comptroller of the Currency.

Q. Did you also formulate a book called the "Administrative
Action Book" during that time?
A, Yes.

During that time, we started to see a rise in the
number of problem banks. BAnd the person that was in charge of
our division said, "We have to have consistency in the
enforcement actions that we're taking against banks."

And, s¢, he gave me the responsibility of pulling
together a gsample enforcement articles, so that everyone in
the United States would have some consistency when they were
formulating enforcement actions.

Q. And was that administrative action book, was it actually

published and distributed to people in the field?

A. UNot in the field, but in the offices. &2And the legal staff

would actually use this to draft up the enforcement actions.
2nd it's still being used in an updated wversion, of

course, today.
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Q. Now, you mentioned that you left your position as Special
Projects Examiner in 1984; is that right?
A. Yes.
Q. And, at that point, you stayed with the OCC; is that
correct?
A, Yes.

I was promoted to be the Executive Assistant to the
top policy maker, the Senior Deputy Contreoller For Bank
Supervision.

Q. And where was that position?
A. In Washington, D.C., also.
Q. Okay.

And did you act as the Senior Policy Adviser to the

Senior Deputy Comptrcller at that time?

A, Yes.

Q. What did that involve?

A. I advised him on all policymaking issues regarding bank
supervision pelicy; and, I also coordinated all of the senior
level policy issues with the FDIC and the Federal Reserve and
the Conference of State Bank Supervisors and the foreign
governments, as well, through the Basel Committee.

Q. Was there an emphasis on enforcement matters at that time?
A. Yes. 2and I would review every document that he would
sign, including numercus enforcement actions.

Q. What does that mean, "an enforcement action”?
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A. An enforcement action is what regulators have the
authority to take when they find practices that they want to
change in the banks; and, the state regulators and the federal
regulators have the same sort of enforcement authority.

They can take a cease-and-desist action and say, "You
have to stop doing what you're doing," or they can take a
lesser action.

It's always in writing, so that's why we wanted the
Administrative Action Book, so they could pull sample articles
from that for those enforcement actions.

Q. Now, you left your Executive Assistant to the Senicr
Deputy Comptroller in 1986; is that right?

A, Yes.

Q. And you remained with the OCC gtill; is that correct?

A, I did.

Q. What was your next position?

A. I was promoted to the Director For Bank Supervision and we
had six districts at the OCC at the time, and there were six
Directors For Bank Supervision and I was the Director For Bank
Supervigion in the Southeastern Digtrict in Atlanta.

Q. And what jurisdiction did that cover?

A. We had nine statesg in our district and my responsibilities
were over all the large banks -- the ones that were over a
billion dollars -- and, then, another portfolic was all the

problem banks.
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Q. And, then, in 1988, you left that position and you
remained with the 0CC still; is that correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And you moved on to act as the Atlanta Field Cffice
Director; is that right?
A. That's right.

My bossg came to me and said, "Would you mind taking a
lateral and be the Atlanta Field Office Director because we're
going to shut down our Richmond office and we're going to
consolidate them, and this is going to be the largest one that
we have in the country?"

And since I already started law school, this was a
perfect opportunity for me to finish law school and do
something different.

Q. What were your responsibilities when you acted as the
Atlanta Field Officer?

A. The Atlanta Field Office Director was responsible for all
the community banks in a five-state area and all the
examiners. 8o, I would hire the examiners. I would train
them. I would supervige them, along with this portfolic of
banks.

Q. Now, in 19922, you left the office of the Comptroller of
the Currency; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. 2aAnd you took a positiocn as the Texas State Banking
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Commissioner; is that right?
A, Yes.
Q. And, in that position, did you supervise over 56 billion
dollars in banking assets?
A. Yes,
Q. And is the Texas state banking -- is that the third
largest state banking system in the country?
A. At the time, it was the third largest behind New York and
California, in terms of assets -- in terms of size of banks,
dollar-wise. But it was only the second largest behind
Illinois, in terms of numbers of banks, because both of those
states came late to intrastate branching.
Q. Were you appointed to that position or how did you obtain
that position?
A. I was asked to apply for the position.

They were looking for a banking commissioner and I
went over and interviewed and they hired me. 2And I reported
to an oversight board, which was gubernatorial appointee.

So, I was not appointed by the governor, but I worked
for an oversight board that was appointed.

Q. Did you manage employees when you were the Texas State
Banking Commiggioner?

A. Yes, I did.

¢. How many employees did you oversee?

A. I had -- I think I had -- 150 employees; and, then, I also
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managed, from an administrative standpoint, the activities of
the other two sister agencies: The Savings and Loan
Department and the Consumer C;edit Department.
Q. Did you also manage a $12 million budget as the Texas
State Banking Commissioner?
A. Yes.
Q. As the Texas State Banking Commissicner, were you involved
in the statutory medernization of certain statutes or laws
that existed at that time?
A. Yes. The Banking Code was from 1943; and, when I got
there, I thought, "You know, the first thing I need to do is
see if we can't update these laws -- these banking laws -- to
bring them into the modern era."

And, so, I formed a committee and we worked for two
vears and we were able to get our banking laws updated.
Q. Did you alsc coordinate supervisory efforts for problem
instituticns?
A, Yes.
Q. Tell me about that.
A. Well, all of the banks in the state of Texas -- in the
United States, we have a dual banking system. And, so, if you
want a bank, you can either go to the federal government,
which is the Comptroller of the Currency, or you can go to
your State Banking Commissicner, which there's one in every

state.
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And, so, anfbody that had a state bank, I was
responsible for overseeing. And, of course, if they got into
trouble, then I was responsible for trying tc rehabilitate
them or taking an enforcement action or whatever needed to be
done.

Q. Did you serve at the same time as Executive Director of
the Texas Finance Commisgion?

A. Yeé.

C. What did that involve?

A. It, basically, what it involved -- for the Finance
Commission, which was the oversight board, there was the
Banking Department, and I was the Commissioner of the Banking
Department; there was a Savings and Loan Department; and, the
Consumer Credit Department.

And just from an administrative standpoint, I would
sort of manage the meetings.

They had public meetings and various studies that
they had to do. 8o, I would do the -- manage that work omn an
administrative basis.

0. During all this time, were you also the Secretary and
Treasurer of the Conference of State Bank Supervisors?

A. Yes.

Q. BAnd what did that -- what did the Conference of State Bank
Supervisors consist of?

A. I was the 8Secretary/Treasurer during one of the years I
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was Banking Commissioner for seven-plus years. And the
Conference of State Bank Supervisors is the national
organization of all the banking commissicners. And some of
the Commissioners have different titles, like "Director" or
whatever.

But, basically, there's one from every state in the
four territories and we had an organization that would monitor
laws across the country. We would go and testify before
Congress on various issues that affected the state banking
systems.

Q. DNow, in 1999, vyou left your position as the Texas State
Banking Commigsioner; is that right?

ZA. That's right.

Q. And you founded your own company; is that correct?

A. Yes, T did.

Q. What's the name of your company?

A. It's Ghiglieri & Company.

Q. Tell us what Ghiglieri & Company does?

A. Well, I do basically three things. I do a lot of bank
consulting. And I do, for example, if they run afoul of the
regulators, and the regulators are asking them to do certain
things, I will go in and do a maﬁagement study or a strategic
planning session or something for them.

I also do expert witness work, such as I'm deoing here

today.
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1 portfolio, since that's the largest asset.

2 &ind the past due percentages are very ilmportant, to

3 see what the quality of the lcan portfelio is.

4 So, the regulators don't want the lenders to be
02:24:51 5 masking that number to them. And, so, that's one of the

b things that I would lock at when I was a field examiner.

7 Q. Let's now turn to the opinions you actually reached 1n

8 this case.

9 Did yecu reach any conclusion about whether Household

02:25:05 10 engaged in predatory lending practices during the 19599 to 2002
11 time frame?
12 A. I did reach an opinion.
13 Q. And tell us what that is.
14 A. My opinicn is, after lcoking at everything, that Householid
02:25:18 15 engaged in company-wide systemic predatory lending.
i6 Q. Now, did you alsc reach any opinion or conclusion as to
17 whether Household hid the guality of its loans during the 1999
18 to 2002 time frame?
19 A. I did reach an ocpinion.
02:25:35 20 Q. And please tell the jury what that opinion is.
21 A. My opinion, after looking at everything that I looked at,
22 is that Housshold utilized re-aging practices tc mask their
23 delinguencies.
24 Q. Let's -- before we talk in more detail about how you

02:25:51 25 arrived at those opinions and what you found that supported
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and, then, I would formulate how many loans I wanted

to look at and whatever else I wanted to look at on theilr
balance sheet. So, I would look at the books, the records,
internal memos, board minutes, things like that.
0. What procedure did you use to arrive at your conclusions
in this case?
A. I used a similar procedure. Some of the documents were
different, but I looked at the loan-type documents that were
available. I looked at complaints. I loocked at the
Househcld's responses to the complaints. T looked at
examination reports —-- the ones that were availakle. I Jlooked
at the company's responses to those examinations.

And, then, I also was able to have access to the
deposition testimony, which is where the employees of
Household were questicned. And I had the ability to read
their -- the answers that they had.

Q. Did you prepare a demonstrative exhibit to assist you in
explaining the procedure or process that yeou used in this case
to develop your opinions?

E. I did.

0. TI'll show you what has been marked as plaintiffs’
demonstrative Exhibit 34 for identification.

What does this exhibit show?

A, This exhibit shows the different materials that I looked

at: Loan documents, internal e-mails and memos and reports.
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tell the jury what that term means?
A. Well, "predatory lending” is scort of an umbrella term
that's come into vogue in the last ten years or so, to
encompass a variety of practices that are either deceptive to
the customer or unfair -- contain unfair terms.

In the olden days, we used to call it mortgage fraud;
but, these days they call it predatory lending. And a lot of
the practices that we locked at in the '70s -- for exampie,
insurance packing, compliance with Reg Z, things like that --
a lot of these practices are brought under this umbrella of
predatory lending.

Q. Now, when you performed your analysis in this case, did
you review any documents to sort of survey the definition of
"predatory lending"” that existed in the 19%9 to 2002 time
frame?

A, I did.

0. What documents did you survey to sort of see what material
was availlable at that point?

&A. Well -- and this is something that I always do when I'm
serving as an expert -- I want to know what the regulatory
landscape was like at the time.

And, so, in this time frame, I looked at any
issuances from the Comptroller of the Currency. I locked at
any issuances from the Office of Thrift Supervision, because

beth of them regulated Household. I lcoked at anything that
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settlement 1s not admitted toc show that Household was at fault
or that Household engaged in any wrongdeing in the matter that
was settled. Again, the evidence is admitted only for the
limited purpose of showing whether the settlement affected the
price of Household stock and should be considered and may be
considered only for that purpose.

I guess I want to make sure that I have this correct
from the attorneys. The instruction regarding the informaticn
assumed by the varicus expert opinions, do you want that
instruction given at this point as well?

MR. HALL: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. I believe I have the language
that you folks agreed to. If it is, it's acceptable to me and
I will deliver it to the jury. If I misspeak, let me know and
we will make the appropriate correction.

During the course cf testimony by expert witnesses
who you may hear, you may hear evidence regarding the category
of decuments I have already told yeou about. Evidence
regarding publicity, notice, price, and things of that nature
will be explained to you during the course of the expert's
testimony.

The underlying information that you receive in this
manner must not be considered by you for the purpose of
determining -- must not be considered by you as evidence of

the truth of the infermation but rather is being admitted for
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the limited purpose cof showing you -- or assisting you to
evaluate the expert witness' copinion and how sound that
opinion is.

The underlying opinion must nct be used by you for
any other purpose than to evaluate the opinion of the expert
witness.

You may proceed.

MR. DROSMAN: Thank you, your Honor.

BY MR. DROSMAN:

Q.. Ms. Ghiglieri, before the break I asked you whether you
preparea a demonstrative exhibit to assist you in explaining
your conclusion that Household engaged in a variety of
predatory practices during the 1999-to-2002 time frame.

Did you prepare such an exhibit?

A, I did.

Q. Would that assist you in explaining your testimony?

A. Yes, it would.

Q. At this time I will show you what has been marked as
Plaintiffs' Demonstrative Exhibit 29 for identification.

What are the entries on Plaintiffs' Exhibit 297
A. These are the various predatory lending practices that I
found when I was reviewing all of the documents.

Q. Let's take the first predatory lending practice listed,
the effective or eguivalent rate.

Can you tell the jury what that is?
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Down one more paragraph it says, '"The Penalty Trap."

"One of Kahr's favorite strategiles was to trap
customers with penalty fees for late payments or going over
credit limits. That had the virtue not only of providing
direct fee income but also of permitting Providian to raise
interest rates as high as 24 percent annually.”

Soc there were similarities between what I saw at
Household on his suggestions and what he had suggested to
Providian.
0. I will show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs'
Exhibit 347 for identification.

(Document tendered.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Ms. Chiglieri, do you recognize Plaintiffs’' Exhibit 3472
A, I do.
Q. What is it?
BA. This is one ¢f the documents that I used to formulate my
opinions that Household engaged in widespread and systemic
predatory lending.
Q. What is the document?
A. This is a document that Paul Creatura —-- it has a little
note to Gary Gilmer, and this is a summary of a meeting that
was held with Andrew Kahr on December 18th, 1998.

MR. DROSMAN: Your Honor, at this time plaintiffs

offer Exhibit 347 into evidence. I believe there has been no
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A. I reviewed a document called First Mortgage Sales. And it
had a couple different iterations over the time period that I
looked at it. And in there, it trained the employees how to
derive that effective rate that concealed the true annual
percentage rate from the customer.

And then I also looked at a document regarding
insurance sales. &And in there, it taught the employees how to
assume that the customer wanted the insurance, called the
assumptive close. And it taught them how to just
automatically put that insurance on the loan documents.

0. Did you review any training by a man named Lew Waltex?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And who is Lew Walter?

A. He was a training officer in the northwestern division of
Household.

Q. Now, let's take a look at Exhibit 37%, which T placed
before yeu and defense counsel.

Do you recognize that document?

A. I do.

Q. What is 1it?

A. This is a document -- it's a multipage document. There's
a fax cover on top. And it's from Reb O'Han tc Tom Detelich.
Tt's dated May 20, 2002. And there is an e-mail attachment to
it on the second page, and there's some other pages here too.

Q. Why do veu recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 37972
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Z. This is one of the documents that I've locked at in
formulating my opinions.

MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiff's offer Exhibit 379 into
evidence.

MR. KAVALER: Your Heonor, I believe this is a limited
purpoese document.

THE COURT: Tt will be admitted. The jury has
already been instructed on the limited purpcse evidence.

MR. DROSMAN: Thank you, your Honor.
BY MR. DROSMAN:
0. Let's talk about Plaintiffs' Exhibit 37%. You mentioned
that this was a fax freom Rob C'Han to Tom Detelich. Who is
Reb O'Han?
A. Rob O'Han was one of the district general managers at
Househeold, I believe was his title.
0. Was he a sales cofficer?
A. Yes. The sales staff repcrted up through him.
0. And what about Tom Detelich?
A. Tom Detelich was a senior officer at Household. T can't
remember his exact title.
0. And he was an officer in the consumer lending business
unit; is that right?
A. I believe so.
C. A managing director in that unit?

A, Yes.
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Q. Could you take a look at the second page of the document,
page ending 075.

Is there anything on that page that appears to be an

e-mail that supports your opinlons in this case?

A. VYes.

Q. And can you tell me what that is?

L. Yss. This is an e-mail regarding a discussion about

how -- what they're deoing in Florida. It says Florida review
is the subject. And it was written from someone in human
resources to Scott Schneider, and it was forwarded to Rob
O'Han.

And if you look at the -- it says, Here is the
summary of the timeline of the issues, July 19839. And that's
hard tc read, but I'11 see if I can read it for you.

Tt says, Lew Walter rolled out the First Mortgage
Sales workshop to all HFC sales divisions, with the exception
of southwest, July 1999 to ARugust 199%. The southeast
division was rolled out approximately July 1999. The workshop
workbook or -- I think there's a word missing there. I think
it should say contained -- a worksheet on the biweekly plan
versus the 30-year program, equivalent rate. The eguivalent
rate would be described as the rate that would ke needed 1f
they were to pay the same amount of interest over a 30-year
term at a bank compared to our propoesed loan. The form was

designed as a tool for the AEs -- and that's account
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executives -- to work up the numbers so that they could do
comparisons. The worksheet was not to be distributed to the
customers.

Q. BSo this shows that the equivalent rate training was rolled

cut in July of 199%; is that right?
A. Yes. It was part of that First Mortgage Sales document
that I looked at.
Q. And why is that significant to your opinions in this case?
A. Well, because Household always said in its responses to
the regulators and its public discussions in the press that
this particular practice among others were the result of a
rogue enmployee or a rogue branch. And that wasn't true. This
was what the emplovees were trained to do nationwide. And I
saw evidence of it z2ll over the country in many locatiocns.
aAnd, here, they're talking about it in Florida.
Q. Now, when you say rogue employee, you're talking about
some bad apple at Household; is that what ycu mean?
A. Well, that's what I assume Household meant by saying rogue
employee or rogue branch. It only happened over there.
0. And if you turn to page ending 077, there appears to be
another e-mail with a catalog of some customer complaints.

Can you tell me whether that's significant to your
opinion?
A. Yes, it 1is.

Q. 2And what's significant about page ending 077 tec your
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opinion?
A. Well, this is a -- let's see if we can --
Q0. You can Jjust testify to it.
A, Okay. This is an articulaticn cof several complaints.
On -- the customer was complaining that -- one, for example,

was a customer named Edwards. And it says, Customer claims
HFC promised a fix rate of 7.38 for an 18-year mortgage. The
contract states 30 years for 13.7 APR.

And several more like that.

2 customer named Osmel, customer says —- sald sales
office told him the rate would be 6.4 for 16 years, but
instead the contract shows a rate of 10.354 for 30 years.

8o this is just an example of how -- and it's up
there now -- the effective rate was being given to the
customer instead of the annual percentage rate, which is the
APR, which is the only rate that's suppcsed to be given to the
customer.

0. And why is that significant to your opinion?

&. Well, especially in the location, this was in the
southeast, in Florida and South Carelina -- and, again,
Household would say, well, it's only one branch or it's only
one employee. But what I saw from the complaints, this was
taking place in a lot of places. BAnd it was the same -- the
same scheme. They would say they told me this for a shorter

period of years when, in fact, the contract rate was higher
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for 30 years. Sc it was the effective rate training that the
employees received in the Lew Walter training First Mortgage
Sales.
Q. If you turn to page ending 080.

Can you tell us what this is?

&A. This is actually -- this 1is actually a decument that
some —- even though it says that they weren't supposed to get
it, that some customers did receive the effective rate in
writing. And that's pretty hard to read, but it says, The
above-~referenced account 15-year contractual agreement is
17.99 percent. Upon entering the EZ Pay Plus Program —-- and
that's where you paid twice -- half of your mortgage payment
every other week; that's what Household called it, the EZ Pay
Plus Program -- the account will only incur a 10.15 percent
effective rate for the duration ¢f the payment peried, which
will be 11.2 vyears.

Sc here they're giving the effective rate actually in

writing, and this -- there are several of these that I've
seen.
0. 8o what 1is the contract -- can you determine what the

contract rate is from this document?

. It says that the contract rate was 17.9%9 percent. This is
on a l3-year amortization.

0. And what did Household list the effective rate at?

A. 10.15 feor 11.2 years.
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Q. Now, if, in fact, this customer -- T belisve it's
Mr. Ortega -- paid his loan off over a shorter period cf year
than 15 years, would his rate actually decline?
A. No. Your rate never goes down. Paying more guickly than

the amortization schedule does not affect your interest rate.
Your interest rate is your interest rate. If I take a loan
out and two months later T pay it off, I still have the same
APR; but I didn't pay as much interest as I would have if I
had it over 30 years.

Sc this is just a way of deceiving the customer into
thinking that Household had more competitive rates because
their rates were higher than their competitors.

Q. If you could turn to page ending 085.

And can you tell me what this document is?

A. This is a letter sent by an account executive to this
borrower who was questioning why the loan balance hasn't gone
down. And what he's saying to her is what the effective rate
training was. TIf you pay half of your 5945 payment -- so that
1is the second to the last sentence there. If you could
highlight that and then the last sentence. See if you can
read that a little better.

By simply sending half cof your $9%45 payment every two
weeks, your mortgage will be paid off in 18 years: and you
will be paying a comparable 6.5 APR.

Sometimes they use effective rate. Sometimes they
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use comparable rate. It's the same thing.

You will actually save 99,965 throughout the loan by
simply paying 472.50 every two weeks.
Q. So you mentioned that sometimes they call the eguivalent
rate a comparable rate?
A. Yes, egquivalent, comparable, effective. Those were
different terms that I saw for this same program, to deceive
the customers into thirnking they were getting a lower rate
when, in fact, they were being charged a higher rate.
0. And how is this text that you've just read significant to
your opinion in this case?
&. Well, here you have somecne actually putting it in
writing. And at one point, Household went through and took
everything out of the files that had to do with effective
rate. So it's hard to find a document like this because of
the document destructien that they did. But this is where a
customer actually got in writing what the effective rate was.
0. Could you turn tc page ending 090.

This appears to be an e-mail frocm a person named
Ronald Davis at Househeold; is that right?
A. Yes.
0. And the subject is Ortega; is that correct?
A. Yes.
Q. Does the first paragraph there have any significance to

your cpinion?
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A. Let's see. Yes. Highlight the first -- ockay.

It says, We gave this customer a written statement,
which I will fax to you, that clearly stated that their
effective interest rate would be 10.15 if they paid the EZ
way -- and that's the EZ Pay Plus. This letter was sent prior
to us destroying all sales material other than HEC-approved
material. Our branches had previously approved tax charts as
well as real estate master booklets that encouraged them to
use effective rates, which is where this letter derived from,
Q. Now, 1f you take a look at the second to last sentence on
this page.

Does that have any significance to your opinion?

B, Yes. This says, No corrective action was given, as this
was enforced from HFC training materials that existed at the
Time.

Q. Why is that significant?

A. Well, it's significant because the training was authorized
by the headgquarters. And the ~- Lew Walter went to all the
districts except the southwest, which had some seéparate
training. But all of the ideas were the same; and, that is,
come up with this effective rate to show that the Household
rates were competitive, when they were not.

Q. 2And then the indication that no corrective action was
given, what do you understand that to mean?

A. That the employes was not disciplined is how I interpret
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this because it was an authorized activity or it was something
that was condoned by Household.
Q. BAnd go ahead and turn if you would to page ending 09Z.

This appears to be a letter regarding Antonio Ortega
or to -- from Antonio Ortega. I'm sorry. Do you recognize
this letter?

A. I do.

Q. And is this significant to your opinicn?

A. Yes. This is -- again, this is a complaint. This is a
good example of a complaint where Mr. Ortega from Florida
filed a complaint with the state comptroller's office. And
that's where the banking commissioner resides. The state
comptroller actually has the title instead of banking
commissioner.

So he complained to the Florida, basically,
Department of Financial Institutions, that -- and I think --
my copy is very hard to read, but I think if you look at the
second or third -- yes. I'm sorry. It says, if you can read
that, She went back and -- first, he went in for a debt
consolidation loan and was told he could get one for 18
percent. But the account executive, it says here, She went
back and checked and came back and tecld me 1f you can make
payments every two weeks, we can get you a loan feor 10.15
percent, but remember you must pay every two weeks or 1t will

revert back to 18 percent.
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Q. Why 1s that significant to your opinion?
A. Because, once again, the annual percentage rate must have
been 18 percent. And what they were trying to do was deceilve
the customer into thinking if you make vour payment every
other week -- half of your payment every other week, your
effective rate will be 10.15 percent, when that's not true.
It was never golng to be anything other than 18 percent.
Q. Now, we've talked about some training that Lew Walter
provided in this case. Why don't I show you Plaintiffs’
Exhibit 899 for identification.
(Tendered. )

THE CCURT: I'm scorry. What number was that?

MR. DROSMAN: 889, your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Ms. Ghiglieri, do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 89%7
A. 1 do.
Q. What is 1t?
A. This is a training material called First Mortgage Sales.
And this one says HFC northeastern division. They had
different cnes, and it would have a different division; but
this one says northeastern division.
0. And why do you reccgnize this?
A. T reviewed these tralning manuals in formulating my

opinions.
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been an increasing number of complaints in this area, and all
the customer remembers i1s that they thought they were getting
a lower rate. This is one of the many issues he is addressing
in Washington.

So I found it unbelievable that -- and Mr. Schneider
was in charge of policy and compliance, I think was his
title -- unbelievable that he would say, well, you can tell
them that you're going to get this effective rate, but you
just can't give it to them in writing. I mean, that's still
deceiving the customer.
C. 2&nd this e-mail is dated May 25, 2001; is that correct?
A. Yes.
¢. And the training that we saw earlier from Lew Walter on
the effective rate, what was the date ¢f that training?
A. That was in mid 1999. Sc two years later, they're still
having this issue of the effective rate, equivalent rate,
comparable rate.
Q. Was there any other -- we talked about the Lew Walter
training and so forth. Was there any other training materials
that you considered in reaching your conclusions in this case?
A. Well, I looked at the other documents like this that were
from around the country or that's what they were entitled,
And I also looked at insurance training that they received.
Q. Did you look at any training videos in reaching your

conclusions in this case?
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A. Yes. And I also looked -- I wviewed a training video that
was prepared by the manager of the southwestern division. His
name was Dennis Hueman. And he prepared a videc that
contained many of the same elements as this selling first
mortgages document -- training document that I locked at that
was developed by Lew Walter.

MR. DROSMAN: I'm showing the witness a DVD that has
been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1383 for identification.

(Tendered. )}

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. HNow, have you had an cpportunity tco review the contents of
Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1383, this DVD?
A. Yes, I watched this DVD.
Q. And after you watched the DVD, were you able to determine
who created it?
A. Yes, Dennis -- well, and alsc I read his deposition and he
has stated -- he testified that he created this as a sales
togl for his staff.
Q. And so what is Plaintiffs' Exhibit 13837
A. This is a video training on various ways of selling
Household's mortgages. And it was developed in 2001, which is
almost two years after the training that Lew Walter developed
here on First Mortgage Sales.
Q. And did you consider this DVD in reaching the conclusions

in your case -- in this case?
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A, I did.

MR. DROSMAN: At this time, plaintiffs offer 1383
into evidence.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.

MR. KAVALER: May I have voir dire?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. DROSMAN: There's nco cbjection to this, your
Honor.

THE CQURT: Was there an objection?

MR. KAVALER: I just wanted to know if she viewed the
entire DVD.

THE CCURT: Was that objecticn stated in the pretrial
order?

MR. KAVALER: No, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Oblection is overruled.

MR. KAVALER: Thank you, your Honor.
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Approximately how long is this training video?
A. T think it's about an hour. It's been a while since I
lecoked at it.
Q. And do you know to whom this video was distributed, 13837
A. It was distributed toc the branch -- I bkelieve it was
distributed tc the branch -- branches in the southwest.
Q. Are there parts of the video that you'd like to show the

jury to assist you in explaining your conclusions in this
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it is. And, you know, they had to do something in order to
make their rates more competitive. As Mr. Hueman said, we
charge 8 -- 11 percent; our competitors charge 8 percent.
They're never going to be able to book a loan with that unless
they do scmething to deceive the customer into thinking that
they could get a lower rate.
Q. Have you prepared one last short clip you'd like to show
the jury?
A. Yes. This is only a three-minute clip. And it's where
Mr. Hueman compares the custemers to a fish and reeling them
in.
0. Why don't we take a lock at that.

(Whereupon said tape was played in cpen court.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. So this guy, Dennis Hueman, he was in charge of the entire
southwest division of Household?
A. Yes,
Q. Training all the people who worked in the various branches
in the entire scuthwest; 1is that right?
A. Yes.
Q. And why is this significant, what we Jjust watched, to your
opinion?
A, Well, T think it's significant for a couple of reasons.
One is, it had the same sort of effective rate training -- and

he was doing 1t verbally -- that was developed two ygars
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prior. So for those two years, this is what was being done in
Household. And he decided that he needed to have scme sort of
a training mechanism to train his staff in to better deceiving
the customers into thinking that they were going to have a
better rate, so he developed this video. 8o it -- it just
showed me that the training was pervasive in Household and
wasn't just the work of a rogue employee or a rogue branch.
Q. Did you prepare a demonstrative to assist you in
explaining the geographic breadth of this sffective rate
training?
A, Yes.
Q. Why don't I show you what we'll mark as Plaintiffs'
Demonstrative Exhibit 28.

Can you tell us what this exhibit shows?

A. Yes. That's Mr. Walter there. He rolled cut his
training -- and that's what's highlighted there. Lew Walter
rolled out the First Mcrtgage Sales workshop to all HFC sales
divisions, with the exception of the southwest, in July and
August of 19%99. BAnd then the video we just saw was
Mr. Hueman, who 1s in the southwest —-- the left-lower corner
of the United States there that we just saw on the tape --
speaking to his employees about how to put this in place in
the branches.
Q. S0 there were six sales divisions at Household; is that

right?
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A. Yes.
Q. And does this demonstrative show that Mr. Walter rolled
out his effective rate training to five of the six?
A. Yes.
Q. And then the sixth, was that covered by Mr. Hueman's
training?
A. Yes. But the training had to already be there somehow
because the concepts were the same as what Mr. Walter rolled
out.

MR. DRCSMAN: Your Honor, is this a good time for a
lunch break or would you like te go later?

THE CQURT: How much longer do vou have to go?

MR. DROSMAN: I can start on a new topic.

THE COURT: And the new topic will take how long?

MR. DROSMAN: As long as you like. I can stop at any
point.

THE COQURT: If you continue through, how much longer
do you have with this witness? That's all I'm asking.

MR. DROSMAN: Oh, she'll be on after lunch as well,
for probably the remainder cf the day.

THE COURT: Okay. Then we'll break for lunch at this
point. No use waiting.

We'll break for lunch, ladies and gentlemen. We'll
resume the testimony at 1:15. Have a good lunch. We'll see

you then.
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up with?
A. Yes.
O. Did the states agree with Andrew Kahr's idea to ignore

state law and impose these prepayment penalties?
A. No. Many states did not agree with that.

&nd this is a listing of some of the states that
elither, at one time or ancther, this e-mail says has strongly
questicned our ability to do this.

End the e-mail above it says, "Has Virginia
complained, also?"

So, there were a number of states that said, "We do
not agree with that.”

G. I'll show you —- before I show you the next document, T'd
like to sort of change gears and talk about the predatory
lending practice that you talked about earlier -- the failure
to properly disclose.

Did you review additional documents relating to
"failure to properly disclose"?

A. Yes.
0. Let me show you what's been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit
964 for identification.
(Document tendered.)
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 9647

A. 1 do.
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Q. What is 1t?
A. This is an Examination Information Correspondence from the
state of New Jersey to Household.
Q. And what's the date of it?
A. April 23rd, 2002z.
0. And to whom is it addressed?
A. TIt's addressed to "Tom Schneider, Policy and Compliance.”
¢. And is that somebody who works at Household?
A. Yes.

He was in charge of coordinating informaticon with the
regulators, as I understand it.
Q. And why do you recognize this document?
A. This is one of the documents that I looked at in
formulating my opinicns.

MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs offer Exhibit 964 into
evidence.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.

(Plaintiff' Exhibit 964 received in evidence.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
0. Now, you mentioned that this is from the State of New
Jersey to Household's Director of Policy, Compliance and
Support.

What's significant about this document to your
opinions?

A. This document talks about wvariocus concerns that the State
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of New Jersey had with Household's practices.
Q. Okay.

And, specifically, 1f I could direct your attention
to the page ending "805."

Actually, "804," if vyou'd look at that page.

If you look at that page, it appears to be ancther
letter to Tom Schneider, the Director of Policy and Compliance
of Household, mfrom the State of New Jersey; is that right?

A. Yes.

And I'd like to polnt out something in the first
paragraph, too of that.

The last sentence says, "These findings are furnished
to the licensee for your confidential information and
consideration and the understanding that it’'s not to be made
public.”

2nd T talked about that yesterday -- that these
examinaticn reports are confidential -- and that the licensees
are not supposed to make them public.

0. And this is a -- 1s this a ~~ Report of Examination?
A. Yes.

This document it says, "Official Examination.”
Q. Okay.

And if you turn to the next page of the report, Page
805.

Is there anything of significance to your cpiniocn on
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that page?
A. Yes. They're talking about the criticlsms that they have
regarding Household.
Q. And, specifically, the first criticism?
A. Yes. This 1s regarding AMIPA and the prepayment
penalties. And it says, "Prepayment penalties equivalent to
six months interest at the contract rate on the original
amount of the loan are being charged on closed-end, Pay Right
Reward first and second mortgage loans that are paid off in
advance.

"This is predicated upon Houssheld's position that
these loans are variable rate loans covered by the preemptive
authority of the Alternative Mortgage Transactions Parity
Rct.™
Q. So, this is that same Act that would allow Household to
ignore state law that prcohibits prepayment penalties and
impose them, anyway?

A, Yes.

If they comply with the federal law, they can ignore
state law tTo the contrary and impose certain fees and
prepayment penalties.

Q. What about the State of New Jersey? Did they believe that
Household could ignore state law under their Andrew Kahr
product?

A. No. They were saying that they den't bellieve that it
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gualifies under AMTPA.
Q. What about No. 5 -- the criticism No. 5 -- there? Is that
significant to your opinion?
A. Yes.

And I talked about the wide range of closing costs
that Household would give to the applicants on a good-faith
estimate that's required by RESPA. And this says, "Points
charged to borrowers at closing exceeded the amount reflected
on the good-faith estimate in 55 percent of the cases
reviewed."

And, so, not only did they give them a wide range,
but they, in 55 percent of the cases that New Jersey
reviewed -- the State of New Jersey -- they exceeded it.

Q. Okay.

S0, they'd give them a range of zerc to £8,000, for
example, on their gocd-faith estimate and, then, they would
impose fees or points that were higher than $8,0007
A. That's right, in 55 percent of the ones that they
reviewed.

Q. Why don't I show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs'
Exhibit 324 for identification.
{Document tendered.}
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q0. Do you recognize Exhibit 3247

A. 1 do.
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o. What is 1t?
A. This is correspondence and examination information being
transmitted to Household from the State of Minnesota.
Q. Why do you recognize this document?
A. This is a document that I considered in formulating my
opinions.
0. And was this an Examination --
A. Yes.
Q. —-- Report?

What was the date of 1it?
&A. Tt was actually a compliance examination.

And the date -- let's see.

The date of the cover letter —-- let's see if there’s

a date of the examination here.
The date of the cover letter was September 23rd,
2002; and, the examination, the close of business March 31st,
2002.
Q. And tc whom was it sent?
A. To the Board of Directors of Household.
0. And to whose attention at Household was it sent?
A. Mr., Schneider.
Q. That's the Tom Schneider we spoke of before?
A. Yes.
Q. The Director of Policy and Compliance?

A, Yes.
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1 MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs move Exhibit --
2 BY MR. DROSMAN:
3 0. Let me ask you: Did you consider this document in
4 formulating your opinions in this case?
0l:46:14 5 A. I did.
6 MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs move Exhikit 324 into
ki evidence.
8 THE COURT: It will be admitted.
9 (Plaintiffs' Exhibit Ne. 324 received in evidence.)
10 BY MR. DROSMAN:
11 0. Now, if you could turn to the page ending "007."
12 Is there any significance of the information cn Page

13 007 to the cpinions you rendered in this casge?
14 A. Yes,
01:46:42 15 If you -- these are all violations of Minnesota
16 statute regarding the gocd-faith estimate.
17 Q. Specifically, if you look at the heading, "Good-Faith
18 Estimate™ in the middle of the page, and there appears to be a
1% range underneath it of zerc to $7,650,.
01:47:06 20 Do you see that?
21 A. Yes.
22 0. Is that significant to your opinion?
23 A. Yes. This is -- this is -- typical of what Household was
24 doing. They were giving a wide range of closing cecsts. BSco,

01:47:17 25 in this case, this customer, Mr. Cain, received a range of
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from zero to 7,650. And they were actually charged, 1f vou
lock at the next cclumn over -- if you could highlight that,
so maybe they could see it -- it's 9,591.90.

And Minnesota actually calculated the percent above
the range of 25,38 percent. So, it was about 25 percent
higher that they were charged than the range.

Q. If you could turn to the next page, the page ending "078."

Is there anything significant about the informatiocn
on that page to your opinion?

A. Yes.

I mean, these good-faith estimate ranges -- and
there's many pages of them, where they're showing for each
customer the goocd-faith estimate range and, then, what they
actually got charged -- and the first one is a high
percentage, but it's a low dellar amount. But it's a hundred
dollars to three hundred dollars is the range.

And, then, they were actually charged $531, and it
was 77 percent above the range.

There are some other ones in here that are large
dollar amounts, that they were charged over the range.

If you look to the fourth one down, for example,

Mr, Merzwski -- or something -- the range was from zero to
11,250, and they were actually charged 12,945.
And there's just page after page of that in this

Report of Examination.
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Q. What about the next page, Page 07897
A. 079, the same thing.
The first one, Mr. Gray, was charged -- the range was

disclosed on the good-faith estimate, of from zero to 4812Z;
and, he was actually charged 9,349, which is a 90 percent
above the range,.

And, remember, the range of closing costs must be
given to the applicant three days after the completed
application is accepted by the lender. They're supposed to
give this geood-faith estimate, so that the borrower has three
days to consider whether they want to do the lcan.

Q. Now, this document that they're provided is called a

"Good-Faith Estimate,” correct?

A. Yes.
Q. Sometimes it's abbreviated as "GFE"?
A' TIGFE.]U

0. Is it your opinion that when you give somebody a range of
zero to $11,000, that that's a good-faith estimate of their
closing costs?

A. No.

In fact, if, on a large percentage basis, during a
compliance exam that I would do as a bank examiner, if I would
see that the good-faith estimate was always either at the very
top of the range or above the range, then that would tell me

that there wasn't good faith in giving this estimate.
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Q0. I'm going to show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs'
Exhibit 333 for identification.
(Document tendered.)
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 333 for
identification?
A. I do.
Q. And what is this document?
A. This is Examination Report issued by the Commonwealth of
Virginia.
¢. What's the date on 1it?
A. And the date is March 11th, 2002.
Q. And to whom did Virginia send a Report of Examination?
A. Mr. Schneider, the head of Policy and Compliance.
Q. That's at Household -- Mr. Schneider at Household?
A. Yes.
. Why do you recognize this document?
A. This is one of the documents that I reviewed in
formulating my opinions.
MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs move 333 into evidence, your
Honor.
THE COURT: Tt will be admitted.
(Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 333 received in evidence.)
BY MR. DROSMAN:

Q. Now, on the first page of this document, the second te the
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last paragraph, does that have any significance to your
opinion?
A. The second to the last paragraph? It talks about citing
previous examination viclations as a previous examination.
0. 2&nd it indicates that the vieclations cited in this report
are similar to vioclations cited in previous examinations?
A. That's right.
Q. Okay.

Is that significant to your opinion?

A. Well, repeated viclations are frowned upon by the
regulators.

When the regulators identify vieclaticns of law, they
expect that the institution will take corrective actlion; and,
if they don't, they will ceonsider taking enforcement
authority. And we talked about that yesterday -- doing a
cease and desist order, for example; fining them; making them
do refunds or even changing management.

Q. Why is it significant, then, that apparently this 1is
similar to other viclations f[or which the Commonwealth of
Virginia has already told Household zbout?

L. Because they expect compliance and they don't expect to
see repeat violations of law,.

Q. And if you turn te the page ending "741," there's a number
of different loan customers listed on that page.

Starting with customer Ambrister, is that significant
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to your opinion at all?
A, Yes.

On this one, it says, "Licensee failed to disclose
points charged to borrower on the good-faith estimate
disclosure.”

S0, this is where they didn't disclose them at all.
And, as I said yesterday, there were many failure-to-discloese
issues. I only talked about the range of good-faith estimate
closing costs and prepayment penalties, but there were
instances that I noted where they didn't disclose the gcod-
faith estimate at all.

Q. What about the next custemer, customer Ayers?

A. And on this one it says, "Licensee failed to disclose a

reasonable estimate of the points charged.”™ This is the range
issue.

The points charged were €,930 -- I'm sorry, 6,393;
and, the points disclosed, the range was -- or in this one it

wasn't actually a range. They actually disclosed one dollar
amount and they disclosed 3,522.

Q. 8o, they told this customer Avers that they were going to
charge $3500 in points, and how much did they actually charge?
A. 6,393,

0. What about the cother customers on that page, Barbour and
Blaney?

A, Well, Mr. Barbour didn't receive the good-falth estimate
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at all; and, then, Mr. Blaney, the same thing. He was
disclosed 2,380 and he was charged 4,139.
Q. If you turn to the next page, the page ending "742."

Can you tell us the significance of the information
on that page to your opinions?
A. Yes. Two of the lcan files that they looked at did not
have any disclosure, and that was the fourth one down and the
sixth one down. And, then, the rest of them were given a
specific dollar amount and charged higher than that dollar
amount, with the exception of the third one.

And they were given a range of four to five thousand
and charged 10,519.
Q. I'll show you what has been marked as Flaintiffs' Exhibit
956 for identification.

(Document tTendered.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do yocu reccgnize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 9567
A, I do.
Q. What is it?
AB. This is the Kansas Examination Report.
Q. And is there a fax cover sheet on top of the Kansas --
A. Yes,
0. And what does that show?

To whom was it sent?

A. The fax cover sheet is from Carla Madura to Robin Allcock.
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The date, July 25th, 2002Z.
Q. And are these beoth Household employees?
A. Yes.
Q. Why do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 9567
A. This is one of the documents that I reviewed in
formulating my cpinions.
Q. 2And what is the date of this particular examination on
Page 1847
A. Yeah.
The examination date is April 29th, 2002.
Q. And, then, if you turn to the page ending "192"; and, if
you'd look at the last sentence of the first paragraph -- I'm
sorry, the second paragraph -- and tell us whether that's of
any significance to your opinion?
The last sentence cf the --
A, Yes.
0. -—-- second paragraph.
A, It says -- excuse me -- "HUD," which is the Housing and
Urban Development -- "believes that a pattern or practice of
quoting GFE" -- good-faith estimate —-- "amcunts that are lower
than the corresponding amounts later shown on the settlement
statements, may serve as evidence that the disclosures were
not made in good faith.™
0. 8o, still on the page ending "192," tell me what that

means.
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A. ©On the sentence that I just read?
¢. Yeah. Tell me why that's significant.
A. TYeah.

And just what I said previously. When you see a
pattern where the lender 1s disclosing the closing costs in a
range; and, if all the -- especially when the range is from
zero to a high number, when the closing costs are always at
the top end of the range or exceeding the range, then you have
to conclude that 1t's not good faith in giving the estimate of
the closing costs.

And that's what HUD concluded here. HUD believes
that a pattern or practice of quoting GFE amounts that are
lower than the corresponding amounts later shown on the
settlement statements may serve as evidence that the
disclosures were not made in good faith.

Q. Is the next sentence of this Examination Report of any

significance to your opinion?

A. Yes.

And, so, in Kansas, when they were looking at loan
files, if -- you can highlight the group of loans below 1it,
also,

It says, "The following loans have good-faith
estimates with origination fees that were consistently lower
than those actually charged on the settlement statement.”

Q. And what 1s -- what do thcse groups of loans show?
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A. And the next sentence is, "Estimates that are consistently
lower may serve as proof that the estimates are nct made in
good faith."

And, so, these are a list of the loans that they
articulated in the Examination Report.

So, for example, the first one is Mr. Barbieri. His
good-faith estimate was 12,700, and he was actually charged
13,194.

And, so, there's three ways that the regulators will
cite violations of the good-faith estimate: Fallure to give
it at all; the instance that we show here, where you give it
at a certain number, but you charge more than that; or, where
you give it in a range, and the range is either tco wide or
you charge more than the range.

S0, there are variocus iterations cof why they cite
violations of the good~-faith estimate.

MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs move Exhibit $56 into
evidence.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.

(Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 956 received in evidence.})
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. I'd like to show you Plaintiffs' Exhibit 269 for
identification.

Before we do that -- now, we've talked about some of

the predatory lending practices in which Household engaged.
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okbjectives and you're asking them to check themselves.

So, you're saying, "We want you to grow the loans.
We're going to compensate you for growing the loans. We're
going to train you how to grow the loans in these predatory
ways. BAnd, at the =same token, we want you to check for
compliance with the laws and policies of the company," and
they conflict. And it increases risk to the company.
Q. Now, in addition to the documents that we've already
reviewed, have you seen any customer complaints that suggest
that defendants were aware of the predatory lending practices
during the 199% to 2002 ﬁime frame?
A. Yes. I reviewed a number of complaints.
Q. Let's look at a couple.

I'll show you a document that has been marked as
Plaintiffs' Exhibit 276 for identification.

(Document tendered.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 2767
A. I deo.
Q. And what is it?
A. This is a complaint filed by José Nanez to the Arizona
Attorney General's office. And thisg is a document that I
locked at in formulating my opinicns.
Q. What's the date of the complaint?

A. February 20th, 2002, it was signed.
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MR. DROSMAN: Your Honor, plaintiffs move Exhibit 276
into evidence.

MR. KAVALER: I believe this is one of those limited
documents, your Honor,

THE COURT: It will be admitted.

MR. DROSMAN: Thank you, your Honor.

(Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 276 received in evidence.)
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Now, can you tell us what this is -- what this shows?
A. This is a typical complaint. When someons has a complaint
against a regulated entity and they call the regulator -- and
I used to have staff in Atlanta that would take all the
complaints for National Bank in the southeast -- the first
thing that you tell them do is, "Put it in writing."

And the purpose for that is because not only does a
regqulator want to be able to look at it -- the person in the
office -- but they'll send it to the examiner for the scope of
the next examination. But, also, they want to send it to the
regulated entity, sc that they can get their side of the
gstory.

And, so, this is a typical complaint form that
regulators use across the country. We used it at the OCC and
in Texas -- something similar -- and it lays out what their
complaint was regarding their particular loan.

Q. When you say that you'd also want to send it to the
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regulated entity, what's that?
A. Well, the regulator's not going to just take this
complaint and say, "Everything in here is true." They want to

get the regulated entity's side of the story; and, then,
they'll take the two and figure out if a vioclation has
occurred or not.
Q. What is the regulated entity?
A. Well, in this case, it's Household.

In the case when I was in Atlanta, it would be the
National banks in the nine southeastern states.
Q. BSco, whatever --
A. Whatever your jurisdiction is.
Q. So, whatever lender a person's complaining about would
also get a copy of this complaint; is that right?
A, Yes, with a specific request from the regulator to say,
"Please respond to this complaint. Tell us what your side of
the story is."
Q. This particular complaint is filed by a man named José
Nanez; is that right?
A, Yes.
Q. BAnd let's take a loock at the first entry he has -- or the
first number on his complaint.
A. This person lives in Phoenix, Arizona, and he's Hispanic,
he says, and his primary language is Spanish. BAnd his

daughter was serving as interpreter.
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And he says, "Our home was purchased in February,
1987, and financed with a 30-year home loan at a 7 percent
fixed interest rate."
Q. and No. 2, what's his --
A. And, then, he received a solicitation from Household with
a $5,000 check, which they later cashed; and, then, they
called Household about refinancing.
Q. And what does No. 3 indicate?
A. No. 3 indicates that they went to talk to Household and:
"Beulah Jordan, a Household sales representative, told us that
Household had a special loan program under which we could
consolidate all our bills into one loan; get the cash we
wanted; and, save a lot of money in paying off cur bills.
Jordan gave us a guote for Household's biweekly payment (or EZ
Payment Plus) plan.

"Under this plan, Jordan said that if we made
payments every two weeks, our loan would be paid out like a
7.58 percent 30-year loan, only we would get to pay it off
much sconer than 30 vyears.

"She also told us that we could get single premium
credit insurance in order to get the loan."
Q. Is there a --
A, I'm sorry, I misspoke.

She said, "We had to get single premium credit

insurance in order to get the loan.?”



02:25:46

02:26:03

02:26:20

02:26:32

02:26:44

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Ghiglieri - direct

569
Q. Now, is there anything significant akout that complaint to
your opinions in this case?
A. Well, what I found interesting about this complaint was,
first of all, non-English speakers, if you remember the QOCCs
igsuance, it talked about sometimes you have non-English
speakers, and that's a particular class that c¢an be taken
advantage of.

And here we have the Hispanic non-English speaker,
the daughter serving as an interpreter. So, that kind of
perks your ears up for possible predatory lending.

And, then, of course, again, we've got the biweekly
payment plan with the EZ Pay. Thig is in Phoenix, Arizona.

You know, we've seen these in different places around
the country. And, you know, the effective rate presentation,
again.

Q. Why do you think that this is the effective rate
presentation?

A. Because they're talking about, "If you pay off your lecan
every two weeks, it will pay out like a 7.58 percent 30-year
loan, only you pay it off much sooner.”

The one thing that's missing here from the
presentation is how many years sooner is it paid off? 187
17? Whatever.

And, then, they talk about single premium credit

insurance, which is a particularly predatory product because,
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remember, it tacks on to your 30-year loan, but it goes away
in five years. And, so, that's been prohibited by a lot of
states.
Q. So, they were told that they would have this 7.58 percent
interest rate with their loan?
A, Yes.
Q. Turn to the next page, the page ending "765".
A. The first sentence says, "Respondents did not tell us
their biweekly payment quote did not include transaction fees,
property taxes or homeowners insurance on their home."

That's something I saw in a lot of the complaints --
and we haven't really talked about that -- but when you're
making a comparison of apples to apples, you want to make sure
that your mortgage payment, in fact, is the same -- contains
the same -- things as your current mortgage payment.

And this was a complaint that a lot of consumers had,
wag that Household would not include thelr taxes and
insurance, and that's what their current one included.

Sc, when they were saying, "We'll give you a smaller
payment," that wasn't true.

And, then, the second sentence says, "Respondents
alsc did not explain that our loan included sgubstantial loan
origination fees, zubstantial upfront insurance premiums and
an actual interest rate of 11.79 percent, a prepayment penalty

if we tried to pay off cur loan hefore five years."
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Q. Sco, what predatory practices were employed by Household
with respect to this person, José Nanez?
A. Well, they have the effective rate presentation given to
them. They had single premium insurance being required -- and
that's particularly predatory. They had failure to disclose
the -- that the insurance and taxes were not in the new
payment, as were on the o0ld, so they could compare. And they
didn't -- failure to disclose the prepayment penalty.
Q. 2And what does the last sentence of this complaint say?
A. The last sentence says, "We believe the respondents
targeted us for predatory loans due to our naticnal origin:
Hispanic. &s a result of their predatory lending, respondents
have stripped away part of our loam equity and we are in
danger of losing our home."

So, that's the equity stripping, again, that we
talked about.
Q. Why don't I show you what's been marked as Plaintiffs’
Exhibit 1096 for identification.
(Document tendered.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 10967
A. I do.
Q. What is it?
A. This is a complaint from Amy Adams in New Cumberland,

Pennsylvania. It's dated September 10th, 2002, and it's
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addressed to Household.
Q. And why do you recognize 10967
A. This is one of the documents that I locked at in
formulating my opinions.
MR, DROSMAN: Plaintiffs offer Plaintiffs’ Exhibit
1096 into evidence.
MR. KAVALER: Your Honor, this is another one of
thoge limited documents.
THE COURT: OCkay.
It will be admitted.
MR. DROSMAN: Thank you, your Honor.
THE COURT: The jury has been instructed con the
documents.
MR. KAVALER: Thank you, your Honor.
{Plaintiffs' Exhibkit No. 1096 received in evidence.)
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Let's take a look at the first page of the deocument. You
said that this document was sent to Household.
What was the date it was sent to Household?
A. September 10th, 2002.
Q. If you loock at the second paragraph of the letter, what --
Z_. Now, this is a complaint that's not on the complaint form,
that -- she actually wrote this letter herself.
Q. &nd if you loock at the last page of the letter -- the page

ending "448" -- why don't we look at the page ending "448" of
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the letter? It's the third page in.

Can you tell me: Did she it to anybody in particular
at Household?

A. Yes. She sent it to Mr. Aldinger, Mr. Gilmer,

Mr. Schoenholz and Mr. Streem.

Q. She cc'd all those pecple?

A. Yes.

Q. Why don't we take a lock again at the first page of 1096,
the second paragraph, and tell us if that's of any
gignificance to your opinion.

A, Yes.

This is a case where she questioned the prepayment
penalty at the time of the closing. 2And she says, "The
salesman who was handling our refinance very nonchalantly
glossed over this issue and commgnicated to my husband and me
that this would typically be about a $3,000 fee, given our &
percent interest rate, which really turned out to be 9.49
percent -- more on this later -- and that these fees can be
waived for job-related relocations. As we are now facing
selling our house due to relocation, I have since found this
not to be the case.”

Q. What does that mean?
A. Well, this is the failure to disclose what's going on with
the prepayment penalty.

Here's someone that sees the prepayment penalty,
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asked about it and they say, "We can waive it." And this
was -- I saw this in other complaints -- this very action.
Q. Why don't we take a look at the next page, the page ending
ha47 "

And if you look at the first non-indented paragraph,
it begins, "To add insult to injury," can you tell us if
there's any significance of that information to your opinion?
A. Yes.

And this says, "To add insult to injury, the salesman
who sold us this deal capitalized on the fact that we were
receiving a 6 percent interest rate by participating in the
biweekly EZ Pay Program.

"When I questioned the $.4% percent rate listed on
our contract at the signing, I was tcld that was the rate for
people not participating in the biweekly payment program.

When I asked where the & percent interest rate was quoted in
the agreement, I was told it was assumed in the EZ Pay
Program, so that was why I wouldn't find it in the contract.”

So, this is the whole effective rate presentation,
where the customers were being deceived into thinking it was
lower rate than they were actually getting.

Here wag a customer questioning, you know: "Why is
this different than my contract rate,” and the employee's
telling them from Pennsylvania that, "Don't worry. That's fer

people that aren't participating in this biweekly payment
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program. "
¢. Then it looks like there's a series of bullet points on
that page and, then, another paragraph underneath that.
Can you take a look at that?
A. Yes.

Q. It begins --

A. "I am responsible -- v
Q. "I am a responsible consumer.”
A. "I'm a regponsible consumer with good credit who was duped

through your slick sales techniques into refinancing a 7
percent FHA mortgage to your 92.49 percent unconventicnal loan,
losing $12,000 equity I had built up in my home and now I am
facing being further penalized for selling my home to support
a job move."
Q. What significance is that to your opinion?
A. Bo, she had a 7 percent mortgage. She was told that she
could get a 6 percent interest rate through the biweekly
payment program; and, in fact, it turns out to be 9.49
percent. And that's a typical --
Q. She went from a 7 percent loan to a 9-point-something
percent loan?
A. Yes, 92.49 percent.
Q. 2nd why does she say she did that?

Why would anybody go from a lower rate loan to a

higher rate loan?
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1 A. You wouldn't do it.

2 Plus, she had an FHA mortgage and now she has an

3 unconventional. And the FHA would be more attractive.

4 So -- well, you wouldn't do it. ¥You wouldn't
02:34:37 5 willingly pay more money on your loan. I mean, for, what?

6 What would be the point of that?

7 Q. Dces this support your opinion that this woman, Ms. Adams,

8 was deceived by Household?

9 A, Yes.
02:34:48 10 Q. What predatory lending practices do you see reflected in

11 this complaint?

12 A. Well, the non-disclosure or the -- discussing that the

13 prepayment penalty would be waived, that's one. 2nd, then,

14 the effective rate presentation would be two. Equity
02:35:03 15 stripping would be three.

16 Q. And did Ms. Adams attach anything to this complaint that

17 she sent to Mr. Aldinger and Mr. Gilmer and Mr, Schoenholz?

18 A, Yes.

19 She attached a newspaper article -- actually, a
02:35:17 20 magazine article -- from Forbes entitled, "Home Wrecker" and

21 it'es dated September 2nd, 2002.

22 Q. Have you reviewed this article?

23 A. Yes.

24 I actually reviewed this article separate from this

02:35:33 25 complaint because I was taking the -- I was canvassing
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everything that was out there regarding predatory lending
during the 199%/2002 time frame. BAnd I came across this
myself.

But she goes through and highlights some things in
here that are similar to what I found in looking at this file.
Q. 2nd the first thing that she highlights in the "Home
Wrecker" article in Forbes Magazine, what's that?

A. Well, she's talking about a William Meyers, a borrower,
paid off his credit card debt by refinancing his loan with
Household.

"He says his new lender, Household International,
charged him 11 percent interest, not the 7.2 percent interest
as promised. Then it added 14,400 in fees and insurance to
his $80,100 loan, and stuck him with a $15,000 second mortgage
at 20 percent. He didn't notice it until the first bill," a
lot of the issues we've been talking about yesterday and
today.

Q. What about, in particular, in Ms. Adams' complaint? Is
there any similarities between Ms., Adams' complaint and this
information in Forbes Magazine; specifically, with the 11

percent interest --

A. Yeah.
Q. -- promised?
A. Right.

Q. I'm sorry, the 7.25 percent interest promiged, when it's
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really an 11 percent interest rate?
A. Yes.

This was the effective rate presentation, where
they're trying to make their rates look more competitive.
And, so, they're saying, "If you pay half of your mortgage
every other week, your rate's going to be 7.2," but really it
was 11 percent.

Q. Let's look at the next spot. I think it's the fourth
paragraph in the article that Ms. Meyers highlighted,
apparently to show similarities.

Can you tell us what that says?

A. It's the cne up above that.
Q. The fourth paragraph down?
A. Yeah.

There you go.

Now, this is what happened -- this is what she claims
happened -- tc her. "Household is under fire for myriad
tactics. 1In addition to the bait-and-switch on interest
rates, it charges high prepayment penalties and service fees.
It lures clients with proposals showing monthly savings that,
at times, fail to materialize."

So, she's talking about the high -- or thisg article
is talking about the high -- prepayment penalties; and, then,
the effective rate presentation, which she talks about, too.

Q. The next spot in the article -- the Forbes article -- that
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Ms. Adams highlighted, can yvou tell us abkout that?
A. Actually, the last part of that sentence also is things
that we were talking about today, too, 1if yvou'd go back to
that,

And it says, "And it structures mortgages to include
last-minute second loansg that make it difficult for borrowers
to defect and get refinancing elsewhere. Household agents
call it 'Closing the Back Door.,!'"

So, that's -- we've been talking about closing the
back door here.

Q. Did you call it "Blocking the Back Door"?

A. "Blocking the Back Door," yes.

Q. Is there a difference between "Blocking the Back Door" and
"Closing the Back Door"?

A. No, it's the same thing.

Q. Take a lock at the next paragraph that Ms. Adams

highlighted.
A. In this -- this -- is something else that we'wve been
talking about: "But Household's guestionable practices seem

to be in far wider use than that. For one thing, Meyers lives
in Dayton, Chio, not Bellingham, Washington."

2nd this refers to the paragraph above which says,
"Househcld says such complaints represent a minuscule fraction
of its 100 billion in outgtanding loans."

It also says, "Gripes about the interest-rate-trick
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that fooled Meyers are largely confined to its office in
Bellingham, Washington."

Q. BSo, that's the few-bad-apple argument?
A. The rogue branch, rogue employee,

If you go down, then -- going back to what's
highlighted here -- "The Household pitch was so effective, it

even lured customers with good credit, including Meyers.
Customers and some ex-employvees tell of the same interest rate
trick in a dozen states."

Sc, Ms. Adams has good credit and, so, she's
highlighting this because it says, "Even some people with good
credit are being lured by this.”

Q. The next sentence, I think, is a guote from a regulator in
Minnesota. What does he have to say about the few-bad-apple

argument that Household made?

A. The Commissioner in Minnesota -- the Commerce Commissioner
-- says, "Household encourages -- or at least tolerates --
these abuses. It's not just an occasional rogue loan officer

or rogue office. It has to do with corporate culture.”
Q. Is that consistent with or different from the conclusions
you drew in this case?
A. No, it's congistent.
Q. Okay.
Let's look at the next page, the page ending "450."

And, then, it looks like Ms. Adams has highlighted
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some more paragraphs from the Forbes article on that page.
Let's talk abcut the first one.
A. Okay.

This one says, "Household also began EZ Pay Plus, a
program under which many borrowers, like Meyers, were lured
with lower interest rates, but were really charged higher
ones. EZ Pay Plus also guotes Karina Galindo, a Teacher'sg
Assistant in Phoenix.

"In April, 2000, Household offered to replace her
$67,300 mortgage -- a Chase Manhattan Bank loan at 8.5
percent -- with a bigger, but seemingly cheaper one: $86,300
at an effective rate of 7.6 percent, enough to pay off the old
mortgage, and a $12,200 personal loan she was paying off at
15.7 percent. At least this is how she read a worksheet from
a Household loan officer.

"Galindo signed up. Four days later, she says she
got nervous and reviewed the 80-page agreement, signed and
initialed in two dozen places, and spotted the real interest
rate: 12.2 percent.

"How did it happen? Galindo says her agent, José
Avila, handed her the worksheet entitled 'Biweekly Payment
Quote" with this sentence at the bhottom: 'If I can put
together a loan that pays out like a 7.57% percent a year
loan, but has a total term of 18.63 years, would yvou be

interested?"
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Q. Let me stop you there.

That language that you just read, do you recognize
that language?
A. That's from the Dennis Hueman video.
Q. Ckay.

And what is this article talking about? What's the
passage you just read?
A, This is the effective rate presentation on how Household,
in trying to make their mortgages look for competitive, would
do this effective rate presentatiocn and lure these people in,
thinking they were going to get a lower interest rate. Then
they find out that they have, in fact, a higher interest rate.

And here, you know, there's more interesgst and fees
and premiums tacked on. 8o, it strips cut your equity; it
keeps you there because no one else will refinance you, so
that the back door is blocked.

So, this paragraph goes to a lot of the things that
we've been talking about today.
Q. Now, in your evaluation of Househeold's lending practices,
did you also review Reports of Examinations written by state
and federal regulators?
A. I did.
Q. Why did you review Reports of Examinations by regulators?
A, Well, I wanted to see what the regulators thought, I

locked at the documentation and I wanted to see if they -- if
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their findings supported my opinions.
Q. Which regulators issued Reports of Examination that you
reviewed?
A. I reviewed the 0TS reports for the Federal Thrift that
Household had -- Household Bank FSB -- and, then, I reviewed
the State Examination Reports from the finance company.

And I alsoc reviewed -- FDIC did a separate exam and,
then, I think they did a joint one with the OTS.

So, I reviewed any of the examination reports that
were available.

Q. And how many State Examination Reports did you review
approximately?
A. I would say maybe 30.

I'm not sure. I know at one point I reviewed goms
and, then, had to send some back. So, I'm not exactly sure
how many. Maybe 20.

Q. And from what different states did these Examination
Reports come?

A. ©New Jersey, Virginia, Kansas, Washington, Minnesota -- all
over the country.

Q. Other states you haven't mentioned?

A. Yeg, uh-huh.

Q. Why den't I show you what's been marked as Plaintiffs!
Exhibit 1205 for identification.

(Document tendered.)}
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BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 12057
A. I do.
Q. And what is 12057
2., This is the Special Compliance Examination that was
performed by the Office of Thrift Supervision, which is the
regulator of the Federal Thrift, dated January 16th, 2003.
Q. 2And did this examination also examine the finance company
at Household?
A. Yes,.
Q. So, it examined both the Thrift and the Finance Company?
A. That's right.
Q. And why do you recognize this document?
A. This was one of the documents that I reviewed in
formulating my opinions.
Q. And who authored the document?
A. The Office of Thrift Supervision.

MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs offer Exhibit 1205 inteo
evidence.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.

{Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1205 received in evidence.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. 8o, why don't we take a look at the first page. It
indicates that the subject concerns both the bank and the

finance company; is that right?
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A, Yes.

If you loock at the bottom, it says, "Household Bank,
FSB," that's the Federal Thrift, and, then, "Household Finance
Corporation."

This is a Special Compliance Exam and the federal
regulators have the authority to go beyond the entity that
they regulate, if it's affiliated with the regulate -- the
entity that they regulate.

2nd the OTS decided to do that in this case because
of concerns that they had.

Q. So, even though they wouldn't ordinarily regulate the
finance company, they decided to do a special examination of
Household Finance Company in this case?

L. That's right.

2nd we used to do that at the OCC if we were worried
about an affiliate. We would go on and examine that
atfiliate.

Q. Go ahead, if you would, and turn to the page ending "0&3."

It locks like the heading on that page is, "Special
Compliance Examination.™

And, then, the date is June 3rd, 20027
A, Yes.

Q. Does the first sentence of that document have any
gignificance to your opinion?

A. "A Special Compliance Examination of Household Bank FSB
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commenced on June 3rd, 2002"? That sentence?
Q. Right.

Does this tell you when the actual examination took
place?
A. Yes.
Q. When was that?
A. June 3rd, 2002.
Q. So, in the middle of 2002, they performed this
examination?
A. Yes.
Q. And when did they issue their report, then?

Does the first page indicate January 16th, 20037
A. Yes, January 16th, 2003.
Q. Okay.

If you could go down to the bottom of the page ending
"063," where it talks about the "overall findings for the
exam, " and look at the first arrow there.
A. Yes.

and, first, the second sentence of the first
paragraph at the top of the page says, "The focus of this
Special Examination was a variety of predatory lending and
insurance sales issues."”

And, so, they're articulating what the scope of their
Special Compliance Examination was.

Q. 2And what was the scope?
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A. The scope is: "The focus of this Special Examination was
a variety of predatory lending and insurance sales issues."
Q. Okay.

If you take a look, then, at the bottom of that first
page, under, "Overall Examination Summary and Findings."
A. Okay.

So, the first one is: "There isg evidence of
insurance packing. HFC" -- and "HB" is Household Bank. So,
that's the Federal Thrift.

"HFC/HB sold insurance products, personal property,
disability, life and inveluntary unemployment to a very high
percentage of borrowers for both real estate and non-real
estate-secured lending. There -- " I think that's the wrong
word. It should be "T-h-e-i-r."

But, anyway, "There most egregious issue is sales of
personal property insurance for, essentially, unsecured
non-real estate loans.®
Q. Does that text that you just read have any significance to
your opinions in this case?

A. Well, yes.

My conclusion isg that Household engaged in insurance
packing. And this is what the OTS is saying, alsc,
Q. Okay.

If you'd turn to the page ending "065."

It locks like the second arrow on that page indicates
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that, "Some of the most significant concerns"; is that right?
A. (No response.)
Q. The second arrow on Page --
A, Yes.
Q. -- 0657

A. BAnd, then, they're articulated here.

Q. BSo, let's talk about some of the most significant concerns
that the federal regulator -- in this case, the Office of
Thrift Supervisicn -- found.
A. Okay -- excuse me,

So, the first box -- they have little boxes on this
side -- "Many cases of multiple -- " the first box there
(indicating) -- "Many cases of multiple and frequent

refinancing/debt consolidations in short time frames."

So, this would be loan flipping.

Q. What's the next box or bullet that they have indicated?
A. "Routine pavment of high levels of loan fees agsociated
with frequent refinancings.

"In many instances, refinances offered marginal
benefit."

That would be to the borrower. This is another issue
about loan flipping and charging the high level of loan fees.
Q. This talks about -- the next one -- the next bullet on
that page -- what is that?

A. This is on insurance. It says, "Aggresgive sales
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practices, with frequent sales of sgingle payment credit life
insurance.®

2nd, remember, that was the one that got tacked onto
your loan for 30 years, but it ran out after five years, in
terms of the term of it. And you were still paying for the
next 25.

It says, "Also, frequent sales of persconal property
insurance, involuntary unemployment insurance and disability
insurance. Loans commonly rolled into new or additional loans
with credit insurance routinely included. The credit life
insurance wag typically for a maximum of five years, with a
gingle payment fee collected up front."

And, of course, tacked on the loan and amortized over
the 30 vears.

Q. And these are all OTS' significant concerns; is that
right?

A, Yes.

Q. What's the next significant concern that the OTS had?

A. The next one is: "High Leoan to Value Lending. Household
offered loans well in excess of a hundred percent of the
underlying collateral.”

And that's, of course, equity stripping, where the
value of your house is a hundred thousand and they would lend
up to a hundred percent of the walue of your house.

So, vou would have no equity when you walked out of
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there.
Q. And is that a predatory lending practice?
A. Yes,.
Q. Is that alse known as equity stripping?
A. Equity stripping.
Q. What's the next significant concern that the 0TS had?
A. The next one is: "Cases of gignificantly declining home

equity due to increasing consumer debt."

And that's, basically, equity stripping, again.
Q. Tell us what that wmeans.
A. It means that if you are consolidating your lcoans or if
you go to Household and you refinance your loan and they add
on points and fees and premiums to your lean, and you walk out
of there with a hundred percent loan to value, you've,
esgsentially, stripped away any equity that you had in your
house.
Q. Turn to the next page -- the page ending "066" -- and lcok
at -- there's a "Significant Concern" in the box at the top of
the page?
A. "Use of Household's EZ Pay Plus electronic payment product
through Fort Knox National Bank as a means of misinforming
applicante about the realities/benefits of increased biweekly
payments. "

This is the effective rate presgentation.

Q. And that was a gignificant concern of the QTS?
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A. Yes.
Q. If you'd turn to the page ending "021," it looks like that
page indicates, "Examination Summary and Findings"; and, then,
there's some summary of the findings that were provided to
HFC, the finance company.

Can you look at the first arrow on Page 091 and tell

me whether that's significant to your opinion?
A. It says, "There is evidence of insurance packing. This is
based on loan file reviews, as well as analysis of data
relating toc insurance sales. HFC sold insurance products,
personal property, disability, life.and inveluntary
unemployment at its HFC/Beneficial coffices to a very high
percentage cof eligible borrowers for both real estate and
non-real estate secured lending. There is a major concern
with the practice of selling personal property insurance on
what are, essentially, unsecured loans."
Q. Why is that significant to your opinion?
ZA. It just -- it supports my opinion that they engaged in
insurance packing.
Q. If you turn to the page ending "093," on the third arrow
on that page, if you can tell me whether that's significant to
your opinion?
A, Yes. This concerns the good-faith estimate issues that
we've been talking about.

" review of various loan files found that good-faith
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estimates often disclosed a very wide range of costs when
estimating the potential charges to the borrower. The use of
such wide ranges easily led to confusion for the applicants.
The examiners believe that the regular use of wide ranges for
loan cost estimates is an unfair and deceptive practice. A
recent policy change at Household should correct this
situaticn.”
Q. Ckay.

And why is that significant te your opinion?
A. Because this supports my opinions that Household used the
wide range to mislead the borrowers and, then, charged them at
the high end of the range or above the range.
Q. If you'd turn to the page ending "095," it looks like, in
this case, the federal regulators are listing a number of
different civil complaints and state investigations, and
they're set forth in the arrows?
A. Yes.
¢. Do those -- are those relevant to your opinions?
A. Yes. BAnd these are many of the same things that we've
been talking about here.
Q. Let's look at the first arrow.
A. "Many cases of multiple and frequent refinancings, debt
consclidations in short time framesg.”

That's loan flipping.

Q. And what are all these things?
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A. These are concerns that various civil complaints and state
regulators -- they're summarizing what their concerns are.
Q. BSo, the OTS has locked at the various complaints in the
state investigations and they're sort of summarizing what they
found?
A. Yes.
Q. And what's the next thing they summarize?
A. '"Routine payment of high levels of loan fees associated
with frequent refinancings.®
Q. What is that?
A. And that's where you pack on points and fees and insurance
premiums every time you flip the loan.

S50, it's what we've been talking about today: Equity
stripping and loan flipping, insurance packing.
Q. BSo, the frequent refinancings, that's the lcan flipping
that you've been speaking --
A. Loan flipping, vyes.
Q. What's the next arrow on the page?
A. T"Borrowers paying a high price for frequent refinancings.
In many instances, refinances offered marginal or
insignificant benefit."

And that's the loan flipping; and, every time you
flip it, adding on -- or every time Household would flip the
loan, they would add on -- insurance, points and high fees.

Q. 2nd was that -- did that benefit the borrower -- thesge
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frequent refinancings?
A, No.
Q. What's the next arrow?
A. '"Aggressive Sales Practices."
Q. And the next one?
A. "Loans commonly rolled into new or additional loans and

credit insurance routinely included with the loan product.!
So, this would be insurance packing every time the
loan was flipped.
Q. And the next concern that the federal regulators found
when they were looking at all the different state
investigations, what's that?
A. This is: “"Freguent sales of single payment credit life
insurance. Also, frequent sales of persocmnal property
insurance, unemployment insurance and disgability insurance."
So, this is the egregious practice of selling that
single payment credit life insurance, which many states have
outlawed; and, then, insurance packing.
Q. And the next arrcw?
A. "The credit life insurance was typically for a maximum of
five years, with a single payment collected upfront.”
That's what they said before of what they found; and,
of course, that's the egregious part of this product.
Q. The next summarized concern from all the state

investigations, what is that?
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1 A. "High Loan to Value Lending. Household offered loans well
2 in excess of a hundred percent of the underlying collateral.”
3 Cf course, we talked about that -- stripping away the
4 equity. Even -- they even offered one that went above a
02:57:51 5 hundred percent.

6 Q. And, then, the next summarized concern from all the state

7 investigations?
8 A. '"Cases of declining home esquity because of increasing
9 consumer debt. "

02:58:05 10 That's equity stripping.

11 Q. What is that?
12 ZA. Pulling out the equity because of adding on high points in

13 insurance premiums and other closing costs.

14 Q. &And, then, if you look at -- we'll skip a few of them.
02:58:23 15 If you look at the bottom arrow -- I know there's

1la many -- what is that bottom arrow:

17 A. This is that good-faith estimate issue: "Use cof wide

18 ranges on good-faith egtimate disclosures.®

19 This practice was determined to be an unfair and
02:58:37 20 deceptive practice.

21 Q. And the "GFE" in that sentence refers to, what?

22 A. "Good-faith estimate."

23 Q. And the state investigations found that --

24 A. That's what they concluded, ves.

02:58:45 25 ¢. If you could turn to the page ending "120."
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And it looks like there's a heading, No. 5:
"Examiner Review of Real Estate Secured Lending: High Loan
Fees."
Can you tell me what the last paragraph on that page
-- "120" -- shows?

A, I'm scrry, I'm on the wrong place. Let me get it.

Q. r1z2c."
A. Can you tell me what -- where -- you're directing me?
I -=-

Q. B8ure. If you'd look at the page ending "120"?

A, Okay.

Q. And, then, there's a heading on that page: "Examiner
Review of Real Estate Secured Lending"?

A, ©Ch, okay.

Q. "High Loan Fees."

A. Yes.

Q. 1Is the last paragraph on that page of any significance to
your opinion?

A. The last paragraph says, "The distinguishable pattern from
this sample is the high number of loans, 15 of 21 -- or 71.4
percent -- with origination fees of 7 percent or more. Loan
fees of 7 percent are considered extremely high and are
indicative of a high fee structure."

Q. Can you tell us what because that means?

A. Yes.
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Now, we talked about Household charging discount
points, and that would normally be a negotiation between the
borrower and the lender, and the borrower may decide to pay
one discount point to lower the discount rate, say, 25 basis
points.

Household would charge -- the majority of their loans
were charged at the high end of what state law would allow.
Usually, either 5 percent or 7 to 7-and-a-half percent. Aand
what the regulators are saying here -- the OTS is saying
here -- is that they consider loan fees of 7 percent to be
extremely high and indicative of a high fee structure.

So, just to put it in perspective.

Q. So, if you had loan fees of 7 percent on a 3$100,000 loan,
what would your fee be?
A. $7,000.

8o, a digcount point is one percent of the loan
balance.
Q. And the regulators considered that to be, in their words,
extremely high?
k. Extremely high.
Q. If you turn to the next page, the page ending "121," take
a lock at the top -- the heading at the top.

No. 6 is: "Deceptive Acts." Do you see that?
A, Yes.

Q. And, then, if you lock down into that paragraph under
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"Deceptive Acts," the second paragraph -- the second sentence
of that paragraph -- is that of any significance to your
opinion?

A. The second sentence says, "However, examiners believe that
HFC has engaged in unfair and deceptive acts, as described in
Section 3, relating to insurance sales."
Q. What about the next sentence?
A. "Also, although not a technical RESPA violation, the
examiners believe that the wide ranges for good-faith
estimates was also a deceptive act."
¢. Is this significant -- this information significant -- teo
yvour opinionsg in this case?
A. Yes.
Q. How?
A. It supports my opinicons that not only were they engaged in
insurance packing; but, also, that they -- the range, the wide
range that they -- gave borrowers, and, then, charged either
at the high end of the range or in excess of the range --
which would be a violation of RESPA -- supports my opinions.
Q. I'll show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit
1333 for identification.

{Document tendered.)
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 13337

A. I do.
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What is it?

This is a letter from the Washington Department of

Financial Institutions to Household dated May 17th, 2002.

0.

A.

Why do you recognize it?

This is one of the documents that I locked at in

formulating my opinicns.

MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs move Exhibit 1333 into

evidence.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.

(Plaintiffs' Exhibit No. 1323 received in evidence.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:

Q.

Let's take a look at this document.
To whom was the letter addressed?
To Tom Schneider.
And what's the subject of the letter?
"Expanded Report of Examination."
And who is Mr. Schneider?
He is in charge of Policy and Compliance for Household.
What is Policy and Compliance?

My understanding was that he -- his area coordinated

Household's activities with the regulators.

5399

And, then, it also at one point he would look at some

of the complaints from the Better Business Bureau and the AG's

office and things like that.

Q.

And, then, if you look at the second paragraph of the
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letter, is that significant to your opinion?
A, Yes.
Q. Tell me why.
A. It says, "This report identifies significant patterns and
practices that the Department finds unacceptable. The report
also carries serious allegations of wrongdoing with Washington
Consumers.

"Contrary to Household's prior explanations, the
Department has found that the patterns, practices and alleged
harmful acts are not isolated to an individual office in
Washington.

"Further, the patterns and practices discussed in the
report appear to cccur from Household offices across the
country."

Q. This paragraph that you just read, is this relevant to
your conclusion that this wasn't one or two bad apples at
Household?
A. Yes. It supports my copinion that Household engaged in
predatory lending practices company-wide, nation-wide, and it
was a systemic practice -- a systemic issue.
Q. DNow, the subject here is: "Expanded Report of
Investigation" -- or "Examination," I apologize.
And the letter indicates that there's an enclosgure.
Did you review the expanded Report of Examination

from the Department of Financial Institutions at Washington?
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A. Yes.
Q. 1I'll show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit
290 for identification.

(Document tendered.)

THE COURT: I think that probably at this point,
before we get into the new exhibit, it might be a good time to
take our afternoon break. We're five minutes past 3:00
o'eclock. So, we'll do that at this time.

We will take a 20-minute break, ladies and gentlemen,
and resume at 25 after.

(Jury out.)

THE COURT: Before we break, I think it's a good time
to ask if the attorneys have any suggestions with respect to
the outstanding timing issues with the jurors, and the one
question regarding training logs, et cetera.

MR. DOWD: I think, your Honor, it sounded like the
Court was inclined to break a little early today, anyway. But
if we're going to break earlier for the jurors, then I think
it would make sense to start earlier.

2nd I think one time, when you were speaking to the
jury this morning, you said, "We're going to start at 10:30."
I think you just misspoke.

THE CCURT: I misspoke. It should have been "10:00
o'clock," if I said that.

MR. DOWD: I understood that. I just think we should
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based upon that, you must make your determination.

Proceed.

MR. DROSMAN: Thank you, your Honor,
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. When we broke, I had provided you with Plaintiffg' Exhibit
290 for identification.

Do yvou recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 2907
A, I do.
Q. And what is this?
A. This is the Washington Department of Financial
Institutions expanded report of examination, dated as of April
30, 2002,
Q. We saw a cover letter a moment ago, Plaintiffs' Exhibit
1333. Is this the report of -- expanded report of examination
that the cover letter, 1333, referred to?
A. Yes.
Q. And why do you recognize Plaintiffg' Exhibit 250°?
A. This was a document that I considered in formulating my
opinion.

MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs offer Exhibit 290 into
evidence.

MR. KAVALER: This is another one of those limited
documents, your Honor.

MR. DROSMAN: Actually it isn't, your Honor. There's

no objection to this document, your Honor,
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MR. KAVALER: I believe it's covered by limiting
instruction No. 2, your Honor.

THE COURT: Let's take a look.

MR. DROSMAN: Withdrawn, your Honor. There's another
exhibit that's identical to this to which there was no
objection. So that's my mistake. This one, however, has a
limiting instruction.

THE COURT: Very well. The jury has been instructed
on the limited use of evidence as to certain documents. The
document will be admitted with that instruction.

BY MR. DROSMAN:
0. Now, let's look at the first page of Exhibit 250.

What is an expanded report of investigation?

A. Well, in this case, instead of just deocing a regular
examination, they expanded it to take into consideration
certain things that they were interested in locking at.

Q. And what was the date that they conducted this
examination?

A. It says it's dated 2pril 30, 2002.

Q. And if vou turn to -- we'll take a look inside the
expanded report of examination. If you take a lock at the
page ending 668, the first paragraph on that page.

Is that significant to your opinions in this case?
A. Yes. Is it the first -- my copy doesn't show -- the first

full paragraph starts with, While the misrepresentation.
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Q. Yes, the first partial paragraph.

A. Okay.
Q. Is that significant to your opinion in this case?
A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell us why?

A. Well, it saye -- let's gee if we can --

Q. The sentence there begins, After reviewing the complaints.

A. Yeah, I was just lcoking at the previous sentence here.
After reviewing the complaints, HFC's resgponses to

the complaints and documents relative to the complaints, the

Department believes that HFC representatives have emploved

sales tactics intended to mislead, misdirect or confuse the

borrower. As discussed below, this belief is supported by the

Department's own test originations of locans at three different

HFC branches in Washington.

Q. What about the first sentence that you read, why is that

suppeortive of your opinion in this case?

A. After reviewing the complaints, because the -- my opinions

go to misleading, misdirecting or confusing the borrower; and

so this would support my opinions.

Q. And did the Washington Department of Financial

Institutions come to that same conclusion?

A, Yes.

Q. What about the second sentence that you read?

A. Well, the second sentence is very unusual. The Department
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in Washington State actually went out and did mystery
shopping, if you know what that is, where you go into the
store to see if -- you know, how the sales staff treats you
and report back to the company. They were getting so many
complaints, they decided to go out and do some mystery
shopping themselves. But when you do this as an examiner, you
actually apply for a loan. Aand it actually makes your credit
rating go down. So this is a very extreme step to take as a
regulator. We did it at the OCC a handful of times in the 18
yvears I was there.

And so this is what they did. That's what this
sentence means, As discussed below, this belief is supported
by the Department's own tegt originations of loans at three
different HFC branches in Washington.

So they went a really extra step in actually applying
for loans at three different branches to see what their sales
techniques were going to be.

Q. BAnd what did they conclude when they went and engaged in
this mystery shopping?

A. Well, in some respects, the disclosures that were supposed
to be given to them were not given to them. Or in another
regpect, somebody put their arm over the disclosures. But
they found many of the same practices that we've discussed
here in the last couple of days.

Q. Did they conclude when they engaged in this mystery
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shopping that the Household/HFC sales representatives engaged
in sales tactics intended to mislead, misdirect or confuse the
borrower?
A, Yes.
Q. If you take a look down at the heading number two,
confusion over rates, points and fees.
A. Yes.
Q. Does that have any bearing on your opinion in this case?
A. It does. And it says, Consumers complain that they were
somehow confused or misled about the rates, points or fees
offered by HFC. Some consumers apparently believed that their
rate would either be lower than what it was or that somehow
the effective rate would be lower due to the payment
structure. Other consumers were alarmed at the amount of fees
they were required to pay in the transaction, indicating that
they must have somehow been confused about the fees they would
ray.
Q. 8o why is that supportive of your opinion?
A. Well, because this whole effective rate scheme was
developed to make -- so that Househeld could compare their
otherwise high interest rate loan with a competitor's lower
interest rate loan. And we've seen examples of effective rate
presentations being made around the country. 8o it further
supports my opinions that Household engaged in systemic

predatory practices.
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Q. Did it bear on your opinion that the predatory practice
specifically in this case, the use of effective rate or
equivalent rate, was widespread?
A, Yes.
Q. 2nd how does it support -- in what way doeg it support
your opinion?
A. Well, they went -- they actually went and did tests
themselves to see if what the complaints that they were
receiving about this effective rate presentation were true.
And they've concluded that, in fact, that the way that
Household was structuring their rates were intended to

migslead, misdirect and confuse the borrower or deceptive sales

practices, which is part of the definition of predatory -- or
covers -- the predatory lending term covers deceptive sales
practices.

Q. If you look at the next paragraph, third sentence in, it
begins, A subpattern of this pattern of confusion.

A, Yes.

Q. Does that have any bearing on your conclusions in this
case?

A. It does. It says, A subpattern of this pattern of
confusion has been identified by the Department in HFC's
misuse of the good faith estimate and what appears to be
intentional confusion about discount points charged on certain

loans. This subpattern of confusion has been identified by



03:45:45 &5

9

03:46:03 10

11
12
13

14

03:46:18 15

03:

03

16

17

18

19

46:32 20

21

22

23

24

:46:50 25

Ghiglieri - direct
614

the Department in over half of the recent complaints and is
discussed in greater depth below.
Q. How does that bear on your opinion in this case?
A. Well, my opinion is that they used the good faith estimate
to confuse the borrower by showing a wide range of c¢losing
costs when, in fact, they were going to be charged at the
higher rate or possibly greater than the range. A2And this
supports my opinion.
Q. If you could turn to page ending 670. 2And I guess the
first -- the second full paragraph on that page. It begins,
The Department has alsc identified three additional concerns.

Does that have any significance to your opinions in
this case?
A, Yes.
Q. Why?
A. This says that, The Department has identified three
additicnal concerns resulting from borrower confugion over the
biweekly and bimonthly program. One, borrowers have heen told
that by accepting the biweekly payment program, they can
effectively reduce the interest rate on their loan from
approximately 14 percent down to 7 percent. The Department
has encountered reference to this 14 to 7 percent statement a
number of times and addressed the problem directly with HFC
management in mid 2001. HFC informed the Department that the

practice was isolated to a single branch in Washington and
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that the matter was not a corporate practice. However, the
Department has identified the practice to other branches in
Washington and has received reports from other regulators in
other states concerning the practice. Contrary to HFC's
claims, the Department does not believe the practice is
isclated.
Q. How is that relevant or significant to your opiniong in
this case?
A. They're concluding that this effective rate presentation
is cropping up in other than just the Bellingham, Washington,
office, which is what HF- -- Household would always say that's
the rogue office, Bellingham, Washington; and that they're
hearing from regulators around the country that this is
cropping up there too. And that supports my opinion that
Household engaged in systemic and companywide predatory
lending practices.
Q. If you turn to the page ending 671. It's a continuation
cf identify patterns that the Department of Financial
Institutions in Washington has observed. If you lock at
number five on that page. 1It's the second paragraph there.
It's entitled prepayment penalty.
A. Yes.
Q. The first sentence of that paragraph, deces that support
your opinion in this case?

A. Yes. It says, Consumers complained that they were unaware
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of a prepayment penalty or that they were told they did not
have a prepayment penalty. However, their loans did contain a
prepayment penalty,
Q. And if you take a look at the next page, page ending 672.
The heading number six indicates an insurance packing. Do you
see that?
A, Yes.
Q. Did the Washington DFI or Department of Financial
Institutions also find indications of insurance packing?
A. Yes.
Q. 2and if you take a lock down at seven, upselling loans.
A. Yes.
Q. The first sentence under seven, upsgelling loans, does that
suppert your opinion in this case?
A. It does. And this is basically the loan splitting. The
Department found that HFC attempts to provide both a first and
a second mortgage to borrowers regardless of the borrower's
desire or need for two loans.

And that's the loan splitting that we talked about.
Q. 1I'll show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit
445 for identification.

{Tendered.}

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 4457

A, I do.



Ghiglieri - direct
617
1 ¢. What is it?
2 A. This is a memo. It's been -- it's an attachment o an
3 e-mail from Stephen Hicks to a variety of people at Household.
4 And the subject is Meeting with Michigan regulators. A&And it's
03:49:58 5 dated June 18, 2002.
& Q. Why do you recognize this document?
7 A. This was a document that I looked at in formulating my
8 opinions.
9 MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs offer Exhibit 455 in
03:50:14 10 evidence.
11 THE CCURT: It will be admitted.
12 BY MR. DROSMAN:
13 Q. 2and, specifically, this particular document, this was sent
14 by Stephen Hicks, it indicates?
03:50:24 15 A. Yes.
16 0. And if you lock at the page ending 592, it appears to be a
17 memc that Mr. Hicks sent?
18 A. Yes.
19 Q. Who is Mr. Hicks?
03:50:34 20 A. He was an official at Household.
21 Q. And was he in the policy and compliance department?
22 A. I believe so.
23 Q. And that's the department that interfaces with the
24 regulators?

03:50:44 25 A. Yes, Mr. Schneider's department.
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Q. And the subject indicates Meeting with Michigan
regulators?
A. Yes,.
Q. On what date was the meeting with the Michigan regulators?
A. June 7, 2002, it says.
Q. And if you look at the second to last sentence of the
first paragraph, were there two significant issues for the
Michigan regulators?
A. Yes. They talked about the good faith estimate and proper
disclesure, and they talked about prepayment penalties.
Q. The first significant issue for the Michigan regulators
reads GFE and proper disclosure there?
A. Yes.
Q. Can you tell us whether that's significant to your
opinion?
A. It's gimilar findings to what I saw in other states. And-
it says, The examiners -- and this is Michigan regulators now.
The examiners reviewed approximately 60 loan files and
identified six where the GFE was missing, fees were not
disclosed or the difference in fees disclosed versus the
HUD-1 -- which is the good faith estimate -- or which is
the -- the HUD-1 is your closing document -- was significant.
S0 let me read that again.

The examiners reviewed 60 loan files and identified

six where the GFE -- which is the good faith estimate given
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three days after the completed application -- was missing,
fees were not disclosed or the difference in the fees
disclosed versus the HUD-1 -- which is the closing document ---
was significant.
Q. What does the next sentence say?
A. With a 10 percent error rate, they indicated that they
would require corrective action.
Q. 2And why is this significant to your opinion?
A. Because this is the type of activity that I saw in other
states to draw the conclusion that Household engaged in
systemic and companywide predatory lending practices.
Q0. 2nd in this case, specifically, with failure to disclose
and the good faith estimate?
A. Yes.
Q. Can you look at the last full paragraph on that page. It
begins, This repeat examination issue.
A. This repeat examination issue was also noted in their
March 2000 examination. The examiners expressed concern over
our lack of action in getting this issue resolved.
¢. Is that significant to your opinion in this case?
A. Yes. Examiners expect -- and regulators expect if they
find something, that it's going to be corrected at the next
examination. And here, this is a repeat examination, which
can lead to an enforcement action, anywhere from a cease and

desist order, requiring refunds, civil money penalties or even
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change in management.
Q. So a year earlier, they found the same things, is that
essentially what these people are saying?
A, Yes.

Q. If you could turn to the next page, page ending 5%3. One

of the concerns that the Michigan regulators expressed -- it's
the third one on the page -- is credit insurance
cancellations?

A. Yes., It says, The examiners indicated that they are
alarmed with significant numbers of cancellations of moertgage
insurance. They indicated that the cancellation rate
suggested our sales practices may be inappropriate. They
indicated that the rate was much higher than any of their
other regulated lenders. They estimated that our cancellation
rate was 50 percent within the first three months of the loan.
They asked us to lock into it.

Q. How is that significant?

A. If you remember, the free look that the Household sales
gtaff was trained to deo -- so, in other words, if -- assume
that the customer wants the insurance, the insurance would be
put on the loan documents. When the borrower would look at it
and say, well, what is that? Is that credit insurance? I
den't want that; they were trained to say, don't worry, you
can keep it for 30 days and then cancel it.

So what as a regulator you're trained to do ig vou
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1 look at the penetration ratios to see if insurance is
2 required; and, that is, how many locans that were booked in a
3 l given time frame had insurance. Or you look to see if there's
4 an excessive number of cancellations. And that's what they
63:54:52 5 did in Michigan. They noticed that there's an excessive
6 number of cancellations, and that could be indicative that
7 there's insurance packing geing on and these people are
8 canceling it.
9 Q. And then the next item there, prepayment penalties?
03:55:06 10 4. Prepayment penalties. It says here, The examiners
11 indicated that based on a review of our complaints, we need to
12 better disclose to our customers the terms of the lcan. They
13 indicated that there seems to be a lot of confusion among ocur
14 customers regarding terms. They indicate that several
03:55:21 15 complaints mention that our branch personnel make many
16 inappropriate comments when questioned about prepayment
17 penalties. For example, it was noted that ocur branch
18 personnel say, Don't worry about the penalty.
19 2nd I've seen that in other places where they say
03:55:36 20 don't worry, it will be waived. B2&nd we saw that in one of the
21 complaints from Ms. Adams, that she was told it would be
22 waived for a job relocation.
23 Q. 2And Ms. Adams was from Pennsylvania, right?
24 A. I believe so.

03:55:49 25 Q. And this is the Michigan regulators?
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1 A. This is Michigan.
2 0. Identifying the same practice --
3 A. Yes.
4 Q. -- that Ms. Adams complained about?
03:55:55 & A. That's right.
6 Q. I'll show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit
7 19 for identification.
a8 {(Tendered.}
S BY MR. DROSMAN:
03:56:24 10 Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 19?7
11 A, Yes.
12 Q. And what is it?
13 A. This is an FDIC/OTS concurrent examination report.
14 Q. What's the date of it?
03:56:35 15 A. ARugust 27, 200L1.
16 Q. Why do vou recognize it?
17 A. This is one of the documents that I looked at in
18 formulating my opinions.
19 MR. DROSMAN: Your Honor, plaintiffs offer Exhibit 19
03:56:47 20 into evidence.
21 THE COURT: It will be adwmitted.
22 BY MR. DROSMAN:
23 Q. Let's take a look at the first page.
24 What does the FDIC stand for?

03:56:56 25 A. The FDIC is the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
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And they are the federal agency that insures the deposits of

depository institutions in the United States.

Q. And then if you look below -- apparently that's their
geal?
A, Yes.

. If you look below the seal, it says FDIC review concurrent
with OTS exam?

A. That's right.

Q. What does that mean?

A. That means that the FDIC has backup regulatory authority
for any entity that they are insuring the deposits. 1In this
case Household's bank, FSB stands for Federal Savings Bank.
And so the FDIC went in concurrently with the 0TS to do a
joint examination.

Q. And concurrently means at the same time?

. At the same time.

Q. If you turn to page ending 689. There looks like there
have been some portions of this document which have been
redacted or deleted. But if you look at the bottom portion of
the document, the first two sentences there, is that
significant to your opinion?

A. Yes. It says, The thrift appears to be involved in -- to
some extent in predatory lending. Further, a consumer
advocacy group has named Household organization the 2001

predatory shark lender of the year.
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Q. And then if you go ahead and turn to page ending 6%9%. Aand
there's a small section of text on that page. I think the
rest has been deleted or redacted.

Can vou tell me whether that's significant to your
opinion?
A. The OTS and the FDIC examiners believe that insurance
gales practices are predatory. Community affairs specialist
Glenn Brewer is currently reviewing practices and will be
preparing a memo. The penetration rate of insurance sales of
property, credit, life, unemployment and disability insurance
are all considered high, as illustrated in the table below.
Q. 2&nd unfortunately we don't have that table. But what does
the OT5 refer to in that sentence?
A. That's the Office of Thrift Supervision. That's the
primary federal regulator of the Federal Savings Bank.
Q. I'll show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit
550 for identification.

(Tendered. }

BY MR. DRCSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Exhibit 5507
A. I do.
Q. What is itz
A. It is a document attached to an e-mail. The e-mail is
dated August 15, 2002. It's from David Huey, which is -- he's

at the Washington State 2G's office, to Kathleen Curtin and
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others. And it's -- the subject is multistate working group
reply to HFC.
Q. Why do vou recognize this document?
A. This is one of the documents I reviewed in formulating my
opinions.

MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs offer Exhibit 550 into
evidence.
THE COQURT: It will be admitted.

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Let's take a look at the first page. You said that it was
from David Huey from the Washington State AG. What does AG
stand for?
A. Attorney general.
Q. &and it looks like on the right there to Mr. Huey's name,
there's a cc to a number of other people.. Do you see that?
A. Yes.
Q. Who are those other people?
A, I think those are all ¢f the other members of the
multistate working group, it locks like tc me.
Q. Are those others attorneys general?
A. Yes.
Q. And you mentioned a multistate working group. Can you
tell us what that is?
A. Well, in.the case -- in this case, the attorneys general

from various states got together because they were all
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receiving this -- similar complaints regarding Household. 2and
they got together to discuss what they needed to de. And so
this is part of that discussgion with Eousehold on the
complaints and the regulatory issues that they were seeing in
various states.
Q. So the right-hand column there lists the names and e-mail
addresses of different attorneys generals from states all
across the United States?
A, Yes,
Q. TIowa is there; is that right?
A. Iowa, New York, Michigan, Ohio, New Mexico, California,
Florida, Minnesota, Michigan.
Q. And then if you take a look, it appears that the e-mail
attaches a memo, is that correct, on page ending 7567
A. Yes.
Q. &And this memo was addressed to Kathleen Curtin; is that
right?
A, Yes.
Q. Who is Kathleen Curtin?
A. She was the lawyer for -- general counsel for the consumer
finance section of Household. It says HFC/Beneficial.
Q. So she's the vice president and general counsel of HFC?
A. Yes.
C. And what was the date of the memo?

A. The date is -- August 15 is the e-mail. &And the memo is
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August 14 --
Q. And --
A, -- 2002.

Q. And who is writing this particular memc?
A. 2&nd the memoc is being written by David Huey on behalf of
the multistate working group.
Q. And David Huey was the assistant attorney general from the
State of Washington?
A. Right, from Washington State.
Q. And he was sort of the representative of all the different
attorneys generals across the United States?
A. Right.
Q. And if you take a look at the second -- third paragraph on
that page, it's the third sentence in, can you tell us whether
that has any significance to your opinions in this case?
A. It says, Household's hope that the states would reconsider
their position that some of Household's practices are
problematic is understandable. However, we believe that your
company may have underestimated our understanding of how its
practices are actually implemented where it counts, at the
interface with your customers,

The explanations and rationales Household articulated
on July 9 and in the July 17 letter have not given us any
reason to reconsider our position that the practices we

earlier identified present serious problems under a variety of
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consumer protection and regulatory laws.

Further, the responses provided no information which
has led us to change our position that those identified
practices warrant changes in the future and relief for
Household's customers who suffered from them in the past.

Q. Is that significant to your opinion in this case?

A, Yes.

Q. Why?

A. Because my opinions are that Household engaged in systemic
and companywide predatory lending. &And that's what they were
saying, it's more pervasive than Heousehold wantg to admit.

Q. If you could turn to the page ending 757 and take a lock
at the fourth paragraph on that page.

A. And it begins with what? I want --

Q. We had hoped for the -- that the July 17 letter would have
been more responsive.

A. We had hoped that the July 17 letter would have been more
responsive to the proposed framework for settlement rather
than purely defensive. Indeed, the letter seems to indicate a
continued denial concerning what we have found to be
nationwide common practices. While Household might like to
maintain the belief that these are isolated instances with
rogue offices and loan officers, the coast-to-coast usage of
common forms and sales techniques belie any such position.

Q. Tell us why that's significant to your opinion.



04:06:02 5

04:06:17 10

11

12

13

14

04:06:33 15

le

17

i8

19

04:06:48 20

21

22

23

24

04:07:12 25

Ghiglieri - direct
629

A. BAnd it supports my position -- my opinions that Household
engaged in companywide and systemic predatory lending; that
the excuse that it's a rogue officer or a rogue branch in
EBellingham, Washington, for example, doesn't hold water when
you lock at the sum total of the documentation.
Q. So this is essentially the multistate AGs, the attorneys
generals from all across the United States, rejecting
Household's explanation that it was just a few bad apples?
A. Yes.
Q. Then if you could turn to the next page, page ending 758,
and look at the first paragraph there. 1It's a partial
paragraph. It begins, These figures are, to put it mildly,
large.

Can you tell us whether the rest of that paragraph
supports your opinion in this case?
A. Yes. We note that several of the most insidiocugly
deceptive sales practices, which attracted regulatory
attention to Household practices at the outset, relate to
products and practices initiated by Household in 1959,
Industry figures indicate that since 1999, Household's
originations have nearly doubled. ZAlmost assuredly the
misleading sales practices the states have identified have
contributed to that growth. Ultimately the value of
restitution and reformation must be viewed against that

backdrop.
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Q. Why does this particular information support your opinion
in this case?
A. Well, because my opinions outline that when Gary Gilmer
came to Household in 1998, the focus turned to growth; and
that for 1999, there was an obsession about growth. And they
hired Andrew Kahr. They developed these predateory products
and services, which they implemented. B2and they did grow. As
it shows here, Household's originations nearly doubled. 2And
the conclusion of the regulators supports my conclusion that
they engaged in predatory lending practices and that they were
systemic and companywide.
Q. This growth that you said, that they doubled their loan
originations, right? What are loan originations?
A. Those are new loans that they booked. And we talked about
how the employees were being compensated for booking more
loans and for bocking more dollars. 2And that's what they're
talking about. The number of new loans, the dollar amount of
new loans that they booked doubled and -- since 1999. And the
date of this was August of 2002.
©. And what does the Washington State attormeys generals
attribute that huge doubling of loan originations to?
A. To these deceptive sales practices that have -- that they
implemented and that they were using.
©. BAnd is that consistent with your opinion in this case?

A. Yes.
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MR. KAVALER: Objection, your Henor.

THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. What's your understanding as to how major issues and
obstacles relates to predatory lending on that page?
&. They were listing the major issues and obstacles to their
loan growth and their profitability. And so they have several
listed here, and one of them is predatory lending.
Q. So they highlighted that as a major issue and ocbstacle to
loan growth?
A. Or to their operating plan, what their gcals were for
2001.
0. Let's talk a little bit about ways in which you went about
reaching your conclusions in this case.

Did you ever look at, for example, the total number
of Household's loans, on the one hand, and then the number of
complaints on the other and try to calculate scome sort of
complaint-to-open-loan ratio or percentage?

A. No.

Q. Why not?

A. Because that ratio is meaningless. Regulators look at
complaints on a complaint-by-complaint basis because it's very
difficult for pecple to file a complaint. It takes a lot of
energy. They have to put something in writing. They have to

get all their documentation together. And so when someone
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complains, the regulators take it seriously. Even 1f there's
a handful of complaints, the regulators take them seriocusly.

They look at each complaint. They get the response
from the lender, in this case Household. And they come to
some conclusion whether laws had been viclated or deceptive
practices have been folisted cn the borrower, whatever the
issue might be. And so the -- the complaint framework and the
complaint~based review of a lender does not lend itself to a
ratio analysis of complaints te open loans. It's —-- that's
not meaningful.
Q. Now, when you were —- you were a lender for 25 -- I mean
you were a regulator for 25 years; is that right?
A. Yes.
Q. And first you were a regulator with the OCC, the federal
government; is that right?
A. That's right, the regulator of national banks.
Q. And then a regulator for the Texas State Banking
Commission; 1s that right?
A. Right. T was the Texas banking commissioner.
Q. You headed that department?
A. Yes.
Q. Did you ever calculate this ratio of complaints te open
leoans during your 25 years of regulatory experience?
A. No.

0. Did you ever have anybody underneath you say calculate
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open loans.

Do you recall that?
A, I do.
Q. BAnd you talked about the fact that you looked at the
seriousness of the allegations, the gecgraphic dispersion or
spread of those allegations.

Did you look at anything else when assessing
complaints, customer complaints?
A. Well, in the Household case or Just as a regulator?
0. As a regulator.
A. As a regulator, I would lock at the nature of the
ccmplaint, what type of a complaint was it, what were the
allegations in terms of violations of law; and, of course,
then how widespread was 1t In the particular lender, how
serious was it, what was the response of the company. 35S0 you
try and take everything into consideration.
¢. Did you also look at the trend of complaints, whether they
were increasing or decreasing over time?
A. Yes.
0. A&nd why did you do that?
A. Well, because 1f —-- whenever a complaint would come in, we
would always send it to the regulated entity. In the case --
in my case, that would be national banks or state banks. And
we would ask, you know, how —- what do you think about this

complaint; and if it's valid, how are you going to resolve it.
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And so you would expect if it was a legitimate Iissue, for it
to be corrected. So if we continued to see complaints of the
same nature, you know, then ws might send an examiner out to
do a special investigation, for example. Or we vould
definitely send the complaints to the examiners in case they
wanted to expand the scope of their examination.
Q. And in this particular case, when you were examining the
documents tc arrive at your conclusions, did you look at all
three of these issues with respect to the complaints that
customers made abecut Household?
A. Yes.
0. Are there other reasons that a ratio of complaints to open
loans wouldn't provide you with useful information?
A. Well, it deoesn't lend itself to a ratio analysis, such as
looking at how many loans in a loan portfolic are past due,
because pesople who have bsen taken advantage of often don't
know they've been taken advantage of so they don't know to
complain. And a lot of people that are mad about something,
for example, I've been taken advantage cf, won't go to the
effort to write it down and send it in. And that's what we've
known over the course of time. So it's just not something
that lends itself to a ratio analysis.

You have to take every complaint sericusly. You have
to analyze every complalnt. And you have to get the

explanation from the lender to find out why are we getting
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conclusiens in this case?
A. Yes, I did.
0. And did Household's denials of predatory lending, did that
alter or change your view that Household engaged in widespread
systemic predatory lending practices?
A. Well, I looked at the documents prior to formulating my
opinions. I took all of the information intc consideratien in
formulating my opinions. And the more documents that I looked
at, the less persuasive that argument became in my mind. And
I concluded at the end of looking at all the information that
Household engaged in widespread and systemic and companywide
predatory lending, notwithstanding their claims that 1t was --
you know, that they didn't or that it was a rogue employse or
a rogue branch.
Q. Why didn't the Household's denials that they engaged in
predatory lending, why didn't that change your view that they
did, in fact, engage in widespread, systemic predatory lending
practices?
A. Well, there were several reasons why that didn't change my
view. The first one is because, as these complaints started
to escalate, I didn't see from Yousehold any attempt at trying
to identify the root causes of these complaints. I would ses
an issuance here or an e-mail there that would say we don't

engage in predatory lending or everyone &lse in the industry

engages in 1t but us.
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A. So as re-agings go up, as loansg are re-aged, which is
taken out of the two-plus bucket and put back-in current, the
number of two-plus delinguencies goes down. So¢ this is taking
locans from the two-plus bucket and putting them over into the
current bucket. So there's an inverse relationship between
re-aging and delingquent -- two-plus delinguencies.
Q. What if two-plus delinguencies go up instead of down, what
ig the effect on re-aging?
A. Well, if they -- if Househeld stopped re-aging, for
example, or diminished the amount of their re-aging, the
re-aging would go down and the delinguencies would go up
because then the -- there was no way to make those loans
current. 8o here re-aging is geoing down and the two-plus
numbers are going up, so it's a direct inverse relationship.
Q. And isg re-aging of lcans significant te a regulator?
A. Yes. When I was a field examiner, this is one of the
things that we looked at in particular to determine if a
lender was masking their delinquencies. We would look at a
variety of tactics that they could use, for example, rewriting
the loan, forbearance, a variety of things. And we would look
to see how prevalent that was in the loan portfolic because
the more they were doing that, the more it would lead us to
conclude that they were masking delinquencies.
Q. Now, during your reviews as an expert in this case, did

you determine whether Household used re-aging to manipulate
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its two-plus delinguency number?
A. Yes, that was one of my conclusions, was that Household
used various re-aging tactics and practices to mask their
delinquencies.
Q. I'l? show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit
1287 for identification.
(Tendered.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 13872
A. I do.
Q. What is it?
A. This is an e-mail from Elaine Markell to Rich Peters and
others at Household =-- she was at Household -- regarding the
Re-aging Fitch Servicer Presentation Slides, dated November
12, 2002.
Q. Why do you recognize this document?
A. This was one of the documents that I locked at in
formulating my opinicns on the re-aging issues.

MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs move Exhibit 1387 into
evidence.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Why don't we gtart at the bottom e-mail, I guess, the
first in the string. And can you .tell us, first, who Elaine

Markell is in this e-mail?
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A. Elaine Markell is a woman who worked in the mortgage
services division, which was kind of the sister division of
consumer lending.
¢. And wag she the vice president of default services in that
mortgage services business unit?
A. Yes.
Q. And it looks like she's sending an e-mail to Rich Peters.
Was he the vigce president of credit risk for Household
mortgage services?
A. Yes.
Q. What's significant to you about this e-mail that
Ms. Markell is sending?
A. Well, if the -- if you could highlight this -- the
paragraph here. It says, Rich, you need to change the slides
for the presentatiomn.

And this is for the presentationrto Fitch.

First of all, what you have on the glides does not
represent the policies in place since September 27 when I was
directed to add back EZ pay restructures and restructures on
bankruptcies 13.

That means Chapter 13 bankruptcies.

The bankruptcy 13 restructures were done upon recelpt
of the plan without the payment of funds. In addition to
that, restructures were done on any Chapter 13 where one

payment was made in the past 60 days. Since there was no
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other reagon for the implementation of thése restructure
policies other than to make the predetermined delinguency
number, you must take the bullet point cut that restructures
are not done to defer loss recognition since it clearly does.
Presenting the true facts about restructures to Fitch is
equally as important as stating the true and unadjusted
delinguency which we have discussed before.
Q. One of the sentences you read there said, 8ince there's no
other reason for the implementation of these restructure
policies other than to make the predetermined delinquency
number.
What's the difference between restructuring and
re-aging?
A. Household used them interchangeably.
Q. So why is that significant to you, that Ms. Markell
thought that there was no other reason for the implementation
of these re-aging or restructuring pelicies cther than to make
the predetermined delinguency number?
A. Because Household was trying to hit a delinquency target.
Becauge at this point in time, in November 2002, they were
reporting certain delingquency numbers and certain of their
policies. And Fitch is a reporting agency that was coming in
to give them a more fuller investigation.
Q. Does this suggest or support your opinion that Household

was using re-aging to manipulate its two-plus delinguency
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number?
A, Yes.
Q. How does it do that?
A. Well, because she's saying here there's no other reason
for us to be doing these restructures with Chapter 13
bankruptcy accounts and doing all these shenanigans if it
wasn't to make a certain number.
Q. And the delinquency number in this case, is that the
two-plus delinquency number?
A, Yes.
Q. I'll show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit
77 for identification.
(Tendered.)
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Exhibit 77?7
A. I do.
Q. What is it?
A. This is an e-mail string regarding the re-aging, on how
many loans had been re-aged one time versus multiple times,
with a chart attached showing that very thing.
Q. What's the date of the e-mail?
A, The date is September 11, 2002.
Q. And why do you recognize this document?
A, This is one of the documents that I lcoked at to analyze

and formulate my opinions regarding re-aging.
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MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs offer Exhibit 77 into
evidence.
THE COURT: It's admitted.
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Why don't we take a loock -- you said it's two pages,.an

e-mail with an attachment. Why don't we look at the e-mail.

Can you tell us the significance of the e-mail to

your opinion?

A. Yes. The bottom says, For your informaticn.

Mr. Schoenholz askéd for a ratio -- and that should say of --
domestic multiple re-ages as a percentage of total re-age.
The question came to me via Gary -- which I assume is

Gilmer -- and we provided Mr. Schoenholz with the ratio of
47.9 percent over the phone.

And then if you lock at the second page and look at
the bottom line. If you could highlight the very bottom line,
you can see -- let's see if -- okay. This line right here
shows total re-age loans of $15 billion of a total portfolio
of $98 hillion.

Q. What does that mean?

A. Or 47.9 percent of these loans have been re-aged multiple
times. So of the re-age section -- let me start all over
again.

Of the loans that Household had that had been

‘re-aged, 47.9 percent of them had been re-aged more than one
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time.
Q. So let's start -- starting in this $98 billion number,
this signifies all of the lcans that Household had at that
time?
A, Yes.
Q. And then what does this $15.9 billion number signify?
A. And that signifies how many had been re-aged. 2and that
wouid have been 16 percent of their whole portfolio had been
re-aged.
Q. 2and then this 47.9 percent number, what does that mean?
A. Of the 15 billion, 47.9 percent had been re-aged, almost
half of the 15 billion had been re-aged multiple times.
Q. And what does that mean, re-aged multiple times?
A. Well, it's reall? -- when you re-age something, you know,
you're taking it out of the delinquency and you're putting it
into the current bucket. And then they're not paying again,
and then you re-age it again and you re—ége it again. And so
you are, in effect, masking your past due because there's no
way for the customer -- the customer is nct paying. You're
just re-aging it to take it out of the delinquency bucket.
aAnd that's what Household was doing.
Q. So re-aging multiple times means you've re-aged a loan
once already, you're re-aging it again, perhaps again and
again --

A. Right.
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Q. -- just to take it out of the.delinquent bucket repeatedly
and put it back in the current?
A. Right. »And the time frame is, it's in the two-plus bucket
and you re-age sc it gees back to current. So it takes a
number of months. It takes two months to get it back in the
two-plus bucket. Then you re-age it and it goes into the
current. Then it takesg a couple of months to get back there.
éo once they re-age, they have a little bit of time before
they have to deal with it again.
Q. And who is asking for this information, this ratio of how
many loans had been re-aged multiple times?
A. It says Mr. Schoenholz is asking for it.
0. &2nd that's David Scheoenholz, the CFO of the company?
A. Yes.
Q. 1I'll show you what has been marked as Plaintiffg' Exhibit
654 for identificaticn.

{Tendered.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 6547
A. I do.
Q. And what is this?
2. This is an e-mail from Dave Stockdale to various managers
or senior -- senior managers at Household. And the subject is
retail services re-age policy. BAnd the date is September 4,

2001.
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0. &nd why do you recognize this document?
A. This is one of the documents I looked at in formulating my
opinions.

MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs offer Exhibit 654 into
evidence.

THE COURT: It's admitted.
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Why don't we take a look at this. The bottom e-mail
appears to be from Dave Stockdale; is that right?
A. It looks like it's from Dave Stockdale to Paul
"Markawitz."
Q. Paul Makowski?
A. I'm sorry. I'm mispronouncing his name. Makowski, ves.
Q. Mr. Makowski was the chief credit cofficer; is that
correct?
A. Yes.
Q. If you take a look at the second paragraph of the e-mail,
does that have any significance to your opinion?
A. Yes. This is what I was talking about. This says, For
maximum benefit to year-end, retail sales should perform the
re-age between the customer cycle date and the month-end with
a sweep at menth-end. This will ensure that all September
re-ages will be unable to reach two-plug by year-end.

In other words, they're going to take all of them at

a certain time because then it would prevent them from
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progresgeing back to the two-plus number by vear-end when they
have to report it on their 10-K.
Q. So is this significant to your opinicn that Household
manipulated its two-plus delinguency number through the use of
re-aging?
4. Yes.
Q. Why?
A. Well, because they're discussing how they're going to
manipulate their delinquency number by using the re-age
practice at a certain -- and they're even planning when
they're going to use it so that these loans won't then become
delinquent and show up again in the two-plus bucket at
year-end,
0. Then the last sentence there says, This will ensure that
all September re-ages will be unable to reach two-plus at
vear-end.
A. Yes.
0. Do you see that?

What do you understand that to mean?

2. Well, they were timing the re-ages so that they could
prevent the ones in this particular category from kecoming
delinquent again, such that it reaches that two-plus bucket at
year-end so they don't have to disclose it as delinguent.
Q. They have to disclose all the delinguent locans at the

year-end in their form 10-K, their annual report?
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A. Yes.
0. And so what's your conclusion about why -- what this means
here?

A. So they're timing these re-ages so that this group of
loans will not shoﬁ up as two-plus delinquent at year-end.
Q. And they do that by re-aging those loans?
A. Yes, at a certain time. They're timing it because they
know that the progression will be that it will go te 30 days
past due, then 60 days past due, in which case it's going to
end up in the two-plus bucket. So they're timing it so that
doesn't happen until January so they don't have to disclose
it.
Q. I'll show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit
454 for identification.
{Tendered.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
0. Before we actually get to 454, there was one igsue on that
last exhibit that we were talking about that I wanted to
discuss with you,

If we can put back up 654, the first page.

and this is the example of the timing of the re-ages
so that they wouldn't be delinguent at yvear-end. If you look
at the top e-mail, it looks like it was forwarded by
Mr. Makowski?

A. Yes.
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Q. 2nd was it forwarded to Mr. Schoenholz?
A. Yes. He was cc'd on it.
¢. Perhaps we can zoom in on that so we can see whether it
was forwarded teo Mr. Scheenholz.

S50 you said Mr. Schecenholz received a copy of this
e-mail?
A. Yes.
Q. Why don't we turn now to Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 454 for
identification.

Do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 4547
A. I do.
Q. What is it?
A. This is a document. It's an e-mail string. And it's got
some handwritten notes and then a chart attached to it.
Q. And the e-mail string that you talked about, who is the
e-mail from?
A. Well, there are several e-mails, but some of them are from
Gary Gilmer.
Q. &aAnd what are the datesg?
A. The date of the bottom e-mail is February 22, 2000.
Q. And what's the subject of the e-mail?
A. And the subject ig "cut.*
Q. Why do you recognize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 4547
A. Thisg was one of the documents that I looked at in

formulating my cpinions.
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MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs offer Exhikit 454 into
evidence.

THE COURT: It will be admitted.
BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Let's take a loock at the bottom e-malil on page ending 417
that you said is entitled "cut."

That's from Dick Schaffer; is that right?
A. Yes, and he's sending this to Gary Gilmer.
Q. &And that's the defendant in this case?
A. Yes.
0. 2nd Dick Schaffer is the managing director of operations
for the consumer lending division; is that correct?
A. Yes.
Q. Can you tell me what's significant about the text of that
e-mail?
A. Well, he's saying here, I just revisited the two-plus
forecast with each of my guys. Bottom line locks like a $25
million cut without the magic, parentheses, grace period, and
75,000 with it. We are a little afraid of the 29-day month so
we aren't being coverly aggressive with this forecast. It
looks pretty solid.
Q. Let's just focus on the first two sentences of that
e-mail. Bottom line loocks like a %25 million cut without the
magic, parens, grace period, and $75 miilion with it.

Is he talking about the two-plus delinguency number
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in this case?
A, Yes.
0. And is he talking about a cut te the two-plus delinguency
number?
A. Yes.
Q. So what do you understand this to mean here?
A. Well, what Household did is they would give their
borrowers 15 days after the date that the payment was due as a
grace period to make their payment. A2And so, unlike other
lenders whe just report delinguencies straight up, what they
would do is, say, for example, a loan was 74 days past due,
they would deduct 15 days from that and that would bring it
back down to 59 days and so they wouldn't report that as a
two-plus number, a loan that's in the two-plus bucket.

So they would use grace periods as a way to mask past
due by deducting 15 days from how many ever days the loans
were past due in the two-plus bucket and bringing them back
into the current bucket.

And so what he's saying here is that without the
magic of the grace period, they would not be -- it would look
like their delinquencies would be cut 25 milliocn; but with
using this grace period tactic, they would be able to cut
two-plus numbers 75 million.

Q. So they could cut $50 million from their two-plus numbers

by using the magic of the grace period; is that right?
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A, Yes, yes.
Q. And does this -- is this significant to your opinion that
Household used re-aging practices like the grace period to
manipulate its two-plus numbers?
A. Yes. I mean, there's no reason to do that unless you were
manipulating your delinguencies.
Q. Who is receiving this particular e-mail?
A. Mr. Schaffer was sending it to Gary Gilmer.
Q. I'll show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs' Exhibit
262 for identification.

(Tendered.)

BY MR. DROSMAN:
Q. Do you recognize Plaintiffs’ Exhibit 2627
A. I do.
0. &and what ig Plaintiffs' Exhibit 2627
A. This is a series of e-mails that describes the cut in
delinquencies using this tactic for the grace periods, of
deducting the 15 days and pushing it back into the current
bucket. &nd they're gquantifying it from a dollar perspective
sach month. There's a series of them.
Q. 2nd who is the recipient of these e-mails?
A. Let's see here. It looks like Douglas Friedrich.
Q. And he's the managing director, the head honche, ©of
mortgage services at Household; is that right?

A. Yes.
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Q. And why do you reccgnize Plaintiffs' Exhibit 2627
A. Thig is one of the documents that I reviewed in
formulating my opinions.

MR. DROSMAN: Plaintiffs offer Exhibit 262 into
evidence.

THE CCQURT: Adumitted.
BY MR. DRCSMAN:
Q. Why don't we take a look at the first page of this series
of e-mails.

What's the title of the e-mail?
A. So the title of the e-mail is two-plus reconciliatiocn.
Q. And what does this particular e-mail show?
A. It shows that the adjustment for the 15-day grace period
wag $19 millicn in this case for this month, the month of --
it would be the prior month, so January 2001.
Q. So that the re-aged number was actually 431, is that
right, according to Sarah's figure?
A. Yes.
Q. BAnd then they're deducting or lowering that re-age number
by 19.7 million; is that right?
A. Actually the number is the two-plus number and so then
they're taking out the 15-day grace period. 8o they're
adjusting the two-plus number.
Q. And what are the parens around the 19.7 million?

2. That means they're taking it out. It's negative.
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Q. The final two-plus delinguency number that they come up
with after taking out the grace period is what?
A. 418 million.
Q. &and you said that this e-mail was sent on 2/6/01, so it
would be for the month of January, right?
A. Right.
Q. Let's look at the next page, page ending 842.

and this e-mail was sent on March 7, 2001; is that
right?
A. Yes.
Q. Again, sent to Doug Friedrich, the head of Household's
mortgage services unit; is that right?
A. Right.
Q. And what's this showing here?
A. And thie is the two-plus reconciliation again. So it
shows that the two-plus numbers for the grace peried
adjustment were being reduced by 16 million.
Q. Again, lowering the two-plus numbers by 16.1 million
for --
A. Right, for that month,
0. For that month.

What about the next page?
A. Thig is similar. These are all these same sort of
reconciliations. So here the grace peried adjustment is

17,483,000. So two-plus numbers are being reduced by this
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1 grace period adjustment.
2 0. 2nd what's the date of this e-mail?
3 A. August 7, 2001. So this would be for July.
4 Q. And do the rest of the e-mails show the same thing?
10:56:36 5 A, Yes.
6 Q. Does this -- is this significant to your opinion that
7 Household used re-aging tactics like the use of the grace
8 period to manipulate its two-plus delinquency numbers?
9 A. Yes,
10:56:48 10 Q. Why?
11 A. Well, becauge there's no reason to make thig kind of
12 adjustment. Other lenders just do a straight-up deal. Here,
13 what they were doing is using their grace period to move loans
14 from the two-plus bucket back to current. And the pass --
10:57:03 15 rhese sortg of delinquency numbers are very important to
16 regulators and others hecause it shows the condition of the
17 loan portfolio.
18 0. 1Is this grace period right here, is this the same grace
19 period we heard referred to earlier in an earlier e-mail as
10:57:21 20 the magic?
21 A, Yes.
22 Q. Now, is there a relationship between predatory lending on
23 the one hand -- we talked gquite a bit about that yvesterday --
24 and the use of practices like re-aging to hide the true

10:57:34 25 quality of Household's loans on the other?
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1 L. Yes, there is a relationship.
2 Q. Did you prepare a demonstrative to aggist you in
3 explaining the relationship between predatory lending
4 practices on the one hand and hiding the quality of
10:57:46 &5 Household's loans on the other?
6 A. I did.
7 Q. I'll show you what has been marked as Plaintiffs’
8 Demonstrative Exhibit 31 for identification.
9 Can you tell us what this exhibit shows?
10:58:05 10 A. ves. Household starts out making a predatory loan. And
11 remember, they're packing on fees and insurance premiums and
12 gtripping away the equity. And what happens is, the borrower
13 cannot pay the leoan. 1It's toc large for the borrower toc pay.
14 S0 Household has one of two choices. They can either
10:58:26 15 re-age it so that it's not showing up on their two-plus
16 bucket. Or they can refinance it or rewrite it down below,
17 which is flipping it, adding more insurance, adding more fees
18 to it.
19 And then --
10:58:3%9 20 Q. Let me just pause there. To refinance it or rewrite it,
21 does that take it ocut of the two-plus bucket as well?
22 A. Right. &And it brings it back to curreant. So they can
23 either re-age it using some sort of tactic that we've already
24 talked about or they can actually rewrite it and make a new

10:58:56 25 loan and start over.
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Q. Okay.
A. BAnd then, no matter what, the borrower still can't pay
because the loan is so packed full of products, premiums and
fees and can't go anywhere else because the equity has been
stripped and the lcan to value is too high so they're stuck.
And Household then has one of two choices. They can either
rewrite it on the top, which is flip it again and add more
fees and premiums, insurance premiums to it, or they can
re-age it using one of the tactics, like the grace period or
one of their other tactiecs.
Q. 8o if they rewrite it right here, does that -- again, that
takes it out of the delinguent bucket; now all of a sudden
they have a brand new loan so it's current again?
A. Yes. So whether they re-age it or they rewrite it, that's

going to bring it to the current bucket. But rewriting it

allows them to pack on more fees and insurance premiums. So
they can do -- they can either re-age it or rewrite it.
Q. And you talked -- is there a predatory lending practice

that this implicates right here?

A. Yes. I mean, it implicates all sorts of predatory lending
practices, loan flipping because they're re-aging it multiple
times, insurance packing, equity stripping. If they rewrite
it into two loans, that would be loan splitting. You know,
originally they're reeling them in with the effective rate, as

Dennis Hueman would say, and blocking the back door with the
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prepayment penalty sc that -- and because they've stripped out
the eguity, there's nowhere for them to go to refinance.
0. So what's the last step?
A. So the borrower still can't pay, and the cycle starts over
again and go on one of two paths. 5o there's a correlation
between predatory lending practices and the need for Household
to re-age and mask their delinguencies.
¢. Thank you, Ms. Ghiglieri.
MR. DROSMAEN: I have no further guestions at this
time.
THE COURT: You may cross—examine.
MR, KAVALER: Thank you.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. Good meorning, Ms. Ghiglieri.
hs you know, I'm Tom Kavaler, and I represent the
defendants. And we've met before, correct?
A. Yes.
¢. Okay. I'm going to ask you a few guestions today about
the same subject matter you've been talking about for the past
couple of days. And my time is sort of limited, sc I'm going
to try and ask you guestions that can be answered yes or no.
If I do that, will you answer them yes or no?
B. If I can answer them with a yes or a no.

Q. Perfect. Thank you.
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1 Q. Do you know what percentage of the assets or the revenue
2 were accounted for by those three banks?
3 A. I didn’'t calculate that, nor did I see that in the
4 documents.
11:05:3% 5 Q. Was it a small percentage?
6 a. I don't know.
7 Q. what percentage was accounted for by the finance company?
8 A. I didn't see any of those percentages in the documents.
9 0. And you had never been a securities regulator; is that
11:05:54 10 correct?
11 L. That's correct.
12 Q. And you're offering no opinions here today regarding
13 movements in the price of Household stock, correct?
14 A. That's correct.
11:06:02 15 Q. And you're offering no opinions here about the impact of
16 any public statements on the group of investors that are
17 bringing this action against Household; is that correct?
18 A. Yes.
19 0. Now, you told us yesterday -- ©r I think the day before,
11:06:19 20 Tuesday, I think -- about 40 Bankers BoXes. You remember
21 counsel pointing to this box here and identified £hat as a
22 Bankers Box?
23 A. Yes.
24 0. BAll right. And that's the universe of documents that you

11:06:31 25 reviewed other than the depositions you talked about?



11:06:49

11:07:08

11:07:17

11:07:26

11:07:44

ERY

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Ghiglieri - cross

705
A. Well, if you recall, we had this conversation before. I
reviewed a lot of documents in hard copy. &nd then there were
approximately 75 depositions, some of which I printed out and
some of which I didn't, and then the exhibits to those
depositions. So I reviewed a large number of documents that I
didn't print out, if -- if that's what you're acking me, how
many documents I looked ét.
Q. Let's focus on the 40 Bankers Boxes. Approximately how
many documents does that comprise?
A. I have no idea.
Q. 0Okay. Do you knew roughly how many sheets of paper come
in a Bankersg Box?
A, No.
Q. »About 22,0007
A. I have no idea.
Q. No idea. Okay.

Do vou know that Household, the defendants in this
cage, produced to investors' counsel approximately £ive
million documents?

A. I don't know how many they produced.

Q. Did you select the contents of those 40 boxes from a
larger universe of millions and millions of documents?

A. Well, the plaintiffs' lawyers sent me some documents. I
requested some documents. And I had access to a database that

had depositions and exhibits. BSc scme of -- some of each I
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would say.

Q. Putting aside the depositions and exhibits, vou didn't
personally see the five million document universe and cull it
down to those 40 boxes, did you?

A. I didn't personally see it.

©. Right. Investors' counsel gave you the 40 boxes, right?
A. No. I asked for some documents that I knew, based on my
experience of regulating lenders, that Household would have;
and then they sent me some. So it was a combination of me
asking for some documents and them sending me some documents.
0. But the end result was 40 boxes?

A. Well, approximately, plus all -- everything that I had
access to online.

0. All right. It certainly was not five million documents?
A. I'm sure I didn't look at five million documents.

Q. Okay. And you're giving us here your oplnions about
things that you've read in that universe of documents,
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. You're not testifying to any facts, that is, you don't
know actually what occurred? You only know what you gleaned
from the documents you reviewed, right?

A. That's correct.

Q. Mr. Schoenholz would be able to tell us what he did,

Mr. Aldinger would be able to tell us what he did and
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Mr. Gilmer would be able to tell us what he did, correct?
A. Yes.
0. And you'd be able to express opinions on that?
A. Well, it's the same thing that I did as a regulator. You
know, I would lock at certain things and formulate opinions.
That's what I did here. 1I'm not a fact witness. I'm an
expert witness.
Q. That's my point.
A. Okay. I agree with that.
Q. And you understand that we've also hired an expert, and
our expert is going to have a different opinion?
A. I'm sure.
Q. Now, a few minutes ago, you told us about -- you were
talking about re-aging; and you said -- you were talking about
the two-plus number, and you said Household reported this
information in its 10-K. Do you recall that?
A. Yes.
Q. The 10-K is the annual report?
A. Yes.
Q. That's filed with the SEC?
A, Yes.

0. &And that's publicly available to anyone who wants to read

A, Yes.

Q. Does the SEC have a Web site where people can access those
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documents?
A. Yes.
Q. Did you read Household's annual reports filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission?
A. I looked at some of the charts where they disclosed their
past due, but I didn't read the full documents. That was
outside of really what I was asked to opine on.
Q. 8o you just accessed a part of them?
A. I just locked at them, the delinquency charts.
Q. But you could have accesged all of them?
A. Sure.
Q. And so can anyone?
A. Bo can anyone.
Q. That's public information?
A, Yes.
Q. And you are not here -- and you haven't focused on
anything having to do with the disclosures that Household made
in those public reports or elsewhere, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. Now, you used some words several times in your testimony.
I'd like to explore with you what you meant by them.

You said certain things were systemic. Do you recall
that?
A. 1 do.

Q. Tell me what you meant, please, by systemic.
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1 A. Companywide.
2 Q. Okay. And you used the word companywide alsc. So those
3 both mean the same thing?
4 A. Yes.
11:11:49 5 ¢. BAnd you said widespread. What does that mean?
6 A. Companywide, pervasive.
7 Q. and --
8 A. They all mean the same thing.
9 ¢. I'm sorry. I didn't mean to interrupt you. Are you
i1:11:55 10 finisghed?
i1 A. T guess.
12 Q. Okay. So all three of those words mean the same thing?
13 A. Yes.
14 Q. Okay. Can you define those three words without using
11:12:06 15 those three words? In other words, what does systemic or
16 companywide or widespread mean? Does it mean it's everywhere?
17 Does it mean there's a lot of it? What dces it mean?
18 MR. DROSMAN: Objection, compound.
19 THE COQURT: ©Overruled as to that.
11:12:22 20 BY THE WITNESS:
21 A. Well, I -- what I was trying to portray by those words was
22 that the practices that I found that were predatory, for
23 example, were occurring in more than just one location by more

24 than just one employee. They were occurring around the

11:12:45 25 country.
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BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. Okay. And yesterday -- or Tuesday I guess -- we looked at
Demonstrative Exhibit 29. Let's see if we can put that up
again.

MR. KAVALER: Your Honor, can we have the switch,
please.

THE COURT: Where do you want it directed, counsel?

MR. KAVALER: If I knew more about technology, I
would know. I want these gentlemen to be able to put up on
the screen something.

THE COURT: Technology is tough.

MR. KAVALER: Thank you, your Honor. You're dealing
with Mr. Low Tech here.
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. Now, do you recall this chart that was prepared by either
yourzelf or counsel?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And these are some of the practices that you talked
about on Tuesday, maybe over into Wednesday?
A. Yes.
Q. And let's start with the effective/equivalent rate. Do
you Kknow how many complaints there were altogether about
effective/equivalent rate during the period 1999 to 20027
A. I don't know how many complaints there were and -- on the

effective rate?
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Q. Yes.
A. I don't know how many complaints they had on effective
rate in total.
0. Do you know what percentage of their loans generated
complaints about effective rate?
A. T didn't see a percentage, but I do know that Housgehold
calculated refunds of $1.2 billion for the effective rate
presentation that they made. So I'm assuming it was a large
number of loang and must have been a pretty subgtantial
percentage.
Q. But you can't tell me what that percentage is?
A. No.
Q. You know that Househoid had, during the relevant time, in
Mr. Gilmer's business unit about 3.2 million accounts?
. I don't know if that's true or not.
Q. You don't know that.

Ckay. You know that that's set forth in Household's
10-K for the year 20017
A. Tt could be. I looked at the -- some of the past due
charts. I didn't analyze the 10-Ks.
Q. Do you have any reason to question the number that
Household put in its 10-K describing how many accounts they
had?
A. I don't have any reason to guestion it.

0. Ckay.
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1 _ MR. KAVALER: Can we see Exhibit 85Z2.
2 BY MR. KAVALER:
3 Q. This -- you recognize this as Household's 10-K for 20017
4 A. That's what it says.
11:15:48 5 Q. Okay.
6 Can we pull up where it shows the number of loans.
7 You see there, it's talking about this business has

8 approximately 1,400 branches located in 46 states, 3.2 million
9 open customer accounts, 35.5 billion in managed receivables
11:16:26 10 and 13,000 employees.
il Do you see that?
12 A. I see that.
13 Q. Do you understand that to be describing the business unit
14 that Mr. Gilmer ran?
11:16:35 15 A. Yeah. I mean, that's what it says.
16 Q. Okay. You have no reason to doubt that?
17 A. No.
18 Q. All right. So half of 1 percent of 3.2 million accounts
19 would be 16,000 accounts?
11:i6:56 20 A, If you say so.
21 0. I'm reluctant to say so because the other thing I'm not
22 good at is math. But I've been told that. I think that's
23 right.

24 Did you see 16,000 effective rate or equivalent rate

11:17:10 25 complaints?
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A, T didn't see 16,000. I locked at over a hundred
complaints, and they had various complaints. That's what I
looked at.
Q. Did you ever manage a large publie company?
A. No.
Q. Did you ever work at a large public company?
A. No.
Q. Are you aware that large public companies have a tendency
to measure ailmost everything that can be measured?

MR. DROSMAN: OCbjection.
THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. Did you notice when you were looking at Household's
documents that Household had a tendency to measure many things
and express things in terms of percentages?
A. Well, I saw a lot of percentages in the documents I locked
at.
Q. Have you ever heard the phrase in your experience as a
regulator "you can't manage what you can't measure"?
A. I don't know if I've ever heard that before or not.
Q. Okay. So you can't tell me how many effective rate
complaints there were and you can't tell me what percentage of
Household's open accounts were; is that correct?
A. Well, Household can't either. I mean, because not all the

complaints were tracked. So I for sure can't, and I question
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whether Household can.
Q. That was my question, whether you could.
B. I don't know how I could have because they weren't all
tracked. I didn't see a document showing all of them.
©. Short answer ig you can't tell me either how many they are
or what percentage of the open loans they represent; is that
right?
A. I would only be able to tell you if I saw a document like
that.
Q. So, therefore, you can't tell me?
L. Well, I didn't see anything to be able toc tell you that,
ne.
Q. And you can't tell me whether they were more than one-half
of 1 percent of the open loans, can you?
A. I didn't -- I don't have a basisg to tell you because I
didn't see anything like that.
Q. That means you can't tell me, correct?
A. Well, I can't tell you what I haven't seen.
Q. I agree with that.

Now, vou said a couple of times in the last couple of
days that Household had to come up with a way of describing
its rates, its effective rates, because its rates were higher
than the rates of competitors. Do you recall that?

A. Yes.

¢. What competitors were you comparing Household to?
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A. Well, I was looking at, for example, the Dennis Hueman

video where he's talking about competitor rates being higher.

&nd I saw some other documents discussing Household's rates

versus competitors. So I didn't really analyze whether it

would have been a bank or a finance company or anything like

that. I'm just looking at what was in the documents from

Household employees.

Q. The competitor Mr. Hueman talked about was Billy Bobk's

Loan Company,

A. Yes.

right?

Q. Did you think there really is a company called Billy Bob's

Loan Company or did you think he was just using that as an

example?

A. Well, there would be no way to tell -- there would be no

reason to tell a consumer that their rate was lower than it

really was if

their rates weren't -- if their rates were

competitive because they could just be straight up with them.

Q. That's your opinion, right?

A. Yes.

Q. I'm trying to find out if you know any facts. Do you know

which competitors charged what rates?

A. I didn't do a survey of the time period and Household's

rates.
Q. Therefore,

correct?

the answer toc my question is, no, you don't,
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A. TUnless I saw something in one of the documents. I can't
recall sitting here. I may have looked at something. But
just sitting here, I can't think of --
Q. You menticned a moment ago in your answer -- vou mentioned
the word banks. You understand that finance companies and
banks are different?
A. Well, they have to comply with the same lending laws, but
they are different with how they fund their operations. I
agree with that.
Q. Banke have deposits; finance companies dec not?
A. That's right.
Q. And that affects their cost of funds?
A. Right.
Q. So finance companies generally charge rates different than
banks?
A. Their cost of funds are generally higher and so they
generally charge more, yes.
Q. 8o, therefore, for you to say that Household charged
higher rates than banks would be nothing more than to say
Household is a finance company and a bank is a bank, right?
A. Well, that would be one of the reasons, yes.
Q. So putting aside banks, do you have a list for me of
finance companies who had lower rates than Household?
A. I think I just said that I didn't do a survey of who

charged what rate.
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Q. Okay. 8o every time you told us throughout your testimony
that Household had to use effective rate techniques because
its rates were higher than somecne else, if I ask you who the
someone elsge is, you don't know?
2. Well, I remember reading in Andrew Kahr's information
where he talked about how they needed to show Household's
rates being more competitive. And so I concluded that their
rates were higher than their competitors. But I didn't deo an
analysis of the time frame. I didn't go back in time and try
and figure cut who was charging what rate.
Q. So your basis was something Andrew Kahr said?
A, I -- well, Andrew Kahr, the Dennis Hueman video and other
documents that I saw.
Q. Let's take them one at time.

The Dennis Hueman video, you mean the portions that

this jury saw?
A. Yes.
Q. Where he referred to Billy Bob's Loan Company?
A. Well, he was using an example; but he was teaching his
sales staff to sgell the loans when they otherwise wouldn't be
able to because their rates were higher.
Q. I'm trying to find ocut higher than whose.
A. Well, I don't have their competitors' names for you or the
interest rates.

Q. You think Mr. Gilmer knows what his competitors' rates
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were?
A. Hopefully.
Q. Okay. You said Mr. Kahr -- you got some information from

Mr. Kahr. Wasg he ever an officer of Household?
A. No, he was a consultant.
Q. Was he an employee of Household?
A. He was a consultant.
Q. A consultant is somecone that you pay money to to get an
opinion from, sort of like an expert witness, right?
A. Or you get help in figuring out how to grow your loan
portfolic, I mean, different suggestions.
Q. Did Mr. Kahr provide -- did you see somewhere in
Mr. Kahr's materials a list of the competitors of Household
who charged lower rates that you'wve talked about for the last
three days?
A. I don't recall that, seeing that in his information.
Q. You didn't conduct a survey of any other competitors? You
didn't do any analysis? You don't have a chart to show us
that says this competitor charged this and Household charged
that? Nothing like that?
A. No.

MR. KAVALER: Let's see the list again.
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. The next thing up there is insurance packing.

Can you tell me how many claims of insurance packing
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there were throughout all of Household?
A. Well, Household -- the internal documents from Household
showed approximately $160 million in refunds, and so I'm
agssuming that that was quite a large number.
Q. Well, my question was: Can you tell me either as a number
or a percentage how many claims there were of insurance
packing during the time period you examined?
A. Not precisely.
Q. Do you think there was 16,0007
A. I don't know. I didn't see a number. I only saw what the
estimate of the refunds based on insurance packing would be.
Q. If Household says that its calculations showed the number
was less than half of 1 percent, do you have any basis to
suggest they're incorrect?
A, No.
Q. You testified that it's your opinion that when a customer
got to a loan closing, the insurance would already be added
on. Do you remember that?
A, Yes.
Q. Did vyou ever attend even one loan closing at Household?
A. No.
Q. Do you know if Mr. Gilmer ever attended any house closings
at Household -- or loan closings? Let me start again.

Do you know if Mr. Gilmer ever attended any loan

closings at Household during his career?
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you'll tell me you didn't loock at them?
A. Right.
Q. So you just went to the SEC filing and looked for what you
were locking for?
A, T was just looking at their past due charts.
Q. Right. You weren't looking to see generally what one
could learn about Household by looking at the SEC filings?
A. VNo, I didn't read the SEC filings. That was beyond what I
was asked to do.
Q. Beyond what you were asked to do. You were asked to come
here and talk to this jury about a very specific subject, and
you didn't look at anything beyond that?
A. I looked at the deocuments in the case regarding predatory
lending and re-aging, but I didn't analyze the SEC filings,
no.
Q. But you are a member cf the Georgia bar and the D.C. bar,
I think vyou said, inactive?
A. Uh-huh.
Q. You understand that this case is a securities fraud case,
don't you?
A. Yes.
Q. You understand it's about the disclosure that Househcld
made to the investors, correct?
A. Yes.

0. And you understand the issue in the case is whether that
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disclosure was complete or not complete, true or false,
correct?
A. Yes.
Q. You looked at nothing having to do with that disclosure,
correct?
A. No, because they have another expert looking at that.
0. Who is that?
A. I don't know.
Q. I see.
A. It's not me.
Q. Okay.
A. I was looking at the predatory lending and the re-aging.
Q. So you have nothing to contribute to this jury on those
subjects, nothing about disclosure, nothing about the public
filings of the company, nothing about what the analysts said,
correct?
A. Yes.
Q. OCkay. But you did read newspapers you said?
A. MNo, T didn't say newspapers. There were a couple of
articles in Forbes and -- well, I take that back. The 3San
Francisco Chronicle, yes.
0. Sc you read some newspapers?
A. Yes.
Q. Did you see an article in the 8t. Louils Post-Dispatch

about Household?
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A. I don't remember that.
Q. Let me show it to you and see 1f that refreshes your
recollection.

Can we have Exhibit 397.

THE COURT: Is this the plaintiffs' or defendants’
exhibit?

MR. KAVALER: This is defendants', your Honor.
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. This is an article on August 25, 2000, in the St. Louis
Dispatch, talking about, Protestors say Household, one of the
nation’s largest consumer lenders, through its subsidiary
Household Financial Corp. and Beneficial, sells borrowers
single premium insurance policies without their knowledge.

Do you see that?
A. I see what you're pointing to.
Q. And that's your point?
A. Well, ves.
Q. Ckay.
A. It's insurance packing.
Q. Right. And then it says, This policy pays ocff the
borrower's leoan in case of death, but industry experts view
the policy as overpriced because many borrowers would be
better served by buying life insurance that would cover the
cost of the loan.

Do you see that?
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A. Yes.
0. You agree with that, don't you?
A. I do.
Q. And you know that this subject, the wisdom of selling
single premium credit 1ife insurance in conjunction with
loans, was a controversial subject which was covered in the
press during these years, correct?
A. I don't know how widespread it was being covered in the
press. I haven't researched that issue.
Q. You know that there was controversy about this subject?
A. In the regulatory community there was.
Q. And there were differing views amongst the regulators on
the one hand and the various lenders on the other hand,
correct?
A. Well, T know that the regulators thought it was predatcry
in nature and overpriced.
@. Right. And you know that Household was far from the only
company that sold this product, right?
A. I don't have any basis to be able to say how many
companies sold it.
Q. Are you aware cof any other companies selling this product?
A. Well, I know that some of the banks sold it initially
before the regulators clamped down on them; but I don't have a
basis to be able to say how many companies sold 1t.

0. The banks used this product and then they stopped,
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correct?
A. Yes.
Q. Household used this product and it stcpped, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. You know that Househeld voluntarily stopped selling single
premium credit life insurance at a point in 2001, don't you?
A. Yes.
Q. So there was a point in time when this was a product that
was commonly used by pecple, including Household; then there
was a point in time when this was a product that was less
commonly used; and one of the company's that stopped using it
was Household, correct?
A. I don't know if that's a correct characterization, but it
was a product that pecple stopped using.
0. Bnd before they stopped using it, they must have been
using it, correct?
A. But I don't know how widespread. T mean, that's what I'm
saying. I have no basis to be able --
0. 8o this is another cne of those areas where you don't know
the numbers; you just have an impression; but the impressiocn
is, at a point in time, people, including Household, sold this
product; and at & later point in time, people, including
Household, stopped selling this product, correct?
A. What was the first part of your question?

Q. You have a sense -- you can't guantify for me, but
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nevertheless you have a sense that there was a point in
history where various lenders sold this product; and then
there was a later point in history where various lenders
stopped selling this product, correct?
A, Yes.
Q. And when people were selling this product, Household sold
it; and at a later point when people weren't selling this
product, Household stopped selling it, correct?
A. I mean, I don't have the basis for saying yes to that. I
don't know at what point Household stopped selling it versus
everyone else stopping selling it.
Q. Okay. You have a basis for saying no to that?
A, No, I don't have a basis for being able to put Household's
decigion to stop selling it in context with everyone else.
Q. Fair enough. Failr encugh. On that we'll have to ask
somebody who actually knows, right? Mr. Gilmer, for instance?
A, You'll have to ask somebody other than me, whoever you
want .
Q. Okay. Now, from the period of mid 1999 through 2001, were
there states that prohibited the sale cof single premium credit
insurance?
A, Yes.
Q. How many?
A. Well, I know there were many, but I don't know the exact

number .
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it's a five-year prepayment penalty, then it would be
considered illegal under the Deceptive Trade Practices Act.
So anything that's legal, either under the statute or under
the Deceptive Trade Practices Act, would not be predatory. So
I think I'm consistent on that.
Q. Okay. And while we're talking on the subject of credit
insurance, the question of whether or not Household disclosed
to its shareholders that i1t sold credit insurance, that's
cutside the scope of what you were asked to look at; isn't
that correct?
A, Yes.
Q. All right.

Go back to the chart, please.

The next item there on vour demonstrative is failure
to properly disclose. Do you see that?
A. I do.
¢. This was also something that you found to be widespread
and systemic and companywide?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. How many instances of this did ycu find in your
review of the 40 Bankers Boxes?
A. Well, T didn't count them specifically.
Q. Well, whether you counted them specifically, do you think
there were 16,000 of them?

A. 16,0007 I'm sure I didn't find 16,000.
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¢. 15,0007
A. T didn't count them. I have --
Q. Are you under the impression you found 15,0007
A. I have no way of giving vyou a specific number. I found
them in a number of states. I looked at the regulatory
material, which alsc told me that the regulatcors agreed with
my opinion that it was systemic because they were coming from
a variety of states.
Q. But you didn't find examples of this problem that impacted
anywhere near even cne-half of 1 percent of Household's 3.2
million cutstanding consumer locans, correct?
A. Well, this is like the complaint ratio analysis. If I
found deception in 50 instances across the country as a
regulator, that would concern me; and I wcould conclude that
it's a widespread practice if it's happening in a
geographically dispersed area. But I didn't sit down and
figure ocut a ratio percentage because I don't find that to be
persuasive.
¢. I listened tc what you sald about ratiocs. That's why I'm
not asking you about percentages. 1 appreciate what you said.

What I'm asking vyou about, however, is raw numbers.
You didn't find anything remctely approaching 16,000 instances
of failure to properly disclese, did you?
A. I didn't count them, but I'm sure I didn't find 16,000.

Q. Right. I listened pretty carefully to your testimony, and



11:56:52

11:57:1¢

11:57:37

11:57:5¢6

11:58:06

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Ghiglieri - cross

745
Q. And you're not offering any testimony on whether or not
the fact that Household used prepayment penalties was or was
not disclosed to Household's investors, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. Do you have any knowledge on that subject?
A. Neo.
Q. 0Okay. The next subject up there is excessive points and
fees. 2&nd, again, this is something you found to be
widespread, systemic and companywide?
A, Yes.
0. How many instances of this prceblem did you see in the
various deocuments you looked at?
A. T didn't count the number of instances for any of these
activities. So my answer i1s the same. I didn't count the
number of times that Household charged excessive fees.
0. But whatever number it was, it was nothing remotely
approaching 16,000 times, correct?
A. I didn't count them, so I don't know what the number would
be, plus I only looked at a subset of, you know, the total
loans obviously. I didn't look at every loan they made over
that course of time.
Q. But vou looked at everything you wanted to lcok at, right?
B. Yes, I looked at everything I felt like I needed to lcck
at.

Q. BAnd you looked at everything you felt you needed to look
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at to ccme here and give this jury your opinicn, correct?
A, Yes.
Q. And having done that -- and let me back up.

I certainly didn't put any restrictions on what you
could loock at, did I7
A. No.
Q. Okay. Having done that, you're unable to say that the
rate or the number -- I apologize. I take your point about
ratios —- the number of instances of excessive points and fees
is anywhere remotely close to ene-half of 1 percent of the
volume of Household's loans outstanding, correct?
A, T didn't count them, sc I have no way of being able to
answer that guestion.
¢. Yes, you do. You can say, no, I can't say it's anywhere
near one-half ¢of 1 percent, correct?

MR. DROSMAN: Objection, your Henor, argumentative,

THE COURT: Sustained.

MR, KAVALER: Okay.
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. Now, you testified on this subject that Househeold charged
points within what the state would allow, correct?
A. I think I -- I think my testimony was not exactly that.
Q. Let me read you your testimony. This is from Page 441,
Lines 9 to 13 of this trial transcript from two days ago.

One is they would -- it was their goal to charge 7 to
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Household; and there was a dialogue, right?
A. Well, that's an interesting way to describe it, a
dialogue.
Q. Well, did you see any documents reflecting Household's
dialogue with the State of California on this subject?
A. I did.
Q. And did you see that Mr. Detelich and Mr. Schneider met
with representatives of the California Department of
Corporations to discugss the AMTPA prepayment penalty late fee
preemption situatioﬁ, and someone came and reported that the
meeting went very well and that the response from the
Department of Corporations was guardedly positive for the
prepayment penalty provision and the State of California did
not chbject to the preemption? Did you see that document?
A. Well, I think what that document said was that they were
going to look into it further. I don't think that document
that you're reading from, if it's the same one I remember,
said that they blessed it.

My impression after reading that document was, they
went in and talked about it. California said -- and I used to
do this ag a regulator goo -- well, I can't think of anything
at the moment, but let me do some further research; you sen&
me some additional material. And I don't have a letter or
anything from California that blessed it.

Q. 2all right. Let's look at that document. It's Defendants'
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Exhibit 219.

MR. KAVALER: May I approach the witness, your Honor?

THE COQURT: Yes.

(Tendered. )

BY MR. KAVALER:
0. 1Is this the document you were thinking of?
A. Yes, it is.
Q. Okay. And there's a memo at the bottom, an e-mail from
Patrick Zenzocla, government relatiomns, California. And he
sends it to a bunch of people, including Mr. Detelich,
Me. Allcock, Mr. Schneider, Ms. Curtain and other people.

Do you sgee that?
A, Yes.
Q. BAnd the first paragraph says, Tom Detelich, Tom Schneider
and I met with representatives of the California Department of
Corporations on Monday to discuss the AMTPA prepayment
penalty/late fee preemption. The meeting went very well. The
response from the DOC was guardedly positive for the
prepayment penalty preemption. They did not object to the
preemption.

Do you see that?
A. I do.
0. Okay. And this is Household having a dialogue with the
gtate of California about this situation, correct?

A. Yes. But the remainder of the sentences go to what I was
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talking about, which is they went inte California; they said
this is what we want to do; California said we don't see
anything at the moment, but we want you to send us additional
information.

I did not see a follow-up from this discussgion where
California blessed it. In fact, I think California
participated in the settlement regarding prepayment
penalties -- well, I guess that was a couple of years later.
Q. But this document reflects Household executives meeting
with California and openly and freely discussing the
situation, putting forth their position, listemning to
California's position and being responsive, correct?

A. Yes. BAnd, I mean, that's what this saye. This is what I
would expect to have geen in every state because normally when
you're going to de something that may violate state law, you
go to the regulators first and you get them to bless it. And
I didn't see that in all the states, and I didn't see what the
final outcome was of this.

Q. "I didn't see" ig another way of saying I have no
information to give this jury on that subject, right?

A. Say that again.

Q. Sure. When you say I didn't see something, that means I
have no substantive testimony to give this jury on that
subject? I'm not here to say you did it right; I'm not here

to say you did it wrong; I just don't know?
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A. Well, I thought you asked me if I saw where they met with
california and they blessed them doing this particular thing.
0. I don't believe I used the word "blessed."
A. And I said, no, I didn't see that.
Q. If that's what you heard, I apologize for any confusion I
might have caused. I don't think I used the word "blessed.”
T asked about a dialcgue.

They were having a dialogue with California, correct?
A. Yes, if you want to couch it like that, a dialogue.
0. And you weren't at that meeting?
A. No, I wasn't.
. Mr. Detelich and Mr. Schneider were at that meeting?
2. That's what it says here.
Q. Right.
A. I have no way of knowing.
Q. But you have no reason te doubt it?
A. I mean, I have no -- no knowledge whatscever if they were
there or not.
Q. Okay. Let's go to loan flipping. I think that's the next
one.

vou said loan flipping is simply continuous
refinances, correct?
A, Yes.
Q. And you said each time Household would refinance a loan,

they would flip a lcan?
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A. I don't know if I said each time. Are you reading from my
testimony?
Q. I'm reading from your testimony in this courtroom on March
31, at Page 444, Line 24 to Page 445, Line 1. Quote: Each
time Household would refinance a loan, they would flip a loan.
Is that what you meant to say?
A. Well, I guess what I meant to say was, in doing locan
flipping, they would refinance a loan and add more fees and
products. I'm sure that in all the loans that they made, we
could find one or two or how many ever where they refinanced
that it wasn't considered loan flipping. But a lot of the
documents that I've looked at had loans refinanced more than
one time, where they would add the points all over again and
they would add the insurance premiums all over again. And
that's what I was referring te there.
Q. So your position is not it's each time, but it's a very
high level of incidence?
A. Where they were doing loan flipping.
Q. That's what I'm trying to find ocut. What you testified
is, each time Household would refinance a loan, they would
flip a loan.
Let's start with refinance. A refinance means a
customer has a loan. He comes back to the same lender, and he
comes out with a new loan with new terms; and he pays whatever

costs are associated with that, correct?
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A. Right.
Q. That's a common practice, isn't it?
A. Yes.
Q. Is --
A. It's not a common practice to charge points all over again
or it's not a commen practice to add insurance all over again
or every time or as many times as you can. That's the
difference between just doing a refinance and actually doing a
predatory loan flipping. That was sort of the digtinction I
was just trying to make to you Jjust now.
Q. So you have no quarrel with a plain vanilla refinance,
right?
A. Right.
Q. What percentage of Household loans are you now saying --
what percentage of Household refinances are you now saying
constitute flipping?
A. I don't know the number, but I do know that when they
locked at it internally for refunding for loan flipping, it
came out to -- I think it was $60 million. So it was a large
number of loans that they flipped.
Q. But yesterday it sounded like you were saying it was a
hundred percent; today it sounds like you're off the hundred.
I'm trying te find out ﬁhere you are now.
A. I don't know what the exact number is. But based on

internal documents at Household with how much they calculated
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that they were going to have to refund for loan-flipping,
which totaled $60 million, I'm assuming that it's a large
number. Now, what the exact number ig, I don't know, I did
not calculate the specific number of loan flippings or equity
strippings or anything like that. I didn't feel that was
necessary for me to reach comnclusionsg regarding whether they
did or did not do predatory lending.
Q. But certainly if what anyone took from your testimony
yesterday that -- when you said each time Household would
refinance a loan, you're clearly saying today you didn't mean
each time?
A. Well, I think I was talking in context of loan flipping.
And so if you take sentences in isclation, it's easy to, you
know, decide what you're going to say about it. But what I
think I was referring to in this section was loan flipping.
And where they were loan flipping, each time they did a
refinance, they would add theose points and fees.
Q. So taking sentences in isolation deesn't give you a fair
view of what was actually said; is that your point?
A. No. I'm just saying you have to take it in context of
what you're saying. And that's what I tried to de in this
case, where I tried to lock at as many documents as I could.
Of course, I didn't lock at every single one. I understand
that. But I tried to look at quite a few so I could draw some

-

conclusions.
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Q. Taking it in context, as vou just =aid, would be like
locking at the entire company to make a judgment about what
kind ¢f company it was as opposed to looking at things that
exist up and in cne-half or less of 1 percent of the company's
operations; would you agree with that?
A. Well, you're focused on the percent or the number of
complaints or the number of loans or whatever you're saying.
I teook a brodder view of that, and I looked at the type of
lending practices they engaged in. I lcoked at what their
training was. I looked at what their -- how were their
employees compensated. I locked at the intermal audit. I
looked at their compliance function. I locked at complaints.
I loocked at the investigations and the examirations by the
regulators.

So I looked at and used the methodology that I would
use as a bank regulator. When we would go in to examine First
National Bank of Chicagb, for example, it was impossible for
us to lock at every single solitary loan that they had. So we
had to make some judgments as far as how many loans we were
going to look at, how many, you know, depository accounts we
were going to look at so that we could check compliance with
the laws. 2And where we found problems, we would expand that.
And sc it -- it -- it -- that sort of an analysis doesn’'t lend
itgelf to calculating the exact number of loans in esach of

those categories. I looked at a much broader spectrum of
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things for the company.
Q. I think the next thing on your list was blocking the back
door. And the last thing on your list. Okay. We're making
progress.

and you said that if Household makes a loan and the
customer only stays for a short time, they're not going to be
as profitable as if the customer would stay and pay, correct?
A. Are you reading from my testimony?
Q. I am reading from the trial transcript on March 31 at Page
464, Line 21 to 465, Line 1. The question was:

Question: Why is that significant to your opinion?

You gaid, Answer: Well, because Household is in the
business of making loans. And if they make a loan and the
customer only stays for a short time, you know, they are not
going to be as profitable as they would be if the customer
would stay and pay. I left out the "you know?"
A. Thank you for doing that. So -- and your question is?
Q. The question is: Do you recall that testimony?
A, Yes. |
Q. ©Okay. When you talk about the profitability of customers,
you're talking about the profitability to the owners of the
company, which is the investors, correct?
A. When I made that statement, I was focused on the amount of
income that Household was going to generate. 2And ultimately

when you talk about the company, you talk about its investors,
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I suppoze. That's not generally what I focus on. But, yes.
But here I was just trying to discuss the income stream of the
company .
Q. You say that's not generally what you focus on. You've
never been the CEO of a public company, have you?
A. DNot the CEO.
Q. You don't know what Mr. Aldinger focused on during the
yvears he was CEO of Household?
A. Well, I know Household focused on growth in the 1992, you
know, to 2000 time frame. But, of course, every company has
to focus on profitability, whether you're publicly traded or
not, becausge otherwige you would go out of business.
Q. There you go.

And so that's what you were saying here, that --
let's talk -- a profitable loan is better for the company,
better for the shareholders, better for everybody than an
unprofitable loan, correct?

A. Yes. And from my standpoint, a sound loan is better for
the company than an unsound lcan or a good loan is better than
a bad loan because if it's a bad loan, you don't get paid.

Q. And you mentioned the word income. In addition to income,
the company has to focus on costs, right?

A. You mean just generally their costs or --

Q. Sure.

A. Sure.
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0. and profit is the difference between income and costs?
A. Income lesg expenses, right.
Q. Okay. and do you understand that when a loan is priced,
the company takes into account certain costs, including the
cost of getting that money it's going to lend -- if it's not a
bank, it doesn't have deposits -- and it makes certain
assumptions as to how long the loan will last?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And let's assume they've -- they've assumed a
length of five years, and the customer pays off after one
year. The company will not make the profit it assumed it
would make on that loan, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. So to protect the profit for the company's
shareholders, the company has two choices. They can raise the
prices to all borrowers thereby increasing income and then one
borrower or another will pay off early and so be it and the
company will still make enocugh profits for its shareholders
because everybody pays more; or they could try to focus the
incremental cost on the fellow who pays off early, correct?
A. I just have never seen gomething like that. I'wve seen
other frameworks, but I'm not familiar with that.
Q. You're not familiar with what I'm describing?
A. Well, I understand what you're trying to say; but the

specifice of what you're saying, I haven't --
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Q. Okay.
A. -- ever heard a lender say that we are focusing on people;
we're going to charge someone more if they pay off early.
I've never heard that before.
Q. Do you know what that's called in the lending trade?
A, I don't know.
¢. Prepayment penalty. Have you ever heard that?
A. I've heard the term prepayment penalty.
Q. Isn't what I just told you, the buginess case for a
prepayment penalty is te focus the cost of an early
termination of a loan on the person who causes that loss in
revenue without focusing the cest on all the other borrowers
who are not causing any loss in anticipated revenue?
A. I guess you could explain it like that. TI've never heard
a lender say that before. But, I mean, I guess you can couch
it like that.
Q. And you understand that the market niche of a finance
company, Household and others, starts off with pecple
who major banks like Wells Farge don't choose to lend to
because they don't have the credit criteria that that bank is
looking for?
2. Right.
0. Okay. Now, in looking at these various documents, did you
come across a document where Mr. Gilmer put out his list of

predatory practices, which might be similar to, might be
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different than this?

I'm sorry. Are you okay?
A. I'm okay.
0. You need a break or something?
A. No. T can keep going. I just might cough a little.
Q. Did you come across a list of Mr. Gilmer's assembly of
practices he thought were predatory?

2. I saw several memos from him where he discussed predatory

lending practices. I'm not sure I know what you're referring
to.
Q. Let me show you Defendantg' 29 -- I'm sorry, 209.

I1'11 ask you if this is one of the memos of
Mr. Gilmer's that you recall seeing?
A. I do.
Q. Okay. Let's go through it together. It's dated May 1,
2000. 2nd it was sent to all Household employees, correct?
A. Yes.
0. BAnd the subject is predatory lending. Mr. Gilmer writes,
Predatory lending is a very high-profile subject in the
financial services industry teday; and, unfortunately, there
ig some good reason for that. Clearly, some companies,
although few in number, have committed outrageous acts that
appear to have been driven by greed. As I mentioned in an
earlier note to you, our aim and, frankly, our commitment ig

to drive these unscrupulous players from our buginess. You
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may rest assured that we are doing all we can, including
forming ccalitions and working with our friends in the state
and federal legislative branches, to curb their activity. You
will be hearing more about these efforts in the coming weeks.

Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. ©Okay. And then he goes on. He's got another paragraph
there. I'll sgkip it in the interest of moving along. And
then he says in the third paragraph, As you may know, there
are a few activities that are often mentioned in reports on
predatory lending.

And then he goes on to say, Below I have listed these
activities along with a brief description of each, as well as
cur internal policies that relate to each one. I thought you
might find the stark differences in these policies and
processes interesting.

And the first bullet point he hag is stripping. Do
you see that?

A. I do.

Q. He says, Stripping: The practice of making RE -- that's
real estate?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Thank you. Practice of making real estate loans to
customers where the lender, using a variety of unscrupulous

tactics, hopes to ultimately foreclose on property, sell it



02:01:57

02:02:04

02:02:23

02:02:45

02:02:52

10

11

1z

13

14

15

16

17

18

1s

20

21

22

23

24

25

Ghiglieri - cross
778
and pocket the egquity. HFC -- that's Household Finance
Corporation?
A. Yes.
Q. HFC/Beneficial policy: We do not permit hard equity
loans.
Do you see that?
A. I do.
Q. He's writing this to all Household employees in May of
2000, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. He says, In every case, We review our custowmers'
circumetances and conclude that the customer has the intent
and the ability to repay the debt. Further, every effort is
made to avoid foreclosure, to include renegotiations of terms,
payment extensions, et cetera. Finally, in those few
circumstances when foreclosure becomes cur only alternative,
we always refund any and all excess funds, parenthesis, any
money from the sale of the property in excess of the amount
necessary to clear the debt, close parenthesis, back to the
borrower.
Do you see that?
A. I do.
Q. He is stating Household's policy on this subject to all
employees?

A. That's what he's saying, yes.
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Q. 1 agree.

Next bullet point, packing.
A. I don't necessarily agree with it, but that's what it says
here.
Q. That was my gueetion. He is stating Household's policy to
all employees as of May 2000, correct?
A. Well, he's stating what he's stating. What I have said in
my prior testimony and in the reports ig that I don't think
that they don't do equity stripping.
Q. Nevertheless, this is Mr. Gilmer writing te every single
employee in the company telling them what the company's policy
is, correct?
A. Well, he's saying what he's saying in this memo.
Q. The next bullet point says, Packing: The practice of
requiring a customer to accept credit -- I'm sorry -- to
accept credit-related insurance as a condition for obtaining a
loan or hiding the fact that imsurance is a part of the
transaction.

and underneath that, he says, HFC/Beneficial policy:
Under no circumstances will we ever require customers to buy
credit insurance from us as a condition for obtaining a loan.
Beyond that, our customers receive a 30-day free look, during
which time they may cancel their insurance and obtain a full
refund. Beyond that, a customer may cancel insurance at any

time and receive a refund of all unearned premiums.



02:04:36

02:04:58

02:05:14

02:05:26

02:05:50

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Ghiglieri - cross
780

Again, this is Mr. Gilmer in May of 2000 saying this

to all Household employees, correct?

A. Well, that's what it says here.

Q. Flipping, next bullet. The practice of rapidly renewing
RE secured lcans, each time collecting points, parenthesis,
gometimes 20 or more, close parenthesis, on the full amount
financed for the purpose of gouging customers.

HFC/Beneficial policy: Rapid refinancing of RE loans
for this purpose is forbidden. Further, the maximum number of
points allowed under any circumstance is geven and a half.
Beyond that, for loans refinanced within a year, our policy
prohibits charging any points whatsocever on the refinanced
amount .

Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. That's Mr. Gilmer telling every sgingle Household employee
in May of 2000 that that's our pclicy, that's the company's
policy, correct?

A. Well, this is what he's writing to them, vyes.

Q. Okay. And then he says, As you can see from this summary,
we stand far apart from the unscrupulous lenders that we've
all read about in the press. In fact, HFC/Beneficial 1s often
cited as, gquote, the standard, close quote, for high ethics
and fair customer dealings by our regulators and legislators.

I know that you share my pride in our position and will
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support our efforts to maintain our standing in the years
ahead.

And that's also what he wrote to every single
employee of the company on May 1, 2000, correct?

A. That's what the memo stated, yes.
Q. That's my question.

Now, here's my next question: Did you ever see a
meme from Mr. Gilmer to all the employees saying please ignore
my memo of 5/1/00 and do something completely different; I
just sent that memo out so that I have it available to point
to if someone said to me you're a predatory lender? Did you
see a memo like that?

A, No.

0. And Household had approximately 14,000 employses in this
particular business and 32,000 overall during these years?

A. I don't know the exact number. I know you pointed it out
in the 10-K. If you say so.

Q. You have no reason to guestion what's in the 10-K?

A. No.

Q0. Did you ever see scmething that suggests to you Mr. Gilmer
had a conference call with these 14,000 employees and said
don't pay any attention to my memo?

A. T didn't see anything that indicated he had a conference
call with them.

0. Did you see anything that indicated Mr. Gilmer went around
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the country meeting with these 14,000 people saying don't pay
attention to this memo?
A. I didn't see anything like that.
Q. And I think I heard you say a minute ago, this is one of
numerous memos that you saw from Mr. Gilmer to all the
employees to the same general effect, correct?
2. Well, I didn't say numerous; but I know there wag at least
three that I saw, one per year approximately during that time
frame that I was looking at these documents.
Q. All right. We might get to look at some more, but I'11
pass for the time being.
A. I'm sorry?
Q. I saild we might get to look at some more, but for the
moment, I'll pass on to something else.

I apologize. I take that back. Let me show you --
let me ask you, you said you saw one of these a year. Did you
see one entitled "ethical behavior® issued by Mr. Gilmer on or
about Cctober 3, 20017
A. I'll have to look at the memc --

Q. Abksolutely.
A. -- to tell you if I saw it or not.
Q. Absolutely.
MR. KAVALER: Your Honor, may I approach.
Let the record reflect I'm handing the witness a copy

of Defendants’® 165.
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(Tendered.)
BY MR. KAVALER:
0. And this is, again, to all consumer lending employees.
That's Mr. Gilmer's business group, correct?
A. I'm sorry? May I have a moment to look at this?
Q. BSure. Take all the time you need to read this document.
{(Brief pause.)
BY THE WITNESS:
A. I'mnot -- I don't think I saw this memo.
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. Let me see if I can refresh your recollection. Focus on
the bottom paragraph because there's some distinctive words in
there you might recall.
A. COkay.
Q. He sgays, Let me say, I take pride in the fact that 59.9
percent of our people uphold and support our company
etandards. 2As I have communicated before, I alsc take pride
in the fact we maintain a zero tolerance for inappropriate and
unethical behavior and demonstrate that with swift action.
The introduction of the employee integrity tip line is simply
an additional tocl you can use to help us maintain our great
company name.
Do those words refresh your recollection that you saw
this memo?

A. T don't think I did. But I know that he sent ocut a few
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that were similar to this.
Q. Right. And the phrase "zerc tolerance" was one that he
used gquite frequently?
A. I don't remember that.
Q. ©Okay. And you understand the phrase "demonstrate with
swift action" means people who violate his policies will be
punished?
A. Well, that would be a good explanation of it, I think.
Q. And, in fact, from your review of the documents, you know
that people who violated Household's policies were, in fact,
punished?
A. I didn't hear the last part of your guestion. Were what?
Q. I'm sorry. You know from your review of the documents
that people who violated Household's policies in this area
were, in fact, punished by Househeold?
A. I did see a few of those documents.
Q. All right. Including some people bheing fired?
A. I saw one or two of those, I think.
Q. Including instances where the account executive who made a
bad loan was fired and sometimes the branch manager who
supervised that account executive was also fired?
A. I can't remember. their positions, but I did see a handful
of those types of documents.
Q. And that was for violating Household's policies as

articulated by Mr. Gilmer and others?
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A. Yes.
Q. Ckay. Now, you talked yesterday about a person named
Andrew Kahr -- I'm sorry -- the day before yesterday, I think

it wae. Anyway, in the last couple of days, you told us about
Andrew Kahr, correct?

A, Yes.

0. mnd you told us he was a founder of a company called
Providian, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. He was not a founder of Household?

A. No, not that I know of.

Q. Well, you know Household is 125 years old, don't you?

A. 1Is it 125 years old? I den't know if I knew that.

Q. hAssuming that's true, then you den't think he was a
founder of Household?

A. I'm not sure how old he is really.

o. Okay. »And Providian is not a company related to
Household?

A. No.

0. All right. So he was the founder of some other company.
and he was -- I think I might have asked ycu this. If I did,
I apologize. I'm getting senile in my old age. He was not a
senior executive of Household?

A. He was a consultant for Household.

¢. Not an employee?
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A. No.

Q. So if you were drawing a table of organizaticn -- do you
know what a table of organizaticn is?

A. Yes.

0. 1If you were drawing a table of organization for Household,
where would you put him on it?

A. Well, you could put him on a dotted line to Mr. Gilmer or
something like that. Sometimes you see consultants on there
or not at all.

Q. Not at all or a dotted line. What does a dotted line
usually mean?

A. Well, that they're either not an employee or they are
reporting soft of outside the framework.

Q. And on this table of organization of Household as you
understand it, where would you put Mr. Aldinger?

A. Above Mr. Gilmer.

Q. At the top?

A. Yes.

Q. You certainly wouldn't put Mr. Kahr at the same level as
Mr. Aldinger, would you?

A. Well, I mean, you asked me where you would put him on an
org chart. And I would think it would only make sense if he's
not an employee to put him on a dotted line reporting to

Mr. Aldinger or Mr. Gilmer because I think he was actually

hired to promote the growth for the finance --
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Q. For giving advice?
A. Consumer finance.

Yes.
Q. By giving advice, not by running the company?
A. No, no. And that's not what I'm saying.
Q. Now, you read to the jury from Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1388,
which is in evidence, which is an article about Mr. Kahr's
company, Providian, in the San Francisco Chronicle.

Do you remember that?
A. Yes.
Q. That's the article that's up there on the screen now.

and this article says various negative things about
Mr. Kahr, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And the peoint of that was to say that when Household
engaged Mr. Kahr, they should have been aware of these things?

MR. DROSMAN: Cbjection, calls for speculation.

THE COURT: Overruled.
BY THE WITNESS:
A. So -- can you ask me the question again?
BY MR. KAVALER:
0. Sure. The point of your reading from this article was to
suggest that when Household engaged Mr. Kahr as a ceongultant,
they should have been aware of its contents?

A. Are you saying the contents of the article?



02:15:17

02:15:30

02:15:39

02:15:45

02:15:55

10

il

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Ghiglieri - cross
788
Q. Sure.
A. Well, the article was dated in 2002, which was sort of
towards the end of when Mr. Kahr was helping them.
0. It was four years after you testified that they engaged
him as a consultant, right?
A. They engaged him at the end -- or, well, three, three and
a half. They engaged him at the end of 1998.
Q. The article is dated May 5, 2002, correct?
A. T can't see the date, but, yes, 2002.
Q. Ckay.
A, Yes.
Q. So Mr. Aldinger couldn't possibly have read this article
before Household engaged Mr. Kahr, correct?
A. Well, it hadn't been written yet.
Q. The answer is correct?
A. Yes.
Q. &nd Mr. Schoenholz couldn't have read this article before
Household engaged Mr. Kahr?
L. Right.
Q. And Mr. Gilmer couldn’'t have read this article before
Household engaged Mr. Kahr?
A. Right.
¢. And you have no reason to believe Mr. Aldinger,
Mr. Schoenholz or Mr. Gilmer ever read this article, correct?

A. I have no idea if they read it or not.
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0. You don't know whether they read it or not. For all you
know, the first time they ever saw it was yesterday on the
screen?
A. Well, unless they were following Mr. Kahr because right
after this, there were some internal memos gaying that they
wanted to start -- they blocked Mr. Kahr's e-mail; and they
deleted all of the e-mails internally regarding Mr. Kahr. And
then -- I don't know if it was Mr. Aldinger, ocne of the senior
officiale, said we better get rid of all the memos too. So I
think somecne at Household read this because right after that,
they did a document destruction regarding Andrew Kahr.
Q. The answer to my question is you don't know if any of them
ever saw this memoc earlier than yesterday, do you?
A. I don't.
Q. Do you know how Mr. Kahr came to Household's attention?
A. As I'm eitting here, I don't. I may have looking at the
documents three years ago. But I just don't know sitting
here.
Q. I think you just told me you read a bunch of Mr. Kahr's
memos, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. We'll look at a couple in a minute.

Do you know what Mr. Kahr was famous for before he
came to consult at Household?

A. Predatory lending practices at Providian.
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0. Well, that would have been well known after this article
in May of 2005. Do you know what he was known for before
19987
A. Well, his relationship with Providian. I don't know about
before that.
Q. Did yvou ever hear of a company called Merrill Lynch?
A. Yes.
Q. Did you ever hear of a product called a cash management
agcount?
A. Oh, I think that's described in here or in one of the
articles, yes.
Q. Do you know what a cash management account ig?
A. Yes, I do.
0. End today they're very prevalent in the finance industry.
It's the linkage of a credit card and a brokerage account.
The credit card might be a debit account. You can use it as a
checking account. It's very common, correct?
A. Yes.
0. You're not as ¢ld as I am so you won't remember when it
first came out, but it was a big stir in the financial
industry when Merrill Lynch rolled cut the first one, wasn't
it?
A. I'm too young to remember that.

(Laughter.)

BY MR. KAVALER:
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Q. But you've heard of it?
A. I heard a tale at my father's knees.
0. People older than you told you this?
A. Yes.
0. And people who are in the finance busineseg sometimes say
it was a revolutionary moment in the finance industry; you've
heard that?
A. I haven't heard that, but --
0. &nd you've heard that the person who is credited with
having invented this product, this revolutionary product, at
Merrill Lynch is Andrew Kahr?
A. I have no knowledge about that except for what I read in
that article about that he developed that product.
Q. You were very kind enough to ghare with us the other
knowladge you got from that article yesterday, sc you think
the article is reliable, don't you?
A. Yes.
Q. So if the article says something about Merrill Lynch and
the CMA, tﬁat rings a bell? You've heard that before?
A. Yes.
Q. Would you describe Mr. Kahr as an innovator based on his
invention of the cash management product at Merrill Lynch?
A. You know, you could describe him as that.
Q. Do you think senior managers of a company might think it's

a good idea te bring someone in to give them innovative
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thoughts which they can bat around?
A. 8Sure.
0. Would vou expect that a responsible company would
nevertheless put a fence around that guy because he's not an
employee or an officer and make sure that the guys who are
emplovees and officers watch him and make sure he doesn't come
up with any silly ideas?
A. Sure.
0. You know that that's exactly what Household did, don't
you?

Household surrounded Mr. Kahr with all of their
senior management; and they said to him, you generate ideas
and we'll decide if they're right for Household because they
need to be consistent with our culture and good for our
customers and good for our employees and good for our
investors. And what happened was, in all these e-mails you
read, Mr. Kahr constantly fought with senior management
because he thought they wouldn't let him do what he wanted to
do and they thought he was crazy.

Isn‘t that what happened?

A. I didn't see anything that said "I think Mr. Kahr is
crazy," so I have no knowledge of those last statements that
you made.

Q. Okay. Let's see what you did see.

A. OQOkay.
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Q. Let's start with Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1007, which counsel
for the investors put up on the screen during the opening
statements.
MR. KAVALER: Your Honor, may I approach?
THE COURT: Yes.
(Tendered.)
BY MR. KAVALER:
©. This is a memo dated March 12, 2001, to files from
Mr. Schoenholz. I know -- I don't beliseve you were here for
the opening statements, but you've seen this memc before,
correct?
A. Let me take a minute to lock at it.
Q. Please, please.
A. And see if I've seen it.
(Brief pause.)

THE COURT: While she's doing that, why don't we take
just a couple of minutes to do a little gwitch here. We can
stay right where we are, folks. It will just take a minute.

(Brief pause.)
TEE CQOURT: You may Tresume.
MR. KAVALER: Thank you, your Honor.
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. Have you had enough time to read this document?
A. I did.

Q. COCkay.
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and counsel for the shareholders read some portions
of it to the jury during his opening. He didn't read this
portion. Let me read it to you. It's in the bottom of the
second paragraph. It begins with the word "However.®

"However, Andrew Kahr also made proposals that have
not passed review by the Office of General Coungel and/or have
not been viewed favorably by the senior business executives.
Consequently, these proposals have never been implemented."

Do you see that?
A. I see it.
Q. You saw, in reviewing these various memos of Mr. Kahr's,
that there was an ongoing tension between Mr. Kahr and other
senior executives about a lot of his proposals, didn't you?
A. You know, I didn't focus on that. I was just focusing on
what the proposals were.
¢. Right.
A. 5o --
Q. I think another document that you showed us yesterday --
and I'll come to it in a minute -- said that Mr. Kahr
originally made 60 proposals and it was whittled down to ten?
A. I think that's right.
0. And of the ten, I think you told us two were implemented?
A. I think more than two were implemented.

There were two on a listing of some, but I believe

there were more than two implemented.
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Q. We'll get to that.

But the point is: He was an idea gensrator who threw

out 60 ideas. At least 50 of them died, correct?

A, Yes.

Q. Some of them died as a result of some ugly memos back and
forth between Mr. Kahr and senior executives of Household who
said, in essence, "Not here you don't"; isn't that right?

A. T don't know. I didn't see all those types of memos.

Q. Well, you saw -- how many Kahr memos did you see?

A. I probably saw maybe five or so.

Q. Let's see which ones you saw.

Let me show you Plaintiffs' Exhibit 533. I believe
this is one of the documents we locked at vesterday or the day
before yesterday, correct?

A. (No response.}
Q. {Correct?

MR. KAVALER: May I approach the witness, your Honor?

THE COURT: You may.

MR. KAVALER: Thank you.

{Document tendered.)
BY THE WITNESS:
A. Thank you.
BY MR. KAVALER:
0. 8o, this is a document investors' counsel showed to you

and you testified about a couple days ago?
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AL Yes.
Q. Do you remember that?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay.

and it's to Joe Vozar, with copies to Paul Creatura,
Gary Gilmer, Martha Pampel, Kay Curtin, Dave Schoenholz, Ken
Robin and Susan Jewell.

Do you know who Ken Robin is?
A. I know who almost all thesge people are, but I can't
remember all their titles.
0. Let me see if I -- sorry.
A. But you can tell me.
g. I'll try to refresh your recollection.
L. Okay.
Q. Mr. Robin was the General Counsel of the company?
A. Yes.
Q. Susan Jewell was the Deputy General Counsel of the
company?
A. I'm not familiar with her.
Q. OCkay.

When I say "the company," I mean Household
International, the parent, the public company.

Kay Curtin was the General Counsel of Househeld
Finance?

A, Yes.
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Q. Do you recall that?
A. Yes.

Q. Martha Pampel was a lawyer on Kay Curtin's staff --

A. Yes.
Q. -- I helieve.

She might have been on Mr. Robin's staff.

In any event, she was in the Law Department.

All right.

And if you look down intc the third paragraph, about
the third line beginning with "Since" -- there it
is {(indicating) -- he says, "Since I have been working
personally with the HFC -- " that's Household Finance -- "and
HI -- " that's Household Internaticnal, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. n -- lawyers on this, please let me handle any requests

from you and HFC for legal approval of specific acticons and
forms relating to this project for the time being.

wvpleage do not" -- underscored -- "put such requests
into any routine legal approval process.

"I met with the lawyers on Friday and thanked them
for their efforts, which have made this breakthrough
possible.”

Do you see that?

A. 1 do.

Q. &and, then, in the next paragraph, three lines from the
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0. And there are many other regulators who don't share those
opinions, correct?
2. T'm not sure I understand. That didn't think they engaged
in predatory lending?
Q. Correct.
A. There were a few states that issued reports that didn't
show those types of violations. and I don't know how
expansive their -- the scope of their -- examination.

But, ultimately, all 50 states came to an agreement
with Household and fined them 5484 million for these predatory
lending practices.

S¢, ultimately, all of the states ended up signing
onto that.

0. You reviewed a number of state regulatory exams of
Household, which were complimentary of Household, which you
didn't mention in your direct testimony, correct?

. Not a number. 1 know there were A& few that I reviewed,
that had viclations of other types of things, but not of
predatory —- you know, the types of practices.

I didn't do a complete review of everything that
Household might have violated in that time period. I focused
on whether or not they engaged in predatory lending.

So, the examination reports had much other
information in there, regquiring corrective action, that went

to other things besides predatory lending.
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A. I mean, I deon't know -- I don't have it in front of me to
be able to say —-
Q. Okay.

Let's see 1if we can put 1t up ©on the beoard,
a. -- to sece what it is.

MR, KAVALER: Tab 43,

(Brief pause.)

BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. This is an excerpt of the deposition of Mr. Cross.

Do you recall reading the deposition of Mr. Cross?
A, I do.

Is he referring to -- are you saying that he's
referring to -- 2807
Q. He's referring toc the Expanded Report of Examination.

Do you recall at his deposition he was asked about
this report?
A, I read it a while ago, but I thought they locked at more
than 19 in this expanded report.
0. Okay.

Let's --

MR. DROSMAN: Your Henor, are they offering the depo
into evidence? I'm not sure --

MR. KAVALER: No, your Honor.

The witness said her recollecticn would be refreshed

if I showed her Mr. Cross' testimony.
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I'm asking whether this refreshes her recocllection
about what he testified about.

THE COURT: The way to do that is to show it to the
witness —--

MR. KAVALER: Okay.

THE COURT: -- not to publish it to the courtroom or
the jury.

So, please remove that.

MR. KAVALER: I'1]l do that.

Take that down, please.

{(Brief pause.)

MR. KAVALER: Thank you.

May I approach the witness, your Honor?

THE CCURT: Yes.
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. I'm handing you Pages 397 through 400 of Mr. Cross'
deposition; and, 1'm directing your attentiocn, ma'am, to the
bottom of 398, where I put the red tick through the top of
"3999." TIt's a total of nine lines.

My guestion is: Does +that refresh vour recollection
that that's the testimony that Mr. Cross gave?

(Document tendered.)

BY THE WITNESS:
A. So, your guestion to me is: 1Is this his testimony?

BY MR. KAVALER:
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0. No, my guesticn is: Does that refresh your recollection
that you read Mr. Cross' testimony, where he said that the 19
complaints, out of a population of thousands that he looked at
o form his conclusions in this report, were a woefully
inadequate population to draw from?
A. T see what he says here, but I den't see how it cennects
to this report.

He -- because what you asked him before that is what
he majored in in college. So, I'm not sure about the
connection there.

1 see what he says about a statistical significance
or --—

Q. All right.

A. That he's neot a statistician. So, I don't know.

0. Let's lock at 2030, which is the report that counsel for
the investors showed you a couple days ago and you testified
about, which is now in evidence.

A. Okay.

0. All right.

Do you have that up there?

MR. DROSMAN: I think it's 2%0, your Honor.

MR. KAVALER: S5o0rry.

BY THE WITNESS:
A, 2907

BY MR. KAVALER:
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Q. 2%0. 1 apologize.
All right. We'll go to Page —- the precduction number
at the bottom "HHS," ending in "667."
THE COURT: Let me just make sure I have this. This
is Plaintiffs’' Exhibit 2207
MR. KAVALER: 280, your Honor.
THE COURT: In evidence?
MR. KAVALER: In evidence.
THE COURT: Proceed.
MR. KAVALER: Two days ago.
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. £And we're at the page ending in "667," and the production
numbers are in the lower right-hand corner.

Do you see that?

A. {(No response.)
Q. And where 1t says, "Identify patterns and recent complaint
history," it says: "The complaints filed with the Department

reflect transactions originated in several branch lccations
from varying locales in Washington. While most of the
complaints show similar patterns of consumer abuse, the
Bellingham branch stands out with over 30 percent of the
complaints, (6 of 19}, discussed in detail in this report.”

Do you see that?

Q. Okay.
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&nd, then, Mr. Cross, the author of this report, was
asked in his deposition about those 19 complaints. BAnd he
said that that was a "woefully inadequate populaticn to draw
from."

Do you see that in his testimony?
A. I see that in his testimeny.
Q. Okay.

and my question is: You recall reading his
deposition testimony, correct?
L. Yes.
Q. And do you recall testifying extensively about the
Washington Report a couple days ago, correct?
A, Yes.
Q. Okay-

2nd you understood, when you testified about that
report, that it was based on a sample of 19 complaints, which
Mr. Cross said that it was a woefully inadequate population to
draw from, correct?
A. I sae that that's what he testified; but, based on the
number of complaints, they did this expanded investigaticn and
they did the mystery shopping.

So, you know, I don't know what the context 1s
exactly of how —-- you know —- what these questions were, but I
know they thought scmething was significant, to go to this

much trouble -- to do this investigation.
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Q. Okay.

Let's look at Minnescta. You testified about some
complaints in Minnesota two days ago?
A. Yes.

Shall I get that?
0. I'm working on it. Give me a second.

{Brief pause.)

BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. Let me show you whal's been marked as Defendants' 296.

MR. KAVALER: May I approach, your Honor?

THE COURT: You may.
BY THE WITNESS:
A. TIs that not this one (indicating}?

BY MR. KAVALER:

0. Is this one of the documents that you reviewed?
k. Yes.
Q. OCkay.

and this is a letter to Mr. Jordan Ash, the Loan
Counselling Director of Acorn Housing Corporaticn, from
Mr. Kevin M. Murphy, the Deputy Commissioner of the Minnesota
Department of Commerce, correct?
A, Yes.
0. 0Okay.

And Mr. —-- Deputy Commissioner -- Murphy 1s writing

to Mr. Ash about certain complaints against Household.
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Do you see that?

A. Yes.
Q. And he says -- he lists the complaints by name and he says
-~ "I have personally reviewed all of the complaints and the
response documentation provided by Household Beneficial. To
date, we find no evidence of law by Household Beneficial with
respect to these complaints.”

Do you see that language?

A. I see that language.
O. Okay.
And he says there are two more complaints as to which
he doesn't yet have documentation, correct?
A. Where are ycu reading from?
0. I think I'm reading from the wrong place.
(Brief pause.)
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. I'm reading from the beottom of the first page, but I
withdraw the guestion.
A. COkay.
Ckay.

So, at least in Minnesota, on this occasion, although
there were complaints, Commissioner Murphy found that in the
case of five of them, there was no evidence of any viclations
of law by Household/Beneficial, correct?

A. Right.
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And that predates by a year and a little bit the
examination that we looked at yesterday.
Q. Right.

But it follows by two or three years the time when
you sald two days ago everything began to change when Gary
Gilmer decided to focus on growth, correct?

A, Well, 1f you remember Mr. Cross' testimony in his
deposition, he said, "You know, in the beginning we believed
Household when they said it was either z rogue employee or a
rogue branch," or whatever; and, it took us a while to put
together that they were, in fact, engaging in predatory
lending.

And, then, he started talking to other regulators
arcund the country and they were all having the same sorts of
issues.

So, some of this information predates when they
finally put it all together and figured cut what was going on.
Q. Ckay.

But, in any event, this is an instance of a state
regulator investigating a complaint and coming to the
conclusion that, notwithstanding the customer complained,
there was no merit to the complaint, correct?

A. Yes.
0. And that happens sometimes, doesn't it?

A, Sure.
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Q. Did you see, in the records that you looked at,
Household's response to Mr. Ortega's complaint?
A. I may have. I don't remember.
Q. Let me show you that document and see if that refreshes
your recollection.
MR. KAVALER: Your Honor, could we mark this for

identification as Defendant Exhibit 10797

(Document tendered.)

(Brief pause.)
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. Ready?
Z. Uh-huh.
0. Does that refresh your recollection that you saw
Household's response to Mr. Ortega's complaint setting forth

its position and describing what it had done to remedy his

complaint?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay.

ME. KAVALER: Your Honor, I offer Defendants' 107%.
THE COURT: Any objection?
ME. DROSMAN: No objection, your Honor.
THE COURT: It will be admitted without objection.
MR. KAVALER: All right.

{Defendants' Exhibit 1079 received in evidence.)

BY MR. KAVALER:
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Q. Let's lock at 1079 together.

It's a letter from Household signed by Tom Schneider,
who yvou identified earlier, I believe, as the Director of
Policy and Compliance Support, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And it's addressed to the: "0ffice of the Comptroller of
the Department of Banking and Finance of the state of
Florida."

And the reference is to Anteonio Ortega, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. And Mr. Schneider writes and he says, "Dear Ms. Dawes,
thank you for the opportunity to respond to Mr. Ortega's
concerns in his correspondence. Mr. Ortega has stated that he
did not receive the interest rate that he was promised. 1In
the letter provided to Mr. Ortega by our branch coffice, the
Branch Sales Manager was not quoting the interest rate, but an
'equivalent rate' based on the effect of having the loan paid
biweekly instead of monthly."

And, then, he says, "It is not our policy to guote an
equivalent interest rate associated with a biweekly payment
program.

"We believe Mr. Ortega was guoted the equivalent
interest rate for potential interest savings over the life of
his loan when payments are made on a biweekly schedule.

"As stated previously, this type of communication ig
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not condoned nor approved. As a result, we have referred the
documentation enclosed in Mr. Ortega's complaint to senior
management for review and immediate action."

And, then, he continues in a new paragraph. He says,
"Due to any misunderstandings that may have occurred and, as a
good-faith gesture, Mr. Ortega received a refund check in the

amount of $1,134.19 on June 29, 2001. The amount of the check

- represented the cost of the origination fee that was assessed

to his account.

"In addition, we have reduced the contract rate of
interest on Mr. Crtega's account to 10.15 percent effective as
of March 30, 2001."

BEnd thies letter is being written on Cctober 18, 2001,
correct?

A, Yes.

Q. All right.

"Due to the reduced rate of interest, Mr. Ortega's
principal balance was reduced by an additional $1,188.52 for
the period of March 30, 2001, through 10-15-200L1."

And Mr. Schneider concludes, "We deeply regret the
circumstances surrounding this situation. Please convey our
gincere apologies to Mr. Ortega.”

Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. Okay.
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1 So, in this case, which you mentioned to us
2 vesterday, you told us about Mr. Ortega's complaint; and, now,
3 we see Household's respénse, correct?
4 A. Yes.
03:37:12 5 Q. Okay.
6 Household is apologizing, correct?
7 A, Yes.
8 Q. It is acknowledging that one of its employees made a
9 mistake, correct?
03:37:20 10 A, Yes.
11 Q. It is asserting that the mistake was contrary to
12 Household's policy, correct?
13 A. That's what it says here.
14 Q. That's what it says.
03:37:31 15 It is saying that the matter will be referred to
16 senior management for review and immediate action; and, the
17 clear complication is against the employee, correct?
18 A. I don't know what the implication is there.
13 Q. Okay.
03:37:42 20 And, finally, it reports that they have made a
21 financial restitution to Mr. Ortega in three separate ways.
22 They sent him a refund check in the amount of
23 $1,134.19, which represents the cost of his origination fee,
24 correct?

03:38:01 25 A. That's what it says here.
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Well, when you say "That's what it says," do you think

they didn't send him the check?

A,

Q.

211 I'm -- I agree with you, that's what it says here.

A}l right.

And, then, they also say they reduced the contract

rate of interest to a lower rate of interest.

A.

Q.

Do you see that?
I see it.
Okay.

And, thirdly, as a result of that, they've reduced

his principal balance by another $1888.92.

A.

Q.

Do you see that?
I see that.

As a regulator, if you came in and you saw Mr. Ortega’'s

complaint letter and Household's response letter, would you be

satisfied that Household had responded to the Ortega

complaint?
A. Taken in isolation, yes.
Q. Okay.
Now, the next thing you told us about yesterday was a
complaint -- another complaint -- by Mr. Nanez.
Am I prenouncing that correctly; do you think?
A. That's how I pronounce it.
Q. That's where I geot it from.

And you remember that testimony?
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A. I do.
Q. Okay.

And, in the course of reviewing the files that you
reviewed, did you come acrogs the underlying documents related
to Mr. Nanez's complaint?

A. I reviewed some documents. I'm not sure which ones you're
talking about.

Q. Let me show you a couple and see if it refreshes your
recollection.

Let's start with a document which I will mark as
Defendants' 1080 for identification.

(Document tendered.)}
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. 1Is this one of the documents you looked at?
A. It might have been. I've seen this type of document
before.
Q. Okay.

and this document has Mr. Nanez's name on it --

Ms. Nanez and Mr. Nanez?
A. Yes.
Q. All right.

And it says on the top --

MR. KAVALER: I'm sorry, your Honor, I offer
Defendants' 1080 in evidence.

MR. DROSMAN: This isn't on the exhibit list, your
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1 Honor.
2 MR. KAVALER: That's why it's 1080, your Honor.
3 THE COURT: Yes, I guess it's not.
4 Is there an objection?
03:40:30 5 MR. DROSMAN: It's hearsay, your Honor.
6 THE COURT: What's it being offered to prove?
7 MR. KAVALER: <Your Honor, it's offered -- she says

8 she reviewed it. It's offered in response to the testimony
9 she gave yesterday, to show the response that Household made

03:40:41 10 to the very complaint that she testified about yesterday.

11 THE COURT: OCverruled.
12 MR. KAVALER: Thank you, your Honor.
13 (Defendants' Exhibit 1080 received in evidence.}

14 BY MR. KAVALER:
03:40:54 15 Q. MNow, you see on the top --
1& MR. KAVALER: Withdrawn.
17 BY MR. KAVALER:
18 0. If I recall your testimony correctly yesterday, your point
19 was that Mr. Nanez -- or Ms. Nanez -- said she had to take
03:41:13 20 single premium credit insurance in order to get a loan; is
21 that correct?
22 A. 1I'd have to look at that complaint, again, to see exactly
23 what it says on the ccmplaint.
24 Q. Ckay.

03:41:20 25 Let me try it this way. I can show you your



Ghiglieri - cross
837
1 testimony yesterday.
2 MR. KAVALER: I am having difficulty with the
3 transcript.
4 BY MR. KAVALER:
03:42:29 5 0. Let me do it this way: This document, 108C, is headed
6 "Optional Credit Insurance Disclosure."
7 Do you see that?
8 A. I see that.
9 Q. And first thing it says after the name of the creditor,
03:42:37 10 the name of the borrowers and some boxes with some amounts in
11 it, is a sentence that begins in capital letters, "No credit
12 insurance is required to cbtain this loan."
13 Do you see that?
14 A. I do.

03:42:46 15 Q. All right.

16 and thig is the document signed by the borrowers --
17 the Nanezes -- on the next page, correct?

18 A. Yes.

15 Q. So, they received a written disclosure from Household
03:42:58 20 which says on the top, it's an "Optional Credit Insurance

21 Agreement" and says in the beginning of the text in capital

22 letters, "No credit insurance is required to obtain this

23 loan."

24 Do you see that?

03:43:10 25 A. I see it.
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Q. Okay.

And that would alert them to the fact this credit
insurance is both optional and not reguired to cbtain the
leoan, correct?

A. 1If they spoke English. They're Spanish speakers.
Q. Do you know that for a fact or you just assuming that?
A. Well, I'm reading it from the complaints. I pulled the

complaint out.

Q. Okay.
A. "We are Hispanic and our primary language is Spanish."
Q. oOkay.

And your point is: This document is in English?
A. It ig in English.
Q. Okay.
So, as a regulator, what would you like to see?
Would you like to see Household provided them with a
disclosure in Spanish?
A. Well, there are a couple things.
One, if you are lending money to someone that doesn't
speak English, at least I know -- from the bank's
standpoint -- they've got forms. All of their documents are
in all the different languages of the c¢lients that they serve.
The second thing is Household always claimed that
their insurance was optional; but, if you remember, I talked

about the penetration ratios.
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When you look at how many loans were made and how
many insurance policies were written on those loans, if it
gets above 50 percent, the regulators think that credit
insurance is actually required.

In this complaint, it actually says that: "The
Household's representative told us that we had to get single
premium credit insurance."

So, it conflicts with the language in this document,
which, if they spoke English, they would have been able to
read and maybe ask a guestion about.

But, notwithstanding that, this is symptomatic of
insurance packing that was complained of in various states
around the country.

@. All right.

So, part of the problem is the document is in English
and you believe they spoke Spanish?

A. Well, they said they spoke Spanish. I'm just looking at
their complaint.

I don't know them personally.

Q. Understood.

So, let's look at the other document in the loan
file, which is the Loan Payment and Security Agreement.

We'll mark this as Defendants' 1081 for |
identification.

{Document tendered.)
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BY MR. KAVALER:
0. Did you see that document, as well, when you were looking
at the documents relating to the c¢laim of Mr. and Mrs. Nanez?
2. I'm not sure. I have seen documents that look like this.
I don't know if I saw this particular one.
Q. Let me see if I can refresh your recollection.

It has Mr. Nanez's name and Ms. Nanez's mame on the
first page?
A. That dcesn't help.

I've seen documents like this, but I can't tell you
for sure if I saw this particular document.
Q. Okay.

It's called a "Loan Payment and Security Agreement™'?
A. That's what it says at the top, ves.
Q. Now, on the last page, next to the Nanez's signatures, it
has a paragraph in Spanish.

Do you see that?
A. Yes.
Q. Dc you happen to read Spanish?
A. No, I don't.
Q. Do you see the paragraph right above it? It translates it
in English.
A. Okay.
Q. Okay.

The English says, "Notice the borrowers may request
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the Truth in Lending Disclosures be provided in the Spanish
language before signing any leoan documents.®

And the gpanish, I won't even try, but it says -- the
first word is "Aviso," which I think means something very
gimilar to "Notice."

My guess is the language in Spanish and English is
the same.

Does that sound reasonable to you?

A. Sure.
Q. Okay.

Does that refresh you recollection that when you
looked at the Nanez loan file, you saw that the Nanezes were
provided with a disclosure document which contained a notice
in Spanish that they were entitled to request that all of
their documentation be provided in Spanish, if they wanted?
A. I can't read Spanish, but the English translation says,
"Truth in Lending Disclosures.”

So, this optional credit insurance, I don't know if
that's part of the "Truth in Lending Disclosure."

Q. Okay.

A. But it does have something here in Spanish that says that
they have the opportunity to get their Truth in Lending
Disclosures. That would be Regulation z.

Q. In Spanish?

A. It is in Spanish, yes; but, it doesn't have anything to do
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with this document that you showed me that's in English,
regarding optional credit insurance.
Q. Right.

Let me be clear. There's a statement in Spanish that
says, "You can get the disclosures in Spanisgh," right?
A. It says, "Truth in Lending Disclosures." That's different
than disclosures.
Q. Okay.

&nd you saw documents like this in the course of your
investigation?
A. Yes.

MR. KAVALER: I offer Defendants' 1081, your Honor.

ME. DROSMAN: ©No objection, your Honor.

THE COURT: Admitted without objection.

{Defendants' Exhibit 1081 received in evidence.)

BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. So, it says on the front, "Loan Repayment and Security
Agreement"?

MR. KAVALER: And go to the last page.
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. &nd you sze the box in the upper left {indicating) --
that's what we're talking about.

It says in English, "Notice: The borrowers may
request that the Truth in Lending Disclosures be provided in

the Spanish language before signing any lcan documents.”
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And then it has a sentence that appears to say the
same thing in Spanish, to the extent that either one of us can
tell since neither one of us reads Spanish.

Now, the third customer complaint you talked about
vesterday was a letter from a woman named Adams.

Do you recall that?

A. Yes.

Q. 2nd in the course of reviewing the files, did you happen
to see -- do you recall seeing -- the response of Household, a
letter back to Mrs. Adams?

A. I may have. 1I'm not sure.

Q. All right.

Let me gee if I can refresh your recollection.

Po you recall seeing a six-page, single-spaced letter
to Mrs. Adameg from Steven Hicks, the Director of Compliance
Risk Management, addressing every element of her claim,
explaining what happened, what transpired, how the situation
arose, what Household's response was going to be, what
Household's position is, what Household's pelicy is?

MR. DROSMAN: Your Honor, if he's going to lay a
foundation, I just ask that he ask the fcundatiocnal questions
and not discuss the contents of the document.

MR. KAVALER: Sure.

BY MR. KAVALER:

Q. Do you recall a letter like that?
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A. I just don't remember if I saw it or not. You'll have to
show it to me.
Q. BAbsolutely.
ILet me show it to you and see if it refreshes your
recollection.
I'm handing you Defendants' 1082 for identification.
{Document tendered.)
BY THE WITNESS:
A. I don't -- this doesn't look familiar to me.
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. Would you expect Household to have written a response to
Mrs. Adams?
A. Do I expect them teo?

Q. Would you have expected them to respond --

A. Sure.
0. -- to the letter?
A. Sure.

Q. Did you look for a response when you reviewed the Adams

complaint letter?
ZA. Well, I had a lot of complaints and I looked at the -- I
locked at what documents were produced surrcunding those
complaints.

So, if I didn't have a response, I may not have
specifically asked the plaintiffs' lawyers for one because I

had quite a few responses.
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I know that they responded -- or they responded back
-~ to the regulators -- Household did.
Q. Did you know Household regularly responded back to the
regulators and you asked the plaintiffs’ coungel for letters
respongive to the complainte you were going to testify about?
A. Well, I had so many documents and so many complaints, I
didn't, you know, like, specifically, say, "Okay, I've got a
complaint here. Where's Househeold's resgponse?”

I just took them all together and started looking
through them.

I may have seen this. I just -- I just -- don't
remember, as I'm sitting here, that I saw it.
Q. But, as a general matter, your intent was to get

Household's response to the --

A. Yes.
0. -- complaint letters, if there was cne?
A. Yes.

Q. All right.

And certainly if it was one of the ones you were
going to testify about at trial?
A. Well, I looked at the complaints three years ago. 5o, I
didn't know if this case was goling to trial or not.

I wasn't thinking that far ahead.
0. But in preparing to come here and testify, you knew which

complaints you were going to testify about?
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A. I pulled a few out, yes.
¢. And when you pulled out the Adams' complaint, did you pull
out the response to the Adams' complaint?
A. No, I -- I -- didn't pull out the respcnse. So, I don't
know if I actually have it or not.

It doesn't look familiar, but that's not to say I
didn't see it.

Q. You might have seen it?
A. I might have seen it.

MR. KAVALER: Your Honor, I offer 1082.

MR. DROSMAN: It's hearsay, your Honor.

Objection.

THE COURT: What's it being cffered to prove?

MR. KAVALER: Your Honor, it's being offered to --
under 106 -- for the doctrine of completeness, in response to
the testimony she gave yesterday where she put the Adams’
complaint letter into evidence.

This is the response to the Adams' complaint letter.

It'e for the proposition that Household responded.

THE COURT: Well, the doctrine of completeness is how
you get it in, but I know what know what you're cffering it to
prove.

MR. KAVALER: Your Honecr, very simply. She told us
ali the things that Mrs. Adams complained about. I want to

cshow that Household promptly and completely responded in
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writing to each and everything Mrs. Adams said.

THE COURT: If you're offering it to establish the
foundation or lack of foundation for her opinion or opinions,
I'll admit it.

Is that what you're offering it for?

MR. KAVALER: Yes, your Honor. I think it goes
beyond that; but, it certainly --

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR. KAVALER: -- goes to her cpinion.

THE COURT: The objecticn is overruled.

ME. KAVALER: Thank you, your Honor.

(Defendants' Exhibit 1082 received in evidence.)
BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. All right, Ms. Ghiglieri, if you lock at this letter --
Exhibit 1082 in evidence -- it's a letter from Mr. Hicks, the
Director of Compliance Risk Management, to Ms. Amy M. Adams in
New Cumberland, Pennsylvania, dated September 27, 2002,
correct?
A. Yes.
¢. And Mr. Hicks says, "We are responding to your letter of
September 10, 2002, and your subsequent e-mailg. We have
investigated the allegationg stated in the complaint and our
responses are indicated below.™

And, then, his first heading is, "Prepayment

penalty;" and, in the second paragraph, he says, "The
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prepayment penalty was fully, conspicucusly and accurately
described in your Leoan Repayment and Security Agreement ('Loan
Agreement') under the paragraph titled, 'Prepayment Penalty.'"

And, then, he quotes from the language of the
agreement .

Do you see that?

A. I do.

Q. 2and, then, he says, "To clarify the above, please refer to
Page 1 of your rate" (attached). The date of your loan was
2-20-02, and this was stated on Page 1 of the Loan Agreement
in the box titled, 'Date of Loan.' The contract rate is 9.49%0
percent, and this is stated on Page 1 of the Loan Agreement in
the box titled 'Contract Rate Per Year.'"

And skipping down to the end of that paragraph, he
says, "Your signature on the Loan Agreement signifies g your
acceptance of the terms contained therein, including the
prepayment penalty."

2And, then, he says in the next paragraph, "In
addition, because your loan was secured by your property, we
are required by law to give you three business daye to review
your loan documents and determine whether the loan meets your
needs, whether you agree to the terms and conditions and
whether you want to keep or cancel the lcan.

"Pleage refer to the document titled 'Notice of Right

to Cancel' attached.™
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And, then, he continueg: "Your loan closed on
2-20-02. You had until midnight on 2-23-02 to decide whether
to rescind the loan.

"The second page of the notice, signed by both you
and your husband, not only confirms that you had thosze three
days, but confirms that we allowed you two additional days.
Your loan did not fund until 2-25-02, which means we gave you
five days to consider your loan.

"Unlike other lenders, we do not immediately fund a
loan after three days, but wait until the customers actually
confirm they want the loan. We believe that five days was
ample time to consider the pricing, terwms and conditions of
your lean.”

Do you see that?

A. I do.

0. In the next paragraph, he says, "Please refer to the
customer Satisfaction Survey attached. ©On this form, we
clearly asked the question: 'Do you understand the terms and
conditions of your prepayment penalty?' On this survey, you
checked the 'Yes' box, confirming that you understood the
prepayment penalty. You checked 'Yes' to confirm that we
listened to your concerns and responded appropriately to your
questions. You checked 'Yes' that we gave you a good
explanation of your loan terms, features and benefits. You

also checked -- "
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MR. DROSMAN: Your Honor, objectiocn.

Is there a question? That's what I cbject to. He
said he was putting it in to test the foundation of the
witness' opinions. I just see him reading the document.

THE COURT: Is there a qguesticn?

MR. KAVALER: Yes, your Honor.

When I get finished reading parts of the letter to
her, I'm going to asgk her whether, in her view, Household
responded satisfactorily to the question -- to the complaint
-- of Amy Adams.

THE CQURT: Proceed.

MR. XAVALER: Thank you, your Honor.

BY MR. KAVALER:
Q0. I'm sorry, I think this is where I was.

" —- you checked 'Yes" that we gave you a good
explanation of your loan terms, features and benefits. You
alsc checked 'Yes' to the question of whether the loan product
provided met your financial needs.

"In addition, you also wrote a comment on the survey
indicating that you were able to 'advance the payoff of both
your mortgage'" -- I'm sorry -- "'advance the payoff cof both
our mortgage as well as our credit card bills.'

"You also viewed our customer orientation videc at
loan close. To ensure that our branch personnel are providing

complete and accurate information to our customers, we have
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produced a video, which is provided to every customer prior to
closing their loan.

"The customer viewed this customer orientation video
prior to loan closing. The video further explains the process
and begins by stating that an application has been taken and
approved. The video also explains the following:"

Bullet: "The customer was provided with a good-faith
estimate of the costs of the loan."

Bullet: "The customer should have received other

documents three days prior to closing.®

Bullet: "The loan documents will be presented to the
customer include -- " " -- the loan documents that will be
presented to the customer include -- " indented bullet --

"Truth In Lending Disclosure, which disclosed the APR -- "

that's the "Annual Percentage Rate," is it?

A, Yes.

Q. " -- payments, amount financed, costs and loan rate."
Indented bullet: "Mortgage or Deed of Trust."
Indented bullet: "HUD 1 Settlement Statement

disclosing details of the transaction."
"HUD" standsg for "Housing and Urban Development”?
A, Yes.
Q. It's a government form?
A. Yes.

Q. Sub-bullet: "Loan Agreement, which includes details
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regarding the prepayment penalty, late charges, interest rate,
points and fees, monthly payment amount, payoff date and
optional insurance chosen.®

Final gub-bullet: "At the end of this section, the
customer is encouraged to stop and ask guestions of the
account executive if anything is unclear."”

2nd it continues.

Now, I don't want to spend a lot of time reading the
entire letter.

He goes through the entire process that was followed
at the closing. He says, "You were encouraged to ask
gquestions. You signed an acknowledgment that you viewed the
video.,"

He encloses a copy of the signature pages where she
gays, "We saw the video."

He says, "We produced this video so that to be sure
that ocur customers are fully aware of the process and are told
where, in various documents, they can find these terms."

He talks about the result of his investigatiocn:
"Didn't find any evidence that the terms or pricing of your
locan, including the prepayment penalty, were not fully
disclosed te both you and your husband.”

He says, "It's our position you were advised of the
loan, you understood the loan, there was no decepticn

regarding the sale of the loan."
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He then goes on in another heading called, "Refinance

THE COURT: At some point, you have to ask a
question.

-MR. KAVALER: Your Honor --

THE CQURT: This is a good time.

MR. KAVALER: Okay.

BY MR. KAVALER:
Q. He lays out all these reasons why he thinks she got full
disclosure.

Do you feel that Household acted properly, as a
regulator, in responding in writing in a seven-page --
six-page -- single-spaced letter to this lady's complaint,
addressing each and every element of the transaction as it
went down, and encleosing for her various documents that she
was shown and then she signed?

A. Do I feel it was appropriate?
Q. Yes.

A. No, I don't,

Q. Okay.

He also talks about the ways in which the loan
benefitted her.

If you go to Page 5 under the heading called,
"ITnterest Rate of 7 Percent," he says, "You stated in your

letter you were duped into refinancing a 7 percent FHA
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mortgage to 9.49 percent unconventional loan. We have
performed a thorough investigation of this allegation and we
discovered the following: Through closing our loan, you
achieved the following:"

Bullet: "You paid off Wells Fargo $95,557.67 and
Capital One $54,982."

Bullet: "You received cash of $250.40."

Bullet: --

MR. DROSMAN: He's just testifying. I object, again.

THE COURT: You have to break up your references to
the document with questions. Otherwise, it does become
rather --

MR. KAVALER: Very good, your Honor.

THE COURT: -- a narration of the document.

MR. KAVALER: I will break it into smaller pieces.
BY MR. KAVALER:

Q. Is he reciting there the wayé in which this lcan
benefitted this customer financially?

A. And that's what I think he's attempting to do, ves.
0. Okay.

He continues, dees he not, "Your monthly payments
prior to the loan totalled $2,453. Your payments, after our
loan, and including $119 for taxes and insurance (no longer
escrowed close), totalled $2,392. This saved you $61 per

month."
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Is he pointing out to the customer how she is better
off on a menthly basis with the new loan than with the old
loans?

A. I think that's what he's attempting to do.
Q. OCkay.

He says, "Your debt-to-income ratio which measures
grosgs monthly income against monthly credit payments decreased
from 43.08 percent to 42.01 percent. This is a positive
improvement . "

Is he, to use your words, attempting to point cut to
her how -- another way in which this loan benefitted her?

A. Yes, that's what he's attempting to do.

Q. and, finally, in the final bullet, he says, "Your
disposable income, which is money left over, after credit
payments are made, was $1,676 before cur loan and $1,737 after
our locan, which is also a positive improvement.”

Is he, once again, attempting to point out to her how
thig loan benefitted her?

A. It looks like that's what he's trying to do.
Q. And in the next paragraph, he addresses how Household
figured out what interest rate she qualified for.

Do you see that?

A. I see the paragraph, ves.
Q. BAnd he explains to her that, "Household typically extends

offers of credit to borrowers who, for one reason or another,
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may not otherwise qualify to obtain credit under lower rate
lending programs."”

Is that what you understand to be Household's primary
business model?
A. Extending credit to subprime --
Q. Yes.
A. -- borrowers? Yes.
Q. And, then, he says, "The cost of extending this credit is
traditionally higher as the likelihood of a customer becoming
delinguent is much greater, resulting in increased risk and
collection costs to the lender in the event of default.”

Do you understand that that accurately describes
Household's business model, as well?
A. Yes.
Q. Finally, he says, "Based on your creditworthiness, you
¢qualified for an interest rate of 11.12 percent. However, our
District General Manager granted a rate exception to 9.49
percent to accommodate your needs."

Do you see that?
A. I see that.
Q. Now, if vou go back to the prior page -- the bottom of
Page 4 -- there's a heading called, "Loan Pricing," and
without reading it, he goes through the concept of a FICC
score.

You know what a FICO score is, don't you?
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A. I do.
Q. 2And it says, "A FICO score measures a customer's credit
risk in relation to the rest of the national populaticn," does
it?
A. Well, it's a credit-scoring mechanism developed by Fair
Igaac. And it's based on the predictor'—— it's a predictor of
the repayment capacity of an individual.

And, so, I don't know if that's an accurate statement
or not -- that it compares it to the rest of the naticnal
population; but, I do know how they calculate the FICO score,
Q. 2nd higher is better?

A. Higher is better.

Q. And 850 is perfect?

A, Yes.
Q. Okay.

And he tells her in this letter that, "850 is a
perfect FICC score." And he says at the time of the loan, her

husband had a FICO score of 638. He tells her what percentile
that puts him in; and, he tells her what the risk of
delingquency is for that percentile.

Do you see all of that?
A. I do.
Q. Okay.

And, then, he says on the top of Page 5, "The Credit

Bureau Reports for you and Mr. Adams show that, combined, you



04:07:22

04:07:30

04:07:43

04:08:02

04:08:13

10

11

12

13

14

15

1é

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Ghiglieri - cross
858
had 22 delinguencies in the past 30 days and three
delinguencies of past-60 days of your accounts; you had 14
inquiries on your Credit Bureau Report, suggesting you were
aggressively seeking credit.”
Do you see that?

A, I see it.

Q. 2nd, then, he says that using Hougehold's internal scoring
models, that's how they came up with the rate.

Do you see that?

A. I do.
0. Okay.

and, then, finally on the last page -- Page 6 of the
letter -- he says in a paragraph called "Summary,"” "Mrs.

Adams, when our District Sales Manager spoke with you on
September 17, 2002, she adviged you that if you provided us
with a copy of your sold contract, we would be willing to
waive one-half of the prepayment penalty. Yocu were to contact
us on September 20, 2002, regarding the contract. To date, we
have still not received a copy of the sold contract.®

In other words, he's offering her a further
accommodation, notwithstanding everything he has previously
said in his letter about why he believes the transaction was
appropriate, correct?
A. That's what he's saying there.

¢. And, then, he says under that -- in the next to the last
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paragraph -- "We regret to hear you are dissatisfied with your
loan. Beneficial prides itself on its commitment to customer
service and is always willing to work toward an agreeable
solution to a customer's concerns. The offer to waive
one-half of the prepayment penalty still stands provided you
sell the house and produce a valid sales contract.

"However, the offer is not valid in the event you
refinance this loan with another lender.”

2nd what he's saying there is that notwithstanding
that there was a deadline for her to take up this offer of a
further waiver of one—half of the penalty, and the deadline
passed without her having provided the required documentation,
he's extending that offer still further, correct?
A. Yes.
Q. COkay.

Now, this letter is written 17 days after Ms. Adams'
complaint letter?
A. Correct. Yes.
Q. It explains in great detail how the transaction occurred;
how the loan was priced; why he concludes that she was treated
fairly; it attaches documentation supporting everything he
says; it tells her an offer was made to resolve her grievance.
He extends a further offer.

As a regulator, locking at these two documents -- the

complaint and the response in a file -- would you feel
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1 Household had responded suitably and appropriately to this
2 complaint?
3 A. Well, there's a couple of things that they didn't respond
4 to, even though this is really lengthy and I didn't really --
04:09:55 5 I don't recall reading this.
& But based on everything that you've said, the one
7 thing that they didn't respond to is the fact that the account
B executive that was closing the loan indicated that the fee

9 could be waived for job-related relocation.

04:10:13 10 and did Mr. Hicks write this?
11 This really went into great detail -- yes, Mr. Hicks,
12 he went into a large detail -- about how she had notice.
13 You know, in other words, it was written here, it was

14 written there, it was written there.
04:10:27 15 Well, she asked the account executive, according to
16 her complaint, and he said, "Don't worry abhout it. Forx
17 job-related relocations, we'll waive the penalty."
18 So, she was -- she must have been satisfied with that
19 and went ahead with the transaction; is now facing a job
04:10:43 20 relocation; and, Household's coming back to her and saying,
21 "You had plenty of notice. It was written here, here, here
22 and here."
23 But they don't discuss the issue that I saw in a
24 number of complaints around the country; and, that is, "Don't

04:10:58 25 worry, we'll waive it." Or "There isn't one." There was
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always something that was different than what was written in
the document. .

The issue about the creditworthiness of this borrower
is a little confusing to me because her -- the loan that she
did have was at 7 percent., 2And a 7 percent rate is really a
good rate on an FHA loan. And that tells me that she had --
was probably a prime credit.

They're indicating in this letter she was a subprime
credit. 8o, I just don't -- I'm not sure how to harmonize
that.

But I don't -- you know, she still is explaining some
predatory practices that were noticed around the country --
the other one is -- the high closing costs: The 7.25 percent
closing costs.

So, you know, this complaint contains similar
complaints that people had around the country and Household
did respond very extensively here; and, 1f I was a regulator
-- and, like Chuck Cross says at first, you know, you believe
what Household savs and take it at face value; and, then, the
more complaints you look at, the more, you know, you don't
know what kind of a story they're telling.

So, the date of this was September 27th, 2002. That
was right before the big multi-state settlement -- 5484
million -- that they paid for these very kinds of practices.

So, you know, that's my response tec that complaint
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and the response to the complaint.
Q. You don't know when she tock out this FHA 7 percent loan;
you don't know how many years ago it was; you don't knew what
changes there were in her credit rating in the interim,
correct?
A. I don't know if it's in the complaint when she took it
out,

Let me see if it is.

I don't -- I don't -- see it, just on a gquick read.

But the discussgion in Mr. Hicks' letter about whether
she's better off, was she better off paying 7.25 percent of
the loan balance so she could refinance with Household from a
7 percent FHA loan to a 9.4% percent contract rate?

That doesn't sound like she was benefitted.

I don't know if his calculations are accurate or not.
There's no way for me to know; but, just on a global basgis, it
deesn't look like she benefitted.

So, I think there's some things in his letter that,
as a regulator, I would want to look into further.
Q. So, even when Mr. Hicks writes a six-page single-spaced
letter responding to the complaint, detailing all of the
things he details in here, in your opinion, that's not enough?
2. It's not the volume of response that a regulator looks at.
It's what are they responding to.

And she starts out by saving, "I moved my loan,
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thinking that this prepayment penalty would be waived for a
job relocation. WNow I'm facing a job relocation and I'm being
told it's not."

And, then, he goes into almost "doth protest too
much." You know, almost two full pages of, "It was here," "It
wags there," "It was everywhere," which I'm sure she knew.

But the account executive, according to her, had told
her and her husband that it would be waived. And that's
something that I saw in complaints -- in other complaints --
in different parts of the country.

Q. You don't know if that's true, though, do you?

A. I don't know if it's true, but -- and that's the problem
with complaints is, you know, you want to listen to both sides
of the story. But as Chuck Cross said, from the Department of
Washington, at first they relied on Household. They had a
relationship with Household. They gave them the benefit of
the doubt.

But as more and more complaints cropped up around the
State of Washington and, then, when he talked to other
regulators around the country, they realized that Household,
you know, what they were saying just wasn't true: Thisg isn't
just an isolated incident. It's something that they were
taught tc do and something that they were doing.

0. &nd, in this instance, you have absolutely no knowledge

anything Mr. Hicks said is untrue, correct?
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A. Well, I pointed out a few things that I would question if
I was a regulator.
Q. Right.
A. And, especially, if I knew about more complaints of a
gimilar mnature.
Q. But you don't know, for example, whether the account
executive did or did not say anything to these people at the
closing.

They did, however, sign multiple acknowledgements
that they watched the wvideo; they got the disclosures; he
encloses all those things.

The paper record is impeccable and you're saying,
"but the possibility exists, on facts I don't know, that
enables me to give an opinion to this jury that maybe,
notwithstanding this extensive paper record, this extensive
letter, this responsive document, nevertheless, I still, at
the end of the week, will not acknowledge that this was a
superb job by Mr. Hicks in responding te this lady's
complaint," correct?

A. Well, he made a huge effort in responding to her. I just
don't agree that the gquality of the response was good.

This was just one month before Household paid $484
million to settle claims of predatory lending. And, so,
there's no doubt in the regulators' mind that they were

pervasive problems, many of which I've pointed out are in this
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complaint: The high closing costs; saying that the prepayment
penalty would be walved; being harmed by the fact that they
thought they were going to get a lower effective rate than
they got.

g0, I understand that this is a long response, but I
think the quality of it is not sufficient to address some of
the predatory lending practices that appear in this complaint.
Q. 2And vou mentioned Household's settlement with the
regulators.

Did you know that the market cap of Household's stock
went up, in response to that settlement, by $3.3 billion the
next two days? Did you know that?

A. I have no knowledge of that.
Q. I didn't think so.

MR. KAVALER: Your Honor, this would be a good time
to break.

THE COURT: I think we are going to have stop at this
point. We are going to stop at 4:15.

As I already indicated to you, we have some matters T
need to address and I want to be able to let all the jurers go
by the time we indicated.

Ladieg and gentlemen, we're going to break and quit
for the day. We'll resume tomorrow at 9:45 in the a.m.

As always -- oh, gosh, tomorrow's Friday, isn't it?

{Laughter.}



